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Corporate Profile 2 5]

Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Group”)
has been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited since 1993. We are one of the world’s
leading container manufacturers and a major operator
of container depots and terminals in the Asian-Pacific
region. Our container factory and depot networks are
among the most comprehensive in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”).

Our manufacturing business is currently supported by
twelve factories in the PRC. Two new factories located
in Qidong, Nantong City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC for
producing dry freight containers, specialised containers
and refrigerated containers are in full operation. Besides,
another new factory in Qidong specialised in producing
offshore containers has commenced operation in May
2014.

We manufacture a wide range of products including dry
freight containers, collapsible flatrack containers, open
top containers, bitutainer, refrigerated containers, U.S.
domestic containers, tank containers, offshore containers
and other specialised containers and container parts.

Our logistics business includes container depots/
terminals and logistics company, and is currently running
eleven container depots/terminals, eight at the major
ports in the PRC - Dalian, Tianjin, Qingdao, Qidong,
Shanghai, Ningbo, Fuzhou, and Xiamen, two in Hong
Kong and one in Laemchabang, Thailand. We also
operate a logistics company in Xiamen, the PRC.
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Financial Highlights 8/ 755 2
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2012 2013 2014

2014
—E-mF
US$’000
FEx
Revenue R 1,546,483
Profit from operations # i ) 65,024
Profit attributable to AN AR FE AR 4 A
owners of the Company 28,021
Basic earnings per share (US cents) ERGRAERM (EM) 1.16
Net asset value per share (US cents) EREEFE(ZEW) 25.54
Equity attributable to owners AN &Y 2 CE s
of the Company 617,630
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR MRS 249,793
Total borrowings (Note) e Emat) 377,564
Current ratio E L & 2.11to/ k1
Gearing ratio BEAREAELE 0.61
Net debt to equity ratio B FRAEREE S L X 0.21
Interest coverage ratio M EREF L E 11.2
Return on equity (%) AR AN W2 2 (%) 4.5

Note:  Total borrowings represent the aggregate amount of interest-bearing borrowings.
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Financial Highlights B1 /2

REVENUE BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), |
would like to present the operating results of Singamas
Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2014.

During the past year, owing to good demand for new
containers, the Group recorded consolidated revenue of
US$1,546,483,000 (2013: US$1,282,988,000). Operating
margin contracted due to a decline in the average selling
price (“ASP”) of containers. Consolidated net profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
US$28,021,000 (2013: US$34,274,000). Basic earnings
per share were US1.16 cents, compared with US1.42
cents for 2013.

The ever-changing conditions have further highlighted
the need to optimise efficiency across all aspects of
operation, which the Group has dutifully achieved
through ongoing automation complemented by the
implementation of various cost controls. In particular,
further automation of various manufacturing activities has
allowed the Group to control labour costs and maintain
a manageable workforce without impinging on product
quality.

The Group continues to enjoy a strong financial position,
which remains crucial for coping with different market
conditions, while at the same time allowing it to promptly
respond to emerging opportunities that are expected in 2015.
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DIVIDENDS

The Board proposes to pay a final dividend of HK1.5
cents per ordinary share (2013: HK1 cent) for the year
ended 31 December 2014. Together with an interim
dividend of HK1.5 cents per ordinary share (2013: HK3
cents), total dividend paid for the year will be HK3 cents
per ordinary share (2013: HK4 cents). The dividend
payout ratio for the year approximates to 33.4% (2013:
36.4%).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Manufacturing

New container demand experienced an increase as
reflected by revenue of US$1,515,408,000 recorded for
the reporting year, compared with US$1,253,879,000
in 2013. This upturn was encouraged by improving
economic conditions in the United States, greater
number of large container vessel deliveries and the need
for replacement containers. However, the increase in
demand was tempered by a decline in the ASP of 20’ dry
freight containers, which slipped to US$2,086 compared
with US$2,195 in 2013. The drop reflected the decline in
raw material prices, particularly corten steel price. Profit
before taxation and non-controlling interests amounted
to US$45,546,000 compared to US$46,688,000 in 2013
(which included a one-off gain of US$9,793,000 from the
disposal of two factories in Shunde).

Chairman’s Statement I /Zi{%
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Chairman’s Statement T /Fi%

The manufacturing operation accounted for 98% of the
Group’s total revenue. Total production volume increased
to 686,474 twenty-foot equivalent units (“TEUS”) by the
close of the reporting year, compared to 525,449 TEUs in
2013. Total sales volume reached 683,007 TEUs versus
542,442 TEUs in 2013. Revenue contributions from
dry freight containers and specialised containers were
70.6% and 29.4% respectively, compared with 73.7%
and 26.3% respectively in 2013. The production of 53’
US domestic containers surged during the review year,
driven by the economic recovery in the United States,
with orders doubling that of 2013.

With respect to specialised containers, the Group’s
offshore container interest was further boosted in the
first quarter of the financial year when it invested into
the restructured Modex Group, which specialises in the
manufacturing, trading and leasing of offshore containers.
Moreover, the first batch of offshore containers that
produced by Qidong Singamas Offshore Equipment Co.,
Ltd. was completed in May 2014. Performance of this
new facility in Qidong has been encouraging, with over
1,400 offshore containers completed by the end of the
reporting year.
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Chairman’s Statement I /Zi%

&I

The demand for refrigerated containers rebounded
in 2014. The refrigerated container factory in Qidong
achieved operational breakeven point in the second half
of 2014. Customer feedback was extremely positive and
the management believes that contributions from this
factory will be positively reflected in the coming years
once the production capacity has fully ramped up.

Logistics Services

This segment continued to provide a stable stream of
revenue to the Group, which totalled US$31,075,000
versus US$29,109,000 in 2013. Profit before taxation and
non-controlling interests amounted to US$6,978,000,
compared to US$10,459,000 in 2013, which included
a one-off gain of US$5,114,000 from the disposal of a
depot in Shunde. The total number of containers handled
amounted to approximately 3,170,000 TEUs during the
reporting year against around 3,023,000 TEUs in 2018.
Average daily container storage slightly dropped to
89,000 TEUs compared with 96,200 TEUs in 2013,

As part of the management’s efforts to bolster the
logistics business, it increased the Group’s shareholding
in a depot in Xiamen, rising from 28% to 35% in early
2015. The increased stake was motivated by the depot’s
encouraging performance and ability to provide steady
income to the Group. Moreover, the Group will be able
to derive benefit from Xiamen’s geographical location,
as well as preferential policies implemented by the
Xiamen Government aimed at encouraging container
manufacturing and development of the local port facilities.
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Chairman’s Statement T /Fi%

PROSPECTS

There are several positive developments that suggest
the new financial year will present greater opportunities
for the container industry. A significant number of ULTRA
large container vessel deliveries are scheduled from
2015 through to 2017, while the price of corten steel is
expected to gradually rebound, which will drive the price
of containers upwards accordingly. What is more, the
replacement cycle of old containers will gather pace as
the performance of shipping companies stabilise. Yet
another potential stimulus is the decline in the price of
petroleum during 2014, which in turn has freed up capital
for shipping companies to acquire more containers.

While the management is cautiously optimistic about the
container industry, it is also aware of lingering challenges,
including investigations in the United States pertaining to
the alleged dumping of 53’ domestic dry containers from
Mainland China. Even though sales from such containers
account for only a fraction of the Group’s overall revenue,
the management will closely monitor developments,
maintaining the view that demand for such specialised
containers will return to normal in the near future.

With regards to the logistics segment, the challenges and
opportunities will lie in further expanding revenue sources.
On 21 March 2015, the Group signed the Strategic
Cooperation Framework Agreement with Guangxi
Beibu Gulf International Port Group Ltd. to develop a
container freight station in Guangxi and to explore further
cooperation in container manufacturing and the cold
chain logistic business. Guangxi is one of the provinces
which has included in the construction of Silk Road
Economic Belt and the 21st Century Maritime Silk Road,
the management believes this investment project holds
potential growth of the Group’s logistic business going
forward.
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SHARE REPURCHASE

Consistent with the management’s commitment to
maintaining the well-being of the Group, and protecting
its long-term interest, a share repurchase exercise was
implemented towards the close of the financial year
(15 December 2014). 2,000,000 of its ordinary shares
were acquired at an aggregate price of HK$2,524,860.
The Company has repurchased another 1,000,000
ordinary shares on 22 January 2015 at an aggregate
price of HK$1,206,160. Consequent to these two share
repurchase exercises, the Company has acquired and
cancelled approximately 0.1239% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company immediately prior to such
repurchases and cancellations. As the Board considers
that the value of the Company’s shares is consistently
undervalued, it trusts that the action taken will go towards
addressing this trend. The Board also believes that given
the current financial resource of the Company, the share
repurchase will not affect the Company’s solid financial
position.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to offer my
appreciation to all of our business partners, shareholders
and customers for their unwavering support. | would
also like to extend my gratitude to members of the
Board and the management for their diligence during
the latest financial year. Certainly, the entire Singamas
staff is deserving of praise as well for their hard work
and commitment in these challenging times. | have the
utmost confidence in the Group’s ability to continue
making strides forward, spurred on by the dynamism of
the Singamas workforce and the loyal support from all of
our stakeholders.

Mr. Teo Siong Seng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2015
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During the past year, though there was a strong
demand for new containers, the average selling
price (“ASP”) of containers has declined. What are
the Company’s solutions to moderate the effect?

Due to the decline in raw material prices, especially
the price of corten steel, the ASP of 20’ dry freight
containers slipped to US$2,086, 5% lower than the
corresponding price last year. In order to mitigate
the effects from the contraction of operating
margins due to the decline in ASP, it is important to
optimise operating efficiency in all aspects through
ongoing automation of various manufacturing
activities and implementing more stringent cost
controls.

With the improved demand for new containers in
2014, what is the current market-wide inventory
level of new containers? What is the order
book looking like for dry freight containers and
specialised containers?

Due to the high production volume in 2014, the
current new container inventory is around 750,000
twenty-foot equivalent units (“TEUS”), which is
slightly more than one month’s requirement. We
currently have two months of orders on hand
for both dry freight containers and specialised
containers, which is in line with the industry norm.

In view of higher profit margins enjoyed by
specialised containers and the rebound in demand
for refrigerated containers in 2014, how does
Singamas plan to further expand this business in
the long run?

We are committed to the new product development

in order to meet our customers’ diverse
requirements and expectations.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2014
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Our refrigerated container factory in Qidong has
fully ramped up and it started to generate positive
contributions to the Group’s business. With very
positive feedback from customers on quality,
on-time delivery and customer services, this
factory prepares us well for the increasing demand
for refrigerated containers in the coming years.

What are Singamas’ expectations for the global
trading environment for 20157 How is the Group
preparing to meet the anticipated rising market
demand in the future?

Although most economists only expect moderate
growth in global trade during 2015, the recent
sharp reduction in oil prices is expected to
stimulate economic growth in oil-importing
countries which in turn increases the purchasing
power of their consumers. Besides, with promising
economic growth in United States, we expect
container demand will remain strong in 2015.
Based on this expectation, we will continue to
implement our proven business model, and further
automate our production to enhance productivity
and efficiency and better capture any business
opportunities in the coming year.

What is Singamas’ expectation for the vessels
delivery business in 20157

Based on industry publications, the scheduled
delivery of vessels would be around 250 fleets in
2015, with an estimated increase in total shipping
capacity of approximate 1.9 million TEUs. Among
the 250 fleets to be delivered in 2015, 64 fleets
have a capacity of over 10,000 TEUs.

Frequently Asked Questions —/Z1Ef

BEMEELSRERMENERIBEE2E
RIERL N ASEEEBHERLE
EHER < FPHERIMNERE SR
ERNEMEPREEIFEME - £
RIBOET  SECEHELE -
FARRTI5 S RE AT BT F

FEEN_T-AELRERANE
017 2 9 B A T 4 T 2 S 4
BT TR 2

HARNBDEEEROBAEREZE
R-ZT-hFERRMEER - BT
(EPNCERNESEED S SRl eap::fimye:
MR R - MR ELBERNEE
EMEEN o 1o AREBEEERR
BE - BMOEBR_Z—1F  mHH
SRMENFREHEITRDY - BRI -
RPSEBEERITZARNREEER -
WHE—FHEEBIEABCARSEE
DR E - RERFEFMICERHE
1 o

SEFEH TR FROMMAR EEA
SAfA?

BETETYNERBER  —T—1F
R4 B 250/ - B2
=T & 1 N4 1,900,000 fE H IR 12 % £ #
e R E—RAFRNAI250MA
64 8 1% /3 15138 2 838 10,000 fE R 12
EEEMHAM -

TER-NEFR - BWEELSEAER2A 15



Frequently Asked Questions —fZ 12

The year 2014 saw a decline in raw material prices,
particularly the price of corten steel. As the cost of
corten steel is the major determinant of container
price, what is your view on the price trend of
corten steel?

We expect the oversupply issue among the steel
industry in China to persist in 2015 and it would
not be resolved overnight. However, the oversupply
issue has forced Chinese steelmakers to react,
such as to bring forward maintenance plans in
order to limit the supply. We expect the corten
steel price would maintain a low level during the
first half of 2015 but slowly increase in the second
half of 2015.

The Group has made a further investment
to Modex Group in 2014. What is the latest
performance of Qidong Singamas Offshore
Equipment Co., Ltd. (“QSOE”)? What are
Singamas’ expectations for the revenue and profit
contribution of QSOE to the Group in 20157

Besides manufacturing, Modex Group is also
engaged in trading and leasing of offshore
containers. An offshore container is a special
type of container use in fixed and/or floating
offshore installations. The Group has made
further investments in Modex Group during the
year increasing its shareholdings to 28.5% as
at year-end 2014. This investment is in line with
our corporate policy to develop higher-margin
specialised containers.

Moreover, QSOE, a factory which has jointly
established by the Group and Modex Group
to manufacture offshore containers, produced
its first batch of offshore containers in May
2014. Performance of this new facility has
been encouraging, with more than 1,400 units
completed in 2014. We expect this facility would
make a positive profit contribution to the Group in
2015.
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The investigations in the United States pertaining
to the alleged dumping of 53’ domestic dry
containers from Mainland China has posed some
challenges to the industry. How would the Group’s
performance be affected if China loses in the
dispute and how would the Group prepare for it?

The recovery of the US economy has driven
strong demand for 53’ domestic dry containers
in 2014 with orders doubling those of 2013. The
alleged dumping of 53’ domestic dry containers
will inevitably affect customer sentiment on placing
orders. However, with the strong economic
rebound in US, we believe that orders for such
specialised containers will return to normal in the
near future.

Frequently Asked Questions —/Z1Ef
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Honorary Chairman,
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Management Profile

The Honorary Chairman and Directors at the date of this

RAEHRAPEEZREBIFERESZNT

annual report are as follows:

HONORARY CHAIRMAN

Mr. Chang Yun Chung

DIRECTORS
Mr. Teo Siong Seng "°

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung "

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng "

Mr. Kuan Kim Kin #*

Mr. Tan Chor Kee

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok,
David

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan #

Mr. Ong Ka Thai ©

Mr. Yang, Victor #

Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director and
Chief Operating Officer
Executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Independent
Non-executive Director
Independent
Non-executive Director
Independent
Non-executive Director
Independent

Non-executive Director

# Audit Committee Member

" Management Committee Member
© Nomination Committee Member

4 Remuneration Committee Member

Brief biographical details of the Honorary Chairman and
Directors at the date of this annual report are as follows:

HONORARY CHAIRMAN

Mr. Chang Yun Chung (also known as Mr. Teo Woon
Tiong), aged 96, the former Chairman of the Board, was
appointed on 20 April 1993 but was then appointed as
Honorary Chairman of the Company on 27 May 2013
following his retirement as a director of the Company.
Mr. Chang started his shipping career in Singapore in
1949 and is the founder of Pacific International Lines
(Private) Limited (“PIL”), the controlling and substantial
shareholder of the Company as defined under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Chang is the father
of Mr. Teo Siong Seng and Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, directors

18 Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2014

REIRF

SRAFIEE

EF

SRR S A o TEREETTHARE
REIR A" HITEFREEEERE
SREARSLA" HITEE

FRSR ST A HHITEF
RIBETE IFATTEF
LiLrlEib e BUIHTTER
EIDINGS e BIHFRTEF
ERFLE L BIIBTTEE
BERLE BUIHTTER
PEREEEME

"EERZFEEME

CIAEZREME

L HHESBAKS

RAFHREPEE 2 RBIRFRZEST 2B
EABERIT

REBEIRF

RAREE GH AMTEFTEER RN
—NAN=FMB -+ HEEE HHERERE
HEERARBES R-_FT—=%F1A
"t REZERRARRELIRE - RELAR
— NN FEHIMEFAREMESSE - L/K
FrBAERAR (TKFME]) (RESEHA
RHMARARESF LHRAERA/ARRZ
ERREZERR) ZB8IMA o REETIARRA
EERMBAELRABIEE 2R - RAEE
EXNEFIRRIER » RIEERERF KA
EMBRAREB A FMEEBRZEE -
BEEERTFHE(ER)ERAR(EEK

Vel



Honorary Chairman, Directors and Senior Management Profile 442+ /% - EE NS EEEASEN

of the Company. Mr. Chang graduated from the Xiamen
Datung College. Mr. Chang is the Chairman of the PIL
Group of companies in Singapore, which is engaged in
shipping and related businesses. He is also the Chairman
of Pacific International Lines (H.K.) Limited (“PILHK”) of
Hong Kong, a subsidiary of PIL, Maya Corporation Pte.
Ltd. of Singapore, Malaysia Shipping Corporation Sdn.
Bhd. of Malaysia, Eastern Maritime (Thailand) Ltd. and
Pacific Seatran Lines Ltd. of Thailand.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, B.Sc. (Naval Architect), aged
60, was appointed on 20 April 1993, became the
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
on 1 February 1997 and was appointed as Chairman
of the Company on 27 May 2013. Mr. Teo is a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company and he is also
the younger brother of Mr. Teo Tiou Seng. Mr. Teo
started his shipping career with PIL Group in Singapore
since 1979 and was appointed the managing director
of PIL in October 1992. He is an executive director of
various PIL subsidiaries and joint venture companies
whose activities include shipowning, liner shipping, ship
agencies, freight forwarding, container manufacturing,
ships recycling, marine services, container depot/terminal
operation, warehousing, logistics park, real estate and
travel. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of China Shipping Container Lines Company
Limited (“China Shipping”). Mr. Teo has tendered his
resignation from the office of independent non-executive
director of China Shipping and his resignation will take
effect upon appointment of the new independent non-
executive director of China Shipping to be approved
at the extraordinary general meeting of China Shipping
to be held on 8 May 2015. He is the Chairman of The
Standard Steamship Owners’ Protection and Indemnity
Association (Asia) Ltd., Singapore Maritime Institute
Governing Council and Singapore Business Federation.
He is also a Council Member of China Overseas
Exchange Association and the Immediate Past President
of Singapore Chinese Chamber of Commerce & Industry.
Mr. Teo is the Honorary Consul of The United Republic
of Tanzania in Singapore. He is the Honorary Citizen
of Foshan City (Guangdong Province) and Yixing City
(Jiangsu Province) of China.
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Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, aged 57, was appointed on
1 March 2012. Mr. Chan is the Chief Operating Officer of
the Company and is a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. He joined Eng Kong Container Services
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, on 1 July 1994.
He has more than 35 years of combined experience
in marketing, container depot management, container
inspection and repair, and container leasing. Prior to
joining the Company, he was the Technical Director of
Unicon International Ltd., a container surveying company
with major interests in the Far East.

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, aged 62, was appointed on
26 June 1996 as Executive Director of the Company and
is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Teo is the elder brother of Mr. Teo Siong Seng and
has been engaging in shipping business since 1977.
Mr. Teo graduated and holds a Master Degree in
Business Administration from the University of Western
Ontario, Richard lvey School of Business. He has
more than 32 years of working experience in container
transport business and is also a director of PIL and the
managing director of PILHK.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kuan Kim Kin, aged 66, was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company on 15 July
1998. Mr. Kuan has been an executive director of the
Finance Division of PIL since 7 June 2004. He also
holds directorship in various PIl’s Group of Companies.
Other than their relationship with PIL, these various PIls
Group of Companies are third parties independent of the
Company and connected persons of the Company. Prior
to joining PIL, he held a number of senior financial and
accounting positions across diverse business groups,
including two public listed companies in Malaysia.
Mr. Kuan is a fellow member of The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants (United Kingdom).
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Mr. Tan Chor Kee, aged 62, was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company on 2 July 2013.
Mr. Tan graduated from the University of Singapore with
a first class honour degree in Mechanical Engineering.
He has more than 37 years of experience in shipping
particularly in equipment management, costs control,
corporate planning, logistics operations, agency and
liner business. Mr. Tan is currently the Deputy Managing
Director of PIL.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, aged 66, was appointed
as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 1 November 2012. Mr. Cheng graduated in 1975 from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor (Honors)
Degree in Social Sciences. He has extensive experience
in banking, corporate finance and shipfinance. Mr. Cheng
has retired from the Head of Shipfinance in Asia of Crédit
Agricole CIB with effective from 1 May 2014, but remain
as the Senior Advisor to the Global Shipping Group of the
Bank. He is also a director and the Honorary Chairman of
Credit Agricole Asia Shipping Limited. Crédit Agricole CIB
and Credit Agricole Asia Shipping Limited are third parties
independent of the Company and connected persons of
the Company.

Mr. Cheng is a member of the Working Group on
Transportation under the Hong Kong Economic
Development Commission, and also a member of the
Hong Kong Maritime Industry Council of Transport and
Housing Bureau, Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region.

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan, aged 56, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
1 March 2011. Mr. Lau is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Lau
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Master’s Degree in Professional Accounting. He
has extensive experience in accounting and financial
management. Mr. Lau is currently an independent non-
executive director of CCT Land Holdings Limited (formerly
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known as CCT Tech International Limited), a company
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is also
an independent non-executive director of Glory Mark Hi-
Tech (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the growth
enterprise market of the Stock Exchange. CCT Land
Holdings Limited and Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings)
Limited are third parties independent of the Company
and connected persons of the Company.

Mr. Ong Ka Thai, aged 60, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since 17 May 1997. Mr. Ong is currently the Chairman
of various companies including Ong Pacific (H.K.) Ltd.,
Ong Pacific Capital Ltd., Ong First Tradition Holdings
Pte. Ltd., Ong Commodities Pte. Ltd. and Ong Pacific
Pte. Ltd.. Mr. Ong is also the President and CEO of
KGI Ong Capital Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as Ong First
Tradition Pte. Ltd.). These companies are third parties
independent of the Company and connected persons
of the Company. Mr. Ong graduated from the University
of California at Los Angeles with a Bachelor of Arts
Degree majoring in Economics, had served as the CEO
for a number of multinational joint ventures since then.
Mr. Ong is currently an independent non-executive
director of Shanghai International Shanghai Growth
Investment Limited, a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ong was previously an
independent non-executive director of China Bohai Bank
Limited. Except for the provision of banking facilities by
China Bohai Bank Limited to subsidiaries of the Group,
Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment
Limited and China Bohai Bank Limited are third parties
independent of the Company and connected persons of
the Company. Mr. Ong has over 38 years of experience in
the manufacturing, corporate and trade finance, regional
equity, futures and commodities trading, investment
banking and corporate advisory services, as well as direct
and private equity investment.
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Mr. Yang, Victor, aged 69, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 15 April 2008. Mr. Yang was a founding partner of
Boughton Peterson Yang Anderson, Solicitors, Hong
Kong and he is also a qualified lawyer in Canada and the
United Kingdom. Mr. Yang has over 41 years experience
in legal practice primarily in the areas of corporate
finance, commercial law, mergers, acquisitions and
taxation. He is presently an executive committee member
and an immediate past governor of the Canadian
Chamber of Commerce, a council member of Haw
Par Music Foundation Limited, a director of the Hong
Kong Foundation for UBC Limited and a member of the
University of British Columbia, Dean of Law’s Council
of Advisors. Mr. Yang was a past board member of the
Canadian International School of Hong Kong Limited and
a past member of the Major Sports Events Committee
of the Home Affairs Bureau, Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Mr. Yang is also an independent
non-executive director of China Agri-Industries Holdings
Limited and Playmates Toys Limited, both of which are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Yang remained as a non-executive director of Lei Shing
Hong Limited after the company privatized in March 2008
and resigned as an independent non-executive director
of Media Chinese International Limited as of 1 October
2009. On 1 April 2014, Mr. Yang was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of One Media Group
Limited, a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited,
Playmates Toys Limited, Lei Shing Hong Limited, Media
Chinese International Limited and One Media Group
Limited, all are third parties independent of the Company
and connected persons of the Company.

All Directors, including the Managing Director of the
Company who shall subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years but shall be eligible for
re-election, are subject to retirement and re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. For details
of their respective profiles, please refer to the circular
accompanied with this annual report.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management at the date of this annual report
are as follows:

Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer
Chief Operating Officer
Senior Vice President

Mr. Teo Siong Seng

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung
Mr. Chao Chun Yen,

Winston
Ms. Chung Pui King, Chief Financial Officer and
Rebecca Company Secretary

Mr. Hsu Yung Ming Vice President (appointed on
1 April 2014)

Vice President (appointed on
1 April 2014)

Vice President (appointed on

15 October 2014)

Mr. Ren Yudong

Mr. Yu Bing

Details of the senior management at the date of this
annual report are as follows:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, was appointed as President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 February
1997, then appointed as Chairman of the Company on
27 May 20183. Please refer to the Directors section for
details.

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, was appointed as Executive
Vice President of Marketing and General Manager — Hong
Kong Container Depot and Terminal Operations on 1 July
1994 and was appointed as Chief Operating Officer of
the Company on 1 November 2012. Please refer to the
Directors section for details.

Mr. Chao Chun Yen, Winston, B. Shipping and
Transportation Management, aged 65, Senior Vice
President, joined the Company on 15 November 2012
and is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Chao has more than 32 years’ experience
in shipping management and related businesses. Prior
to joining the Company, he was an executive director of
Pacific International Lines (China) Ltd..
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Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, M.B.A., HKICPA,
FCCA, aged 46, was appointed as Chief Financial Officer
of the Company on 2 February 2013 and was appointed
as Company Secretary of the Company on 10 September
2013. Ms. Chung joined the Group on 1 January 1996.
She has more than 23 years of combined experience in
public accountancy, sourcing and manufacturing.

Mr. Hsu Yung Ming, aged 65, was appointed as Vice
President of the Company since 1 April 2014. Mr. Hsu
is concurrently acting as General Manager of Shanghai
Pacific International Container Co., Ltd., and is in charge
of various divisions of the Group including the Technology
& Development Center, the Resources & Engineering
Management Department and the Quality Management
Department. Mr. Hsu graduated from Taiwan Dong Wu
University major in Machinery and Business Management.
Mr. Hsu was previously senior management of various
companies in container manufacturing and related
business in Taiwan. Mr. Hsu joined the Company in 2006
acting as General Manager of Ningbo Pacific Container
Co., Ltd.. Mr. Hsu has over 40 years of experience in
container manufacturing and corporate management.

Mr. Ren Yudong, aged 53, was appointed as Vice
President of the Company on 1 April 2014. Mr. Ren is
currently the General Manager of Shanghai Baoshan
Pacific Container Co., Ltd. and Qidong Singamas
Energy Equipment Co., Ltd.. He is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ren joined the
Company on 1 August 2002. He has more than 33 years
of experience in container manufacturing.
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Mr. Yu Bing, BE (Bachelor of Engineering), Senior RE 54 - BE (Bachelor of Engineering), Senior
Economist, aged 53, Vice President, joined the Company  Economist * 53 5% * BI## - MR T —MMF
on 15 October 2014 and also a director of certain THATHBMNBEARRAR AKX FHMBEES
subsidiaries of PIL Group. Mr. Yu has more than 27 years THIBARIZESE - REENMEERE - T
of experience in shipping industry management, factory &I « BIfR 8 5 ARV 7577 E A iR
management, international trade and related logistic 27 F Z#&% « MR IMBARR R ZA » BEX
business. Prior to joining the Company, he was a deputy  F#:i7% (R E) BR A A2 BIBALIE -

general manager of Pacific International Lines (China)

Ltd..
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company
has consistently adopted and complied with the
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) as guidelines to reinforce our corporate
governance principles, except for certain deviations
which are summarised below:

(1)

Code Provision A.2.1 — As Mr. Teo Siong Seng
took up both roles as the Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
are not separated. The Board considers that
this structure has the advantage of a strong
and consistent leadership which is conducive to
making and implementing decisions efficiently and
consistently;

Code Provision A.6.7 — Due to other commitments,
two non-executive Directors had not attended the
annual general meeting of the Company held on
27 May 2014, and two non-executive Directors
and one independent non-executive Director had
not attended the general meeting of the Company
held on 19 November 2014; and

Code Provision A.1.7 — For the purpose of
approving the continuing connected transactions
as more particularly announced by the Company
on 31 December 2014, the board papers
were circulated to the directors (including
the independent non-executive directors) for
consideration and approval in lieu of a physical
meeting for the reasons that: (1) the papers
were circulated to all the directors prior to their
approval and sufficient time and opportunity had
been provided to each of them to consider the
matters contemplated therein; (2) each of Mr. Teo
Siong Seng, Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, Mr. Kuan Kim
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Kin and Mr. Tan Chor Kee is also a director of
PIL and the Company. However, in view of each
of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined
under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules) in respect
of the total transactions amount of the continuing
connected transaction was less than 5%, the
Board considered the above directors’ interests
in the continuing connected transaction was not
material; (3) none of the directors requested for a
physical meeting for the purpose of considering
and approving the matters; and (4) Mr. Teo Siong
Seng, Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, Mr. Kuan Kim Kin and
Mr. Tan Chor Kee, who (as directors of both PIL
and the Company), have voluntarily abstained from
voting at the board resolutions.

Save for the above deviations, none of the Directors is
aware of any information which would reasonably indicate
that the Company is not, or, was not during the year in
compliance with the code provisions of the Code as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange.

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”/
“Directors”) believes that appropriate corporate governance
practices are essential for the Company to enhance its
accountability and transparency so as to achieve a balance
of the interests of shareholders, customers, employees
and investment partners of the Company in all material
respects. Accordingly, the Company aims at maintaining
high standards of corporate governance practices.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of
the Directors, all of the Directors have complied with, for
any part of the accounting period covered by this report,
the required standard as set out in the Model Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Apart from its statutory and fiduciary responsibilities,
the Board is responsible for reviewing the financial
performance of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) and approving and monitoring
the Group’s strategic plans, major investments, funding
proposals and risk management policies. The Board is
also responsible for monitoring managerial performance,
achieving return for the shareholders of the Company
each year, and promoting good corporate governance
by reviewing the recommendations made from audit
committee (“Audit Committee”), management committee,
nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”) and
remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”) of
the Company.

The Company’s articles of association (“Articles”) provide
that if a director has a conflict of interest in a material
matter, such director must abstain from voting and not be
counted in quorum.

The implementation of daily operations is generally or
specifically delegated to the management but Board
approval is required for material transactions such as
acquisitions and disposals of assets of the Group.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and four independent
non-executive Directors. No alternative Director was
appointed during 2014. The Board members for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and up to the date are as
follows:

Executive Directors

Teo Siong Seng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Chan Kwok Leung (Chief Operating Officer)
Teo Tiou Seng

Non-executive Directors

Kuan Kim Kin
Tan Chor Kee
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheng Fu Kwok, David
Lau Ho Kit, lvan

Ong Ka Thai

Yang, Victor

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 18
to 26 of this annual report. The relationships (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationships) among members of the Board are also
disclosed therein.

The Board held four meetings in 2014. The Board would
meet more frequently as and when required. The 2014
annual general meeting (“2014 AGM”) at which the
external auditors attended was convened on 27 May
2014. A general meeting of the Company was also
held on 19 November 2014 (“General Meeting”) for
approving the continuing connected transactions and the
amendments to the Articles.

Details of Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings
held for the year ended 31 December 2014, the 2014
AGM and General Meeting are set out below:

Name of Directors

Teo Siong Seng SRINER
Chan Kwok Leung PR B R
Teo Tiou Seng SREAE
Kuan Kim Kin Ra SR
Tan Chor Kee PRAE
Cheng Fu Kwok, David S R
Lau Ho Kit, lvan 2n] £t
Ong Ka Thai FRZE
Yang, Victor 15 A
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As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training,
the Directors are updated with the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time to ensure
compliance of the same by all Directors. All Directors are
encouraged to attend external forums or training courses
on relevant topics which may count towards continuous
professional development training.

Pursuant to the Code, Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. For the year ended 31 December 2014, all
Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities either by attending
training courses or by reading materials relevant to the
Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

The participation by individual Directors in 2014 is
recorded in the table below:

Name of Directors

Teo Siong Seng SRR
Chan Kwok Leung PR BT 42
Teo Tiou Seng KRR
Kuan Kim Kin R iR
Tan Chor Kee PRIEE
Cheng Fu Kwok, David 285 [
Lau Ho Kit, lvan EIRIEE
Ong Ka Thai FRE
Yang, Victor 5 6 B

FRUESHERI 280 EFETKE
AR LIMRAUREMEREERE < &NE
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RIS )RR E RSNV A B R BB
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Participation in Continuous
Professional Development in 2014
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

As Mr. Teo Siong Seng took up both roles as the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer are not separated. The Board considers
that this structure has the advantage of a strong and
consistent leadership which is conducive to making and
implementing decisions efficiently and consistently.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

According to the service agreements entered into
between each of the non-executive Director or
independent non-executive Director and the Company,
the term of appointment is generally for one year but
subject to retirement and shall be eligible for re-election
at annual general meetings (“AGM”) under the Articles.

Under the Articles, every Director, other than the
Managing Director and/or Chief Executive Officer who
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three
years, shall retire from office at AGM but shall be eligible
for re-election.

Under the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting of the Company
after such Director’s appointment.

The Company’s circular of its AGM contained detailed
information on election of Directors, including detailed
biographies, interests, and (where appropriate)
independence of all Directors standing for re-election.

Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules, the
Company has received a written confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence
to the Company. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

1.

Audit Committee

The Board has established the Audit Committee
to investigate and handle matters within its terms
of reference and make recommendations to the
Board for any necessary improvement. The full
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website (http://
www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website
(http://www.singamas.com).

The current members of the Audit Committee
include two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan (Chairman) and Mr.
Yang, Victor, and a non-executive Director, namely,
Mr. Kuan Kim Kin. None of them is a former partner
of the existing external auditors of the Company.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports the
findings and recommendations to the Board after
each meeting.

The Audit Committee has regular meetings at least
twice a year. In 2014, a total of three meetings
were convened and held with satisfactory
attendance. The details of Audit Committee
members’ attendance in 2014 are as follows:
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Number of Attendance

Committee members ZEBRE
Lau Ho Kit, lvan (Chairman) — 2IeJ#t5c4 (/&)
Kuan Kim Kin BASRIE SR
Yang, Victor BEALE

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties. The Audit
Committee is accountable to the Board and
minutes of meetings are circulated to the Board for
information.
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The following is a summary of the work of the Audit
Committee during the year under review:

(@) reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial
reports for the year ended 31 December
2013 and for the six months ended 30 June
2014,

(b)  reviewed the external auditors’ statutory
audit plan and the letters of representation;

(©) reviewed the findings and recommendations
of the internal auditors;

(d)  considered and approved the 2014 audit
fees and terms of engagement for the
external auditors;

(e) reviewed the “Continuing Connected
Transactions” set forth on pages 48 to 55 of
this annual report; and

4] reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems of the
Group.

On 20 March 2015, the Audit Committee met to
review the 2014 consolidated financial statements,
including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, in conjunction with external
auditors. Based on this review and discussions
with the management and external auditors,
the Audit Committee endorsed the accounting
treatment adopted by the Company and had,
to the best of its ability, assured itself that the
disclosure of the financial information in this report
complies with the applicable accounting standards
and Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee therefore recommended the Board’s
approval of the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014 for public
release.
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EEEFA - B Egn TEAn
N

@ TZHHE-Z—=F+=H
—t—HILEFERHEZF M@
FRA=ZTHLEANEANEEER
RETBERE

b) ERIINSZEREDEETEER AT S
RIEREHRE

(©  ERIAEPZEENRE L E A
PR

(d EERBE_T—MEINBEZE
A A N R HE R 65K

e EBEENAFRFEISEEESS
B [H#HERERS ] &

M  FEARERIEENERERE

R-T-—hFE=ZA-+H FEZXES
B EIMNEZ B EN — T - NFE N
BUBHRE  BREHAKRERA S
AARAIRBERHER - RIFMEEEE
R AR BT E &SN A2 BLAD & 7
& BERRZERERARRMEAN S
ARESN WEFRNBRARESEE
MM EMNTEER 2 ER L E™
MRS - At - BREZE SRS
BE-ZTNF+_A=1T—HLFE
RAEMBRRNEFTSHERFADRE
i o

Vel



Corporate Governance Report ¥ & A%%

The Audit Committee also recommended the
re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as the Group’s external auditors for 2015 and
that the related resolution shall be put forth for
shareholders’ consideration and approval at the
2015 AGM.

Nomination Committee

The Board has established the Nomination
Committee on 27 March 2012 for nominating
potential candidates for directorship, reviewing
the nomination of Directors, assessing the
independence of each independent non-executive
Director and making recommendations to the
Board on such appointments. The full terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website
(http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s
website (http://www.singamas.com).

The current members of the Nomination Committee
include one executive director and Chairman of the
Board, namely, Mr. Teo Siong Seng (Chairman) and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan and Mr. Ong Ka Thai.

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee
reports the findings and recommendations to the
Board after each meeting.

In 2014, the Nomination Committee met once and
attendance of individual members at Nomination
Committee meeting in the year is summarized
below:
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The Nomination Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The
Nomination Committee is accountable to the Board
and minutes of meetings/resolutions are circulated
to the Board for information.

The following is a summary of the work of the
Nomination Committee during the year under
review:

(@)

made recommendations to the Board and
determined the policy on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships, the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and assessed independence of independent
non-executive Directors;

reviewed the policy of diversity of the Board;
and

reviewed the size, structure and diversity
of the Board, and assessed the balance
of skills and experience of the Board as
expedient with diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the
business of the Company.

All new appointments and re-appointments of
Directors are based on the following criteria:

Integrity
Independent mindedness

Possession of core competencies that
meet the current needs of the Company
and the ability to complement the skills and
competencies of the existing Directors

Readiness to commit time and effort to carry
out duties and responsibilities effectively
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o A good track record of experience at a
senior level in corporations/organisations

° Financial knowledge

The Company’s circular of its forthcoming AGM
contained detailed information on election of
Directors, including detailed biographies, interests,
and (where appropriate) independence of all
Directors standing for re-election.

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy
effective from 1 September 2013 (“Policy”), details
of which are summarised as follows:

(@) In considering the Board’s composition,
a wider range of perspectives including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service will be duly considered in the
selection of candidates.

(b)  All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria.

(c)  To ensure the effectiveness of the policy, the
Nomination Committee will review, discuss
any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board
for consideration and approval.

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established Remuneration
Committee to make recommendations on the
Company’s remuneration policy and structure
for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management. No Director and senior management
can determine his own remuneration. The full terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website (http://
www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website
(http://www.singamas.com).
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The current members of the Remuneration
Committee include two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Yang, Victor (Chairman) and
Mr. Ong Ka Thai, and a non-executive Director,
namely, Mr. Kuan Kim Kin.

The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
reports the findings and recommendations to the
Board after each meeting.

In 2014, the Remuneration Committee met two
times and attendance of individual members at
Remuneration Committee meetings in the year is
summarised below:

Committee members ZEEBRE
Yang, Victor (Chairman) BEA(FE)
Ong Ka Thai FRZE

Kuan Kim Kin FAsRiE

The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The
Remuneration Committee is accountable to the
Board and minutes of meetings are circulated to
the Board for information.

The following is a summary of the work of the
Remuneration Committee during the year under
review:

(@) reviewed and made recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s Directors’ fees
for the financial year of 2014,

(b) reviewed and approved the salary adjustment
of the Company’s executive Directors and
senior management staff;
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(c) reviewed and approved compensation
payable to salaried Directors and executives
in connection with any loss or termination of
their office or appointment; and

(d)  reviewed and approved the Company’s
annual performance-based bonus policy and
payments.

The Remuneration Committee is delegated to
be responsible for determining the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment, to
make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors and to
consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

Details of each Director’s remuneration and any
remuneration payable to members of senior
management for the year under review are set out
on pages 165 to 167 of this annual report.

Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee has been
established. The Board is responsible for the
corporate governance functions with the following
duties:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of
Directors;
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(©) to review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors;

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report; and

] such other corporate governance duties and
functions set out in the Code (as amended
from time to time) for which the Board is
responsible.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company’s Audit Committee has recommended
the Board that, subject to shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming AGM, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be
reappointed as the external auditors for 2015.

During the year under review, the fees paid to the
Company’s external Hong Kong auditors for audit work
amounted to HK$2,660,000 and for non-audit and
review activities amounted to HK$441,000 (including
HK$240,000 for interim review, HK$44,000 for tax review
and HK$157,000 for other related services).

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca (“Ms. Chung”) (a certified
public accountant), who was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company on 10 September 2013.
Ms. Chung is currently the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. The biographical details of Ms. Chung are
set out under the section headed “Honorary Chairman,
Directors and Senior Management Profile”.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

All Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for
overseeing the preparation of financial statements of each
financial period, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash
flow for that period. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, adopted all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards which are in conformity
to the International Financial Reporting Standards, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable
and prepared the accounts on the going concern basis.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted
annual reviews of the effectiveness of the system
of internal controls covering all controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, broad-
based risk management processes, and physical and
information system security of selected operating units
of the Company. No suspected frauds and irregularities,
internal control deficiencies or suspected infringement
of laws, rules and regulations have come to the Audit
Committee’s attention to cause the Audit Committee to
believe that the system of internal controls is inadequate.
The Board, through the review of the Audit Committee, is
satisfied that the Group has fully complied with the Code
provisions on internal controls during the year under
review.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

The auditors’ responsibility is stated on pages 70 to 71
under the “Independent Auditor’s Report” section.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1.

Procedures for shareholders to
convene a general meeting

Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of all shareholders of the Company
having a right to vote at general meetings can
deposit a written request at 19/F., Rykadan Capital
Tower, 135 Hoi Bun Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
the registered office of the Company, for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

The written request must state the general nature
of the business to be dealt with at the meeting,
signed by the shareholders concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more of those shareholders.

Procedures for putting forward
proposals at Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”)

Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the
total voting rights of all shareholders having at the
date of the request the right to vote at the AGM; or
not less than 50 shareholders holding shares in the
Company who have a right to vote at the resolution
of the AGM can submit a written request to move
a resolution at the AGM.

The written request must state the resolution,
signed by all the shareholders concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form (which
between them contain the signatures of all the
shareholders concerned).

The written request must be deposited at
19/F., Rykadan Capital Tower, 135 Hoi Bun Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of
the Company, for the attention of the Company
Secretary not less than six weeks before the
meeting to which it relates or if later, the time at
which notice is given of that meeting.
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Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the
total voting rights of all shareholders having a
relevant right to vote, or at least 50 shareholders
who have a relevant right to vote, may request
the Company to circulate, to shareholders of the
Company entitled to receive notice of a general
meeting, a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to (a) a matter mentioned in
a proposed resolution to be dealt with at that
meeting, or (b) other business to be dealt with at
that meeting. The request must be deposited at
19/F., Rykadan Capital Tower, 135 Hoi Bun Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the
Company, identify the statement to be circulated,
signed by all the shareholders concerned and be
received by the Company not less than seven days
before the meeting to which it relates.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited. Shareholders and the investment
community may at any time make a request for
the Company’s information to the extent that such
information is publicly available. Shareholders
may also refer to the contacts under “Investor
Relations” section in the Company’s website
(http://www.singamas.com) for enquiries.

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the
Board. All enquiries shall be in writing and sent by
post to the registered office of the Company or by
e-mail to info@singamas.com for attention of the
Company Secretary.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company provides updated information of the
Group to all shareholders when it becomes available and
appropriate, through the publication of interim and annual
reports, circulars, notices, media releases or other means
in compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements.
The Company has made such information available on
the Company’s website (http://www.singamas.com)
as well as on an independent website provider (http://
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/singamas). The purpose is to
provide our shareholders an alternative channel to access
the Group’s information easily and reach the potential
shareholders globally. The Company’s constitutional
documents has been revised during the year under
review, which was uploaded on the Stock Exchange’s
website (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s
website (http://www.singamas.com) on 19 November
2014.

Apart from providing a forum for Directors’ dialogue
with shareholders in the Company’s general meetings
during the year, the Company continuously enhances
shareholders’ communications by holding press and
analyst conferences locally and overseas during any
reporting period or year. The institutional shareholders
may ask questions on the Company’s operations or
related financial information in such conferences and the
Company would then take the opportunity to explain
to them the latest development of the Group. This
direct communication with shareholders or potential
shareholders would enable them to understand the
Group’s standards and the manner of conducting
businesses. In addition, the Company has a “Frequently
Asked Questions” section in its annual report providing
its shareholders with more clear and concise information
that may be of common concern. Besides, the Company
has responded to letters and telephone enquiries from
shareholders and potential shareholders throughout the
year under review.
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The board of directors (“Board”/”Directors”) of Singamas
Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the
Company’s annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and provision of management services to its
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in notes 19, 21 and 22, respectively
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 72 to 73.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK1.5 cents per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HK1 cent per ordinary
share). Together with the interim dividend of HK1.5
cents per ordinary share (2013: HK3 cents per ordinary
share), total dividend for the year would be HK3 cents
per ordinary share (2013: HK4 cents per ordinary share).
Subject to approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, the proposed final dividend is payable on or
before 31 July 2015 to those shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Friday, 19 June 2015. The register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 17 June 2015
to Friday, 19 June 2015, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 231 to 232 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 43
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures of the Company are set out in notes
19, 21 and 22, respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had bank balances
and cash of US$ 249,793,000 (2013: US$306,640,000)
and total interest-bearing debts of US$ 377,564,000
(20183: US$412,160,000). This represented a gearing
ratio, calculated on the basis of the Group’s total interest-
bearing debts over equity attributable to owners of the
Company, of 0.61 (2013: 0.69) and a net debt to equity
ratio, calculated on the basis of the Group’s net interest-
bearing debts (after deducting bank balances and cash
of US$249,793,000) over equity attributable to owners of
the Company of 0.21 (2013: 0.18).
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With the reduce in finance cost due to lower overall
borrowing rate, the interest coverage ratio of the Group’s
profit before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
(EBITDA) to total net interest expense increased to 11.2
times for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: 9.2
times).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group’s revenues are largely transacted in US
Dollars (“US$”). However, certain operating expenses
are transacted in other currencies including Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”) and Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”). To
monitor the currency risk exposure, the Group’s interest-
bearing debts are mainly in US$, with remaining in RMB.
As at 31 December 2014, approximately 99.0% of the
total (2013: 44.9%) was in US$ with the balance in RMB.

To further strengthen the financial position of the Group
and to ensure stable funding for the Group’s operations in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Company
issued on 14 April 2011 a three-year RMB1,380,000,000
(equivalent to US$210,600,000) notes that were matured
on 14 April 2014 (the “Notes”). On 24 September 2013,
the Company entered into a facility agreement with a
syndicate of banks in respect of a US$310,000,000
term loan and revolving credit facilities for a term of four
years (the “Term Loan”), for the purpose of financing
the corporate funding requirements and the capital
expenditure of the Group, including refinancing of the
existing term loan and the Notes.

Of the total interest-bearing debts as at 31 December
2014, the maturity profile spread over a period of three
years with US$62,564,000 repayable within one year and
US$315,000,000 within two to three years. The Group’s
interest-bearing debts are principally on a floating rate
basis.
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In order to hedge against the interest rate risk arising
from the potential increase in interest rate in relation to
the term loan, the Company entered into three interest
rate swap contracts to swap the floating rate to fixed
rate. The total notional amount of these three contracts
amounted to US$186,000,000, representing 60% of the
Term Loan. The terms of these three interest rate swap
contracts were negotiated to match the terms of the
Term Loan.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group and the
Company are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements. No interest was capitalised by the
Group during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following continuing connected
transactions during 2014:

1. On 30 December 2013, Singamas Terminals (Hong
Kong) Limited (“STHK”), a company engaged in
the business of provision of container depot and
logistics services, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a depot agreement (the
“2014 Depot Agreement”) with Pacific International
Lines (HK) Limited (“PILHK”) to take effect from 1
January 2014, for a term of three years and will be
ending on 31 December 2016. PILHK is currently
a subsidiary of PIL (the controlling and substantial
shareholder of the Company as defined under the
Listing Rules). Accordingly, PILHK is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Since the 2014 Depot Agreement involves
transactions, which occur on a recurring basis
over a period of time, the transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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It was estimated that the amount of STHK’s
transactions with PILHK, on annual basis, for
the three financial years commencing from 1
January 2014 would not exceed 5% for each of
the percentage ratios, other than the profits ratio,
in the threshold tests in Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the transactions are only
subject to the annual reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements and exempt from the
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed in the
announcement published on 31 December 2013 in
compliance with the Listing Rules.

On 30 December 2013, Singamas Logistics (Tianjin)
Co., Ltd. (“SLTC”), a company engaged in the
business of provision of container depot services,
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an addendum to a depot agreement
(the “Depot Agreement”) with the Tianjin Branch of
Pacific International Lines (China) Ltd. (“PIL China
(Tianjin Branch)”) to take effect from 1 January
2014, for a term of three years. In view that PIL
China (Tianjin Branch) is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of PIL, PIL China (Tianjin Branch) is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Since the Depot Agreement involves transactions,
which occur on a recurring basis over a period
of time, the transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

It was estimated that the amount of SLTC’s
transactions with PIL China (Tianjin Branch),
on annual basis, for the three financial years
commencing from 1 January 2014 would not
exceed 5% for each of the percentage ratios,
other than the profits ratio, in the threshold tests
in Rules 14A.76 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions are only subject to the annual
reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements and exempt from the shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
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the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed in the
announcement published on 30 December 2013 in
compliance with the Listing Rules.

On 15 March 2011, each of Hui Zhou Pacific
Container Co., Ltd., Ningbo Pacific Container
Co., Ltd., Qingdao Pacific Container Co., Ltd.,
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific Container Co., Ltd.,
Singamas Container Industry Co., Ltd., Shanghai
Pacific International Container Co., Ltd., Shanghai
Reeferco Container Co., Ltd., Guangdong Shun
An Da Pacific Container Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde
Singamas Tank Container Co., Ltd., Tianjin Pacific
Container Co., Ltd., Xiamen Pacific Container
Manufacturing Co., Ltd., Qidong Singamas Energy
Equipment Co., Ltd. and Singamas Management
Services Limited, all of which are subsidiaries of the
Company (collectively, the “Subsidiaries”), entered
into a master purchase agreement (the “Master
Purchase Contract 2012”) with PIL for the sales
of containers and other related equipment (the
“Equipment”) by the Group to PIL Group. In view
that PIL is a connected person of the Company,
the entering into the Master Purchase Contract
2012 constituted a connected transaction. As
the Master Purchase Contract 2012 involves
transactions, which occur on a recurring basis
over a period of time, the transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

As it was estimated that the proposed annual
caps of the transactions, for each of the three
financial years ending 31 December 2012, 2013
and 2014 would exceed the HK$10,000,000
threshold under the Listing Rules and each of the
applicable percentage ratios (other than profits
ratio) calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the proposed annual
caps for the transactions exceeds 5%, pursuant
to Rule 14A.76, the transactions are subject to
the annual reporting, announcement, annual
review and shareholders’ approval requirement
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under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. After
obtaining the approval from the shareholders on
30 May 2011, the Master Purchase Contract 2012
took effect from 1 January 2012 and ended on
31 December 2014. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed in
the announcement published on 15 March 2011 in
compliance with the Listing Rules.

On 6 October 2014, the Company (for and
on behalf of the Group) entered into a master
purchase contract (the “Master Purchase Contract
2015”) with PIL (for and on behalf of PIL Group),
for the sale of the Equipment to PIL Group. In view
that PIL is a connected person of the Company,
the entering into the Master Purchase Contract
2015 constituted a connected transaction. As
the Master Purchase Contract 2015 involves
transactions, which occur on a recurring basis
over a period of time, the transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Each of the applicable percentage ratios (other
than profits ratio) calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07
of the Listing Rules in respect of the proposed
annual caps for the transactions exceeds 5%.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
the Master Purchase Contract 2015 are subject
to annual reporting, announcement, annual
review and shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. After
obtaining the approval from the shareholders on
19 November 2014, the Master Purchase Contract
2015 took effect from 1 January 2015 and will be
ending on 31 December 2017. Details of these
continuing connected transactions have been
disclosed in the announcement published on 6
October 2014 in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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Pacific International Lines (China) Ltd. (“PIL China”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of PIL, the controlling
and substantial shareholder of the Company, had
entered into a tenancy agreement with Singamas
Container Holdings (Shanghai) Limited (“SCSL”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant
to which PIL China leased a property to SCSL for a
period of eight and half months commencing from
15 April 2014 to 31 December 2014 (the “Initial
Tenancy”). As none of the applicable percentage
ratios (as defined in Rule 14.07 of the Listing
Rules) in respect of total transaction amounts
for the Initial Tenancy would exceed the 0.1%
thresholds, these transactions were not subject
to any annual reporting, announcement, annual
review and shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules. The lease under the
Initial Tenancy expired on 31 December 2014.
On 31 December 2014, SCSL entered into the
renewed tenancy agreement with PIL China for
the renewal of the Initial Tenancy for a further
term of three years commencing from 1 January
2015 to 31 December 2017, both dates inclusive
(“Renewed Tenancy Agreement”). As PIL China
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PIL and SCSL is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, PIL
is a connected person of the Company and PIL
China is an associate of PIL under the Listing
Rules. The Renewed Tenancy Agreement involves
transactions, which will occur on a recurring basis
over a period of time; accordingly, the transactions
constitute a continuing connected transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios (other than profits ratio which shall not
apply) calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the annual cap for the
transactions is more than 0.1% but all of them are
less than 5%, under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules, the transactions therefore constitutes a
continuing connected transaction which is only
subject to the annual reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements and is exempt from the
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed in the
announcement published on 31 December 2014 in
compliance with the Listing Rules.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have
been approved by the Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed these transactions
and are in the opinion that:

(@)

those continuing connected transactions between
STHK and PILHK are entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group,
conducted on normal commercial terms and are
entered into in accordance with the agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole and on terms no
less favourable than those available to or from
independent third parties. The total amount of such
transactions for the year ended on 31 December
2014 was HK$8,539,000 and did not exceed the
annual cap of HK$12,000,000;
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those continuing connected transactions between
SLTC and PIL China (Tianjin Branch) are entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group, conducted on normal commercial
terms and are entered into in accordance with
the agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole and
on terms no less favourable than those available
to or from independent third parties. The total
amount of such transactions for the year ended on
31 December 2014 was RMB5,510,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$6,957,000) and did not
exceed the annual cap of RMB14,400,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$18,246,240); and

those continuing connected transactions between
the Group and PIL Group are entered into in
the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group, conducted on normal commercial
terms and entered into in accordance with the
agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole and
on terms no less favourable than those available
to or from independent third parties. The total
amount of such transactions for the year ended on
31 December 2014 was US$58,549,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$456,684,000) and
did not exceed the annual cap of US$100,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$780,000,000).
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has engaged the external auditors of the
Company to report the continuing connected transactions
of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The external auditors have reported to the Board
and confirmed that for the year 2014 the continuing
connected transactions (i) have received the approval
of the Board; (ii) are in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Company; (iii) have been entered into in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions; and (iv) the continuing connected
transactions in paragraphs (1), (2) and (3) above have
not exceeded the relevant caps as disclosed in the
announcements dated 31 December 2013, 30 December
2013 and 15 March 2011 respectively.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

1. On 14 April 2011, the Company issued the Notes.
The Notes bear interest from and including 14 April
2011 at the rate of 4.75% per annum. Interest
will be payable semi-annually in arrears on 14
April and 14 October in each year commencing
on 14 October 2011. The Notes are not rated by
any rating agency and are unsecured. Application
was made to the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited and approval was received for
listing of the Notes. Pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the Notes, it is provided that at any
time following the occurrence of a change of
control, holder of any Notes will have the right at
his option to require the Company to redeem all
but not some only of that holder’s Notes at 101%
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of their principal amount, together with accrued
interest. Under the terms and conditions of the
Notes, a change of control occurs when Pacific
International Lines (Private) Limited (“PIL”") ceases
to be the controlling shareholder (as defined in
the Listing Rules) and the single largest beneficial
shareholder of the Company. The Notes were
matured on 14 April 2014.

2. On 24 September 2013, the Company entered
into a facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement”)
with The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.,
DBS Bank Ltd., The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited, ING Bank N.V. and
United Overseas Bank Limited as the mandated
lead arrangers and other financial institutions for a
term of four years for the purpose of financing the
corporate funding requirements and the capital
expenditure of the Group, including refinancing of
the existing term loan and revolving credit facilities
under the facility agreement dated 25 March 2011
and the Notes issued by the Company on 14 April
2011. The Facility Agreement includes conditions
to the effect that Mr. Teo Siong Seng and his family
members shall maintain the Management Control
of every member of the Group. A breach of the
above conditions will constitute an event of default
under the Facility Agreement. If such an event of
default occurs, all amounts outstanding under the
Facility Agreement may become immediately due
and payable.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, no asset of the Group (2013:
Nil) was pledged as securities to any third parties.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During 2014, the Company provided guarantees to
banks as securities for credit facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC. Details of
which are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance and has taken appropriate
steps to adopt and comply with the applicable principles
and code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Further information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of
the Directors, all of the Directors have complied with, for
any part of the accounting period covered by this annual
report, the required standard as set out in the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng

Mr. Kuan Kim Kin*

Mr. Tan Chor Kee*

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David*
Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan*

Mr. Ong Ka Thai*

Mr. Yang, Victor*

# Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
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In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles”), every Director not being
a Managing Director and/or Chief Executive Officer shall
retire from office at annual general meetings and, being
eligible, offers themselves for re-election. A Director so
appointed as to the office of Managing Director and/
or Chief Executive Officer shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years but shall be
eligible for re-election.

The term of office for non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) is for a year and is
subject to retirement and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Articles.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David,
Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan, Mr. Ong Ka Thai and Mr. Yang,
Victor and considered them as independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests or short
positions of the Directors in the shares of the Company
(the “Shares”), underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (a) were required notification
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which any such Director is
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or which (b) were required pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO to be entered into the register maintained by
the Company; or which (c) were required, pursuant to
Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as
follows:
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(A) Ordinary Shares of the Company

Report of The Directors &£ & W&

(A)

Number of Shares/
Underlying Shares Held
BEZRG/
HERGEE

Personal
Capacity Interest
5% fEARE
Mr. Teo Siong Seng (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 51,308,250
RINB S (H1it 1) EnfiAA
Mr. Teo Tiou Seng (Note 2) ~ Beneficial Owner 668,730
REABEE (Hi22) EnfiAA
Mr. Kuan Kim Kin (Note 3) Beneficial Owner 668,730
BRSRREEE (HiE3) EnfiAA
Mr. Ong Ka Thai (Note 4) Beneficial Owner 668,730
FRREE(Hit4) EnfiAA
Mr. Tan Chor Kee (Note 5) Spouse Interest -
BREELE (Hits) B
Notes:
(1) The personal interest of Mr. Teo Siong Seng represents

@)

)

4)

®)

the interest in 41,801,250 Shares and interest in
9,507,000 underlying Shares in respect of the share
options granted by the Company, the details of which
are stated in the following section “"Share Options”.

The personal interest of Mr. Teo Tiou Seng represents
the interest in 196,780 Shares and interest in 471,950
underlying Shares in respect of the share options
granted by the Company, the details of which are
stated in the following section “Share Options”.

The personal interest of Mr. Kuan Kim Kin represents
the interest in 104,000 Shares and interest in 564,730
underlying Shares in respect of the share options
granted by the Company, the details of which are
stated in the following section “Share Options”.

The personal interest of Mr. Ong Ka Thai represents
the interest in 52,000 Shares and interest in 616,730
underlying Shares in respect of the share options
granted by the Company, the details of which are
stated in the following section “Share Options”.

Ms. Lee Tew Guan, spouse of Mr. Tan Chor Kee held
6,000 Shares. Mr. Tan Chor Kee is deemed to be
interested in 6,000 Shares held by Ms. Lee Tew Guan.

All the interests disclosed above represent long
position in the Shares and underlying Shares.

Corporate

Interest
DERER

Hrat -

1)

@

3

4

©)

A4 F EER

Percentage

of Total

Total Issued Shares
Interest {52 HERTT

ARz ROAOL

- 51,308,250 2.12

- 668,730 0.03

- 668,730 0.03

- 668,730 0.03
6,000 6,000 0.00

KINEBSE L 15 B AN #2 41,801,250 /%
KRR 7% 9,607,000 8 K 2 G146 B i
WA R AR BERE - FF1E
BRTZ [FERE] 5517 °

KRB S E 5B N Bz 196,780 R AL
Bl A& 17 K 471,950 I8 K 2 ] HH BF A 17 1
& WA R EIRH 2 R - FIE R R
Ttz [ERE] 5517 -

TR EFF B BN #75 104,000 i K 2
7] 8 17 % 564,730 88 7k 2 @] 46 F Bk 17 4
WAL A2 AR - FFIEER
Ttz [FERRAE ] 5517 -

FRFHEFFH N ¥ 2 52,000 R A2
AR 17 R 616,730 i 25 2 7] #E B R 17 1
& WA R EIRH 2 R - FIE R R
Ttz [ 56517 -

EEBELF (AIFERELLZEE)1FE
6,000/ 817 o [FAEHE L L REIERES
BEZL 11582 6,000 KR 11 EE R °

IR S A S AR R
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(B) Share Options (B) R
Particulars of the share option scheme adopted RARIRZEZTLFARA—BERNZEE
by the Company on 1 June 2007 (the “Option IRiEET 8 ([MERERT 2 ]) 2 S B EN AR
Scheme”) are set out in note 42 to the consolidated BB HREMITE42 o

financial statements.

Movements of the share options under the Option RER - AR S TaEREZ BN
Scheme during the year are as follows: e

Number of Share Options
BREZE
As at As at
1 January 31 December
2014 2014

s # Exercise

Name/Category H#%/25% —Z-Qmf Granted  Exercised Lapsed =Z-ME  GrantDate Exercisable Period Price
of Participants ~ Z#1l -B-H b i %% TZA=t-H BHAS iyid: T8
(Notes a, b &) HKS

ZA) vid
L, bkc) BT

Directors 2

Mr.Teo Siong Seng  SRINELAE 2,613,000 - - - 2,613,000 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
2,613,000 - - - 2,613,000 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
2,613,000 - - - 2,613,000 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
1,333 - - - 1,333 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
833,333 - - - 833,333 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
833,334 - - - 833,334 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

9,507,000 - - - 9,507,000
M. Chan Kiwok Leung FRETERSE A 522,600 - - - 522,600 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
522,600 - - - 522,600 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
522,600 - - - 522,600 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
750 - - - 750 6/8/2008 6/8/2009-5/8/2018 1.48
750 - - - 750 6/8/2008 6/8/2010-5/8/2018 1.48
217,750 - - - 217,750 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 1.48
166,666 - - - 166,666 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
166,667 - - - 166,667 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
166,667 - - - 166,667 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

2,287,050 - - - 2,287,050
MrTeoTouSeng  REELAE 130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

471,950 - - - 471,950

W A e el

60 Singamas Container Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2014



Report of The Directors &£ & W&

Number of Share Options
BREZE

Asat As at

1 January 31 December

2014 2014
iy 1 Exercise
Name/Category [%/28% —Z-M% Granted  Exercised Lapsed =Z-ME  GrantDate Exercisable Period Price
of Participants ~ Z#15l -B-H i it %% t-A=t-A BHAS Cyid: e
(Notes a, b &) HKS
abkc) BT
Mr. Kuan KimKin ~ BISRiB LA 130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
260 - - - 260 6/8/2008 6/8/2009-5/8/2018 148
260 - - - 260 6/8/2008 6/8/2010-5/8/2018 148
52,260 - - - 52,260 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

564,730 - - - 564,730
Mr. Ong Ka Thai IFFRE 130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
260 - - - 260 6/8/2008 6/8/2009-5/8/2018 148
52,260 - - - 52,260 6/8/2008 6/8/2010-5/8/2018 1.48
52,260 - - - 52,260 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

616,730 - - - 616,730
Mr. Yang, Victor BERLE 40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

120,000 - - - 120,000

Sub-total gt 13,567,460 - - - 13,667,460
Employees EE4L 653,250 - - - 653,250 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
in aggregate (Hi#a) 653,250 - - - 653,250 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
(Note d) 653,250 - - - 653,250 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
147,925 - - - 147,925 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
84,668 - - - 84,668 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
136,668 - - - 136,668 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
219,998 - - - 219,998 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

Sub-total gt 2,549,009 - - - 2,549,009
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Name/Category
of Participants

All other FiEEMES 435,500 - - (87,100) 348,400
employees & 435,500 - - (87,100) 348,400
in aggregate 435,500 - - (87,100) 348,400
119,374 - - (420) 118,954
119,373 - - (420) 118,953
220,373 - - (17,420) 202,953
Sub-total At 1,765,620 - - (279,560) 1,486,060
Total &5t 17,882,089 - - (279,560) 17,602,529
Notes: Bt -
(a) The share options with the exercise price of HK$3.93 (a
are vested and exercisable in three tranches on 28
June 2008, 2009 and 2010 respectively and up to 27
June 2017.
(b) The share options with the exercise price of HK$1.48 b)
are vested and exercisable in three tranches on 6
August 2009, 2010 and 2011 respectively and up to 5
August 2018.
(c) The share options with the exercise price of HK$1.38 @
are vested and exercisable in three tranches on 1 July
2011, 2012 and 2013 respectively and up to 30 June
2020.
(d) Employees are working under employment contracts (@)

Number of Share Options

BRER
Asat
1 January
2014
i
~2-mE
-A-H

Granted

Exercised

fife

As at

31 December

2014

1

Lapsed —Z-M%
%% t=R=t-H

that are regarded as “continuous contracts” for the
purposes of the Employment Ordinance.

Exercise

Grant Date Exercisable Period Price
BB s e
(Notes a, b &) HKS

, bRc) BT

28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
6/8/2008 6/8/2009-5/8/2018 148
6/8/2008 6/8/2010-5/8/2018 148
6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148

KT8 3.93/ 8T IREE 72 FIH —
FENENA—SFNA - ZFEENFAA
ZHNARZE-FEFANA T NAS=
ESPK BEEE R AT TT1E  ITREIZE—F
—tFENAZF AL -

UTTIEE1.48 BT I fEREE 7 FIR =
FEENENAAA  —FE—FENAXA
R-_ZF——F NANAZZE5 K BELE
RA#i7E 72— E—FENAA
=0l

KATTIEB 1.38 BT AR IEE 7 5K =
F——FtA—H —F——F+HH
R=ZF—=F+A—HZ =5 BELE
KA #iT(E  7TEHE = F =FFNA
= =N

1B B I IBIE 1R IT 180 [FEE A A )
TIFAIER °
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At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries
a party of any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Save as disclosed above, none of Directors nor their
associates, had any other interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were
required notification to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which
any such Director or chief executive is taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or which (b)
were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be
entered into the register maintained by the Company;
or which (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company or the Stock Exchange and none of Directors,
nor their spouse or children under the age of 18, had any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2014, according to the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, and so far as was known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other
than the interests of certain Directors disclosed under the
section headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above),
had an interest or a short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO:
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Percentage of
Total Issued

Number of Ordinary Shares Shares
EERRH L2
Direct Interest Indirect Interest 21T
HiEfER HEEz ROBIL
Mr. Chang Yun Chung (1)&(4) 493,291 (L)* 953,954,534 (L)* 39.47
SR EE
Madam Lee Kheng Wah (2)&(4) - 954,447,825 (L)* 39.47
FIBEL L
PIL (1)&(4) 953,954,534 (L)* - 39.45
AP
PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. (1)&(4) - 953,954,534 (L)* 39.45
Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited  (3)&(4) - 953,954,534 (L)* 39.45
Prime Capital Management
(Cayman) Limited (4) 166,061,336 (L)* - 6.87
(L)# — Long Position (L# — 47 E
Notes: it -

(1)

A total of 953,954,534 Shares are directly held by PIL. With
effect from 1 April 2014, due to restructuring of PIL group,
PIL is 100% owned by PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. and Mr. Chang
Yun Chung is interested, in aggregate, in 496,800,000 shares
representing 89.61% of the issued share capital of PIL
Holdings Pte. Ltd.. Mr. Chang Yun Chung'’s interest in shares
of PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. comprises a personal interest in
79,275,000 shares and corporate interests in 175,500,000
shares through South Pacific International Holdings Limited, a
company in which he holds 2.02% of the issued share capital
and 242,025,000 shares through Y.C. Chang & Sons Private
Limited, a company in which he holds 2.86% of the issued
share capital. Messrs. Teo Siong Seng and Teo Tiou Seng,
Directors, both of their interests in shares of PIL Holdings Pte.
Ltd. comprise personal interests in 3,600,000 shares and
2,400,000 shares respectively and representing 0.65% and
0.43% of the issued share capital of PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd..

(1)

B 205953,954,634 R #1770 A1 K T At I B # 1
B —F—mMEPA— A FAXFHEES
HETTEM - X-F A B PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. #F
B 100% t#Ez - [f1 k7 55 4RI 8 PIL Holdings
Pte. Ltd. 17 % #£496,800,000/% - 14 PIL Holdings
Pte. Ltd. B #1778 7K89.61% ° ok 7 # 5% 4 A %
#.2 PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. %17 7] 73 B EIA #E 25
79,275,000 fig - % i South Pacific International
Holdings Limited (&7 7 5E 4 #5 B 3% 23 7] 2.02%
B ST Bt B.2 22 al#ERs 175,500,000 K -

JiAE#BY. C. Chang & Sons Private Limited (3% 7
L EFFBZ N F]2.86% B ETRA) iz 6.2 4
AJ##E 75 242,025,000 f§ ° (1 E FRINEFL LR K
BHE LA RIS Bl PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. %172
1EA 125 3,600,000 &% 2,400,000 % - 3 B4
PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. = #77/%750.65% /2 0.43% °
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2) Madam Lee Kheng Wah, as the spouse of Mr. Chang Yun
Chung, is deemed to be interested in these Shares.

3) With effect from 1 April 2014, PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. in which Y.C. Chang & Sons Private
Limited holds more than one-third of interests in PIL Holdings
Pte. Ltd.. Accordingly, Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited
indirectly controls one-third or more of the voting rights in the
shareholders’ meeting of PIL, in accordance with SFO, Y.C.
Chang & Sons Private Limited is deemed to be interested in
PIL’s interests in the Company’s issued Shares.

4) The Company purchased 2,000,000 Shares during the year and
cancelled the repurchased Shares on 30 December 2014. The
total numbers of issued Shares were reduced to 2,418,419,918
Shares after the cancellation of repurchased Shares on 30
December 2014. Accordingly, the total interests in Shares of Mr.
Chang Yun Chung, Madam Lee Kheng Wah, PIL, PIL Holdings
Pte. Ltd, Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited and Prime Capital
Management (Cayman) Limited as at 31 December 2014
amounted to 39.47%, 39.47%, 39.45%, 39.45%, 39.45%
and 6.87% of the Company’s total number of issued Shares,
respectively.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other person
known to the Directors or chief executive, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who, as at
31 December 2014, had an interest or a short position
in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

As at 31 December 2014, no Directors or proposed
directors had any existing service contract or proposed
service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not terminable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation.
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@ AFBEL L TIRAFELEZINE  KFLLA
WL KA PIEERAR DT Z R es o

@ B E—EmA— AR - AR APIL Holdings
Pte. Ltd. .z = &H1E 2 7] + i1 Y. C. Chang & Sons
Private Limited## /& PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. =72
—U_FayERS o F 0 Y.C. Chang & Sons Private
Limited [ B BETEX FHB S IRRA S LT(8=
DU LRI ERE - WIRE(EF R EIF
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) AR ERE I fE B 2,000,000 8817+ ER=F
—FEF ZH=+HaHEBER G - X2 a2
FIIRGBAR -FE—FE+ - A=1H(E#E#
A E IR (7) 5L F 2,418,419,918 R IR 17 -
Aify - KPS E  FEBELL - XFME - PIL
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Limited /& Prime Capital Management (Cayman)
Limited R ZFE—F+-H=+—HZRH#
AR D FIMG R 2 A2 F TR 17 48 80,2 39.47 %,
39.47%, 39.45%, 39.45%, 39.45% X 6.87 % °
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than disclosed in note 50 to the consolidated
financial statements (which were approved by the
independent non-executive Directors and in the opinion
of the Directors were carried out on normal commercial
terms and in ordinary course of the Group’s business),
no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its immediate and
ultimate holding company, fellow subsidiaries or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales
attributable to major suppliers and customers are as
follows:

Percentage of purchases attributable
to the Group’s largest supplier

Percentage of purchases attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers

Percentage of sales attributable to
the Group’s largest customer

Percentage of sales attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers

During the year, none of the Directors nor their associates
nor any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

EEZEARHER

BRérE M MRMEESOMREEIIN(ZFR S
EEBUIFNTESEL  AHEFTEMS
BAREZBEER LA —REEGERE
) ApE - BERNMRRERAR  RE
BT - SE B QR BT AR
RSB X5 MARREZERNAEEE
Hoh A E AR - WARFEBRFREM
RRBUMIEREHL -

TEERRMER

AEEREEMEEBETREIZHERLE
FPzanth

Percentage
BT

AEEFAEEEAEER

9.6%

AEBRAHEREMEEER

32.9%

AEEZRKEFHIGERRE

13.6%

AEERKREFAIGERR

43.6%

RERN SEFSEBBEATREFBRR (3
EETABEAARRNR ZBANES%) R EHE L
A EBHEEEANET S P HEA TR
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company purchased 2,000,000 Shares at a cost of
HK$ 2,524,860 during the year. Other than this purchase,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Retirement Benefits Scheme are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 18 to
26 under the “Honorary Chairman, Directors and Senior
Management Profile” section of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND
EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

The remuneration policy for the employees of the
Company is set by the Remuneration Committee on the
basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are decided by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

Report of The Directors &£ & W&
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Report of The Directors EE €&

As at 31 December 2014, the Group, including its
subsidiaries but excluding associates and joint ventures,
employed 10,703 (2013: 8,063) full-time employees.
Staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted
to US$139,753,000 (2013: US$101,454,000) for the
year. All full-time salaried employees, except for factory
workers and contract employees, are being paid on a
monthly basis, plus a discretionary performance bonus.
Factory workers are being remunerated based on a
basic wage plus production incentive. Share options are
also being offered to selected grantees of the Group.
The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees
are competitive and employees are awarded on a
performance related basis within the general framework
of the Group’s salary and bonus system. To further
enhance the capability of its human resource, the Group
provides on-the-job training to its employees.

Other than the subsidiaries in the PRC, neither the
Company nor any of its other subsidiaries has established
labour union. The Company and its subsidiaries, however,
are not subject to any collective agreements. The Group
has maintained good relationships with its employees.
None of the Group’s employees is represented by a
labour union.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital
was held by the public as at the date of this annual
report.
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AUDITORS

A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as external auditors of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board

Teo Siong Seng

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 23 March 2015

Report of The Directors &£ & W&
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Independent Auditor’s Report &/ #Z Z A3k &

Deloitte.
=

TO THE MEMBERS OF SINGAMAS
CONTAINER HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 72 to 230, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the “Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance”), and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 80 of Schedule 11 to the
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
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Independent Auditor’s Report Y&/ X 8iffRkeE

to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2014,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

/\I:I\/

e H b2 i e

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &7 —FE—NE+ - A=+—HIIFF

2014 2013
—EB-mE  —T=F
US$’000 US$'000
TEx FEIT

Revenue B 7 1,546,483 1,282,988
Other income H A 902 16,068
Changes in inventories of UK o AR

finished goods and FEZE)

work in progress 24,287 (25,968)
Raw materials and FRMERERERZ T

consumables used (1,202,475) (954,727)
Staff costs BB (139,753) (101,454)
Depreciation and & R

amortisation expense (26,611) (21,602)
Exchange gain (loss) 0 5 Wes (B51E) 5,787 (7,646)
Other expenses Hi & (143,596) (126,086)
Finance costs % ER 9 (13,802) (18,201)
Investment income REWA 10 4,704 5,064
Change in fair value of derivative TTHEEMIAY

financial instruments NABEE 39 239 -
Reclassification of fair value (loss) WIEERE A TAN

gain of derivative financial TEEmIAL

instruments designated as ARBE(ER)

hedging instruments from S R

hedge reserve ENEER 40 (3,071) 8,079
Share of results of associates FEIEBE RRlZ

(E518) mF (72) 920

Share of results of joint ventures BIEEBL¥ZEE (498) (288)
Profit before taxation BRBE AR R 11 52,524 57,147
Income tax expense TS fIER> 14 (19,624) (17,859)
Profit for the year REERR 32,900 39,288

W A e el

72  Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2014



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 434 8% R EH M2 EW AR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #2 —F —/JF +=H=+—HILF/E

2014 2013
—F-MF —F—=fF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Other comprehensive Ht2mH () K=
(expense) income
Items that may be AEBES ZEHHEE -
subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising &M EITE =5
on translation (278) 1,388
Fair value adjustments on WiETRREREH
forward contracts EHEHN AR EERHR
designated as cash
flow hedges (3,071) 12,009
Reclassification of exchange ~ H%kZ=—MiB A B 2 1= 41
differences from exchange ~ FrmINEEREEEH D4
translation reserve to profit ~~ EI8AE N =58
or loss upon loss of control
of a subsidiary - (4,462)
Reclassification of fair value A7t BEEE CHF))
loss (gain) from hedge R¥TPREES EBH
reserve to profit or 0ss 3,071 (8,079)
Other comprehensive FREME2E(EH) BE
(expense) income for
the year (278) 856
Total comprehensive FRE2ENREHE
income for the year 32,622 40,144
Profit for the year KEEREMEER
attributable to:
Owners of the Company /NS 28,021 34,274
Non-controlling interests FEE AR AR R 4,879 5,014
32,900 39,288
Total comprehensive EE2EREAsE :
income attributable to:
Owners of the Company /NG 27,787 35,019
Non-controlling interests JEVERR AR R AE 4,835 5,125
32,622 40,144
Earnings per share BREF
Basic A 16 | US1.16 cents X1l | US1.42 cents il
Diluted ] 16 | US1.16 cents Xl | US1.42 cents {ll

“E-EFR -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BEBIRR

As at 31 December 2014 R —F—F+—-H=+—H

2014
—E-ImF
US$’000 US$'000
TER FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - IR NS 17 361,966 347,131
Goodwil BES 18 6,246 6,246
Interests in associates iR/ W = T 21 43,265 6,094
Interests in joint ventures REBELEZER 22 23,445 24,345
Available-for-sale investment AHEEZRE 23 6,608 1,614
Amounts due from joint ventures RS B HEFKIE 31 6,667 -
Derivative financial instruments PTHEemIT A 39 239 -~
Prepaid lease payments TEMFRE B 24 55,904 57,436
Deposits for non-current assets IEREBEELS 25 9,801 12,110
514,141 454,976
Current assets REBEE
Inventories ey 26 232,913 216,551
Trade receivables JEW AR X 27 248,718 227,123
Prepayments and other receivables T K H b lE U k8 28 139,261 130,151
Amount due from immediate holding fEU & &A% A 7 F1I8
company 29 - 24
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEWFI RTBARIFIE 30 42,452 48,684
Amounts due from joint ventures R E B HER 31 1,507 -
Tax recoverable Al e 2 FIE 347 396
Derivative financial instruments ETE AR T A/
designated as hedging TESRT A
instruments 40 - 3,071
Prepaid lease payments FEfHEENRIE 24 1,309 1,311
Bank balances and cash IRTTHEB MRS 32 249,793 306,640
916,300 933,951

W A e el
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %4 Bk n&
As at 31 December 2014 R —F—H#E+—-H=+—H

2014
—E-NEF
US$’000 US$000
FEx FET
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FERTERR 33 204,495 144,549
Bills payable EANE S 34 84,879 63,478
Accruals and other payables FEETERRHEMERNERR 35 75,712 101,973
Amount due to immediate holding ~ fE B &2 A A A Z0E
company 29 5 12
Amounts due to associates AN NCIF /O] 36 58 268
Amounts due to joint ventures JENTEERFERIE 36 43 99
Tax payable JEI IR 5,836 4,527
Notes i 38 - 226,095
Bank borrowings RITE 37 62,564 22,065
433,592 563,066
Net current assets RBEEFE 482,708 370,885
Total assets less current EEABERRBERE
liabilities 996,849 825,861
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital [N 41 268,149 31,185
Share premium by - 236,964
Accumulated profits Sl 302,035 287,948
Other reserves B A 47,446 42,166
Equity attributable to owners ZAYNSIE &Y CE o
of the Company 617,630 598,263
Non-controlling interests SRR A SR e e 54,803 55,970
Total equity AL 672,433 654,233
“E-UEFR - BWEECEFRAR 75




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %34 B &k
As at 31 December 2014 R—F—[9#E+ = F=+—H

2014 2013
—E-NEF —T-=fF
US$’000 US$'000
TER FET

Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Bank borrowings RITIER 37 315,000 164,000
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 45 9,416 7,628

324,416 171,628

996,849 825,861

The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to ®HNFE7T2EEE230 B 27 M BHREKLE
230 were approved and authorised for issue by the board Z&((EFg] [EF)) N _ZT—RAF=
of directors (“Board”/“Directors”) on 23 March 2015 and A Z=+=A#&EREENER - WHTIESK

are signed on its behalf by: REE
Teo Siong Seng RIAE Teo Tiou Seng REIE
Director E%F Director 2%

W A e el
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Statement of Financial Position

BIFSAR LR

As at 31 December 2014 R —F—F+—-H=+—H

2014
—E-F
US$’000 US$'000
FER FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - HR NS 17 4,300 3,658
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZIZE 19 345,112 330,340
Investments in associates REERAIZ2IE 21 517 517
Available-for-sale investment AMEHEZIRE 23 2,567 611
Derivative financial instruments PTESMITA 39 239 -
Deposits for non-current assets ERBEEERS 25 - 2,840
352,735 337,966
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables — Fa <t & E fib & U 7018 15,151 16,891
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS KIS~ RIFkIE 20 245,420 261,138
Derivative financial instruments EEAL HRT AN
designated as hedging instruments  $T4 €@ T A 40 - 3,071
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 32 51,079 99,761
311,650 380,861
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R H TR K 3,136 4,810
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE ¢ 20 3,614 3,278
Amount due to immediate i ANIERES ) NGB Ozl
holding company 29 5 12
Amounts due to associates JE{T B & A R FRIB 36 51 242
Notes E S 38 - 226,095
Bank borrowings RITIE R 37 35,000 -
41,806 234,437
Net current assets REBEEFE 269,844 146,424
Total assets less current liabilities EEZA R R E & & 622,579 484,390

TE-NEFR - BREBEECEARAA
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Statement of Financial Position B/ 7%k 3%
As at 31 December 2014 R—F—[9#E+ = F=+—H

2014 2013
—E-NEF

US$’000 US$000
FEx FET

Capital and reserves BEXK#E
Share capital [N 41 268,149 31,185
Share premium R E 43 - 236,964
Share option reserve BAREEE 43 3,367 3,420
Hedge reserve A 43 - -~
Accumulated profits 25taH 43 36,063 48,821
307,579 320,390

Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Bank borrowings RITIE R 37 315,000 164,000
622,579 484,390

Teo Siong Seng RIAE Teo Tiou Seng REAE
Director % Director %

W A e el
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

;w7I?

—A= \ /
Tnn AN ll\EIII\ i%

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &%= —

Share
capital
g
US§000
TEL

Share
E]
RiaE
US$000

Tin

—ES A=

Exchange
translation
reserve
NERE
i

1+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADARREL

General Development Revaluation Share option

reserve

-Rif

(0

LREA

reserve

ﬁfﬁﬁ EREGRE

reserve reserve

K
US§000
47

Us$000
SET

Other Accumulated

Non-
controlling
interests

FERBR

At 1 January 2013 ZF-=5-F-B 81181 236,807 12,793 30927 6,382 1,361 4724 (3930 (3229 262,05 579,162 69868 649,030
Profit for the year TEFET - - - - - - - - - 34274 34274 5014 39,288
Exchange differences arisng ~~ REJNEEZE
on tranglation - - 1,217 - - - - - - - 1,217 11 1,388
Reclassiication of exchange B
differences from exchange
translation reserve to proft
orloss upon loss of control
of a subsidlary - - (4.462) - - - - - - - (4462 - (4.462)
Fair value adjustments on
forward contracts designated
as cash flow hedges - - - - - - - 12,009 - - 12,009 - 12,009
Reclassiication of fair value gain 72 £ 1513 Flegi
fiomhedgeresene toproft  FEEAZEE
or loss - - - - - - - (8,079) - - 8079 - 8079
Total comprehensiveincome ~ AFF2ANEAE
for the year - - (3,185) - - - - 3,930 - 34,214 35,019 5,125 40,144
Exercise of share options 4 67 - - - - 22) - - - 49 - 49
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments - - - - - - 34 - - - 34 - 34
Transfer from share option
reserve to accumulated profits
for option forfeited - - - - - - (1,316) - - 1,316 - - -
Disposal of subsidlaries - - - (9,.245) (507) - - - - 9,752 - (15,603) (15,603)
Acaqisition of addftional
interest in a subsidlary - - - - - - - - (397) - (397) 412) (809)
Dividend paid to non-controling
interests - - - - - - - - - - - (3,008 (3,008
Dividend paid to the owners §1 FRFRERE
of the Company - - - - - - - - - (15,604) (15,604) - (15,604)
Trangfer from acoumulated profts %% 8 17 - - - 3,078 768 - - - - (3,846) - - -
At 31 December 2013
31185 236,964 9,608 24,760 6,643 1,361 3420 - (3626) 287,948 598,263 55970 654,233
Proft for the year - - - - - - - - - 28,021 28,021 4879 32,900
Exchange differences arising
on tranglation - - (284) - - - - - - - (284 (44) (218)
Fair value adjustments on f Vi
forward contracts
designated as cash flow ]
hedges - - - - - - - [307) - - (3071) - (3071)
Redlassfication of fair valug loss 2 EEE B4
flom hedge resenve toproft ~ EEER
orloss - - - - - - - 30 - - 3071 - 3071
Total comprehensiveincome ~ AEE2ENRAE
for the year - - (234) - - - - - - 28,001 21,781 4835 32602
Transfer upon aboltion of
par valug under the new
Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance 236,964 (236964) - - - - - - - - - - -
Share repurchase - - - - - - - - - 827 (327) - (327
Transfer from share option
reserve to accumulated profits
for option forfeited - - - - - - (83) - - 53 - - -
Acquistion of addftional
interest in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - (286) - (286) (4,484) (4,770)
Dividend paid to non-controling
interests 2 - - - - - - - - - - - (1518) (1518)
Dividend paid tothe owners ~ STRARFIRRRE
of the Company - - - - - - - - - (7,807) (7,807) - (7,807)
Transfer from accumulated profts &% A 237 - - - 5501 352 - - - - (5,859 - - -
At 31 December 2014 R-B-mE
TZA=t-A 268,149 - 9,374 30,261 6,995 1,361 3,367 - 8912 302035 617,630 54808 672,433
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity #:& s EE)R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z —F—WF+ - H=+—HIF&E

Note:

In 2009, at the time of the acquisition of additional 20% equity interests
of Hui Zhou Pacific Container Co., Ltd. and Ningbo Pacific Container
Co., Ltd., the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
these subsidiaries continued to be carried at their book values in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The excess of the fair
value and the book value of the net assets attributable to the additional
interests acquired, amounted to US$3,193,000, had been recognised
as other reserve in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) (other than Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) applicable to the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries, these entities have to provide for the PRC
statutory reserves before declaring dividends to their shareholders
as approved by the board of directors. The reserves, which include
general reserve and development reserve, are not distributable until
the end of the operation periods of the respective entities, at which
time any remaining balance of the reserves can be distributed to
shareholders upon liquidation of the subsidiaries. The general reserve
can be used to offset accumulated losses of the entities. The general
reserve and development reserve can be used to increase capital
upon approval from the PRC’s relevant authority. The distributable
profits of the subsidiaries are determined based on their accumulated
profits calculated in accordance with the PRC accounting rules and
regulations.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A

rEREmERK

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &2 = F—PJF+ = H =+—HIFFE

2014
—E-mF
US$’000 US$’000
S TEr
OPERATING ACTIVITIES EREE
Profit before taxation BRI AT A 52,524 57,147
Adjustments for: HEE
Depreciation e 25,179 20,346
Loss on disposal of property, HEMZE - AR
plant and equipment B o 50 108
Loss on property, plant and TIEME - B R
equipment written off Bl i 124 1,476
Share of results of associates FrihBtE R ARz
BB Caf) 72 (920)
Share of results of joint ventures FriGa B2 EE 498 288
Amortisation of prepaid lease TE{THE EFRIEE
payments 1,432 1,256
Recognition of equity-settled ERARRSZ 2
share-based payments mEE - 34
Investment income FEWA (4,704) (5,064)
Interest expense B H 11,632 15,173
Change in fair value of derivative THEEeRmIAY
financial instruments AR EEEE (239) -
Reclassification of fair value loss WIEEREHATH
(gain) of derivative financial MTEERm T A
instruments designated as Z AR BEEE
hedging instruments from CaFl)
hedge reserve REES>EER 3,071 (8,079)
Exchange (gain) loss arising from RBRINESTE
the notes Ca ) 518 (1,965) 6,792
Allowance for doubtful debts RIZARAE 28 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRB ARz W 46 - (14,907)
Gain on disposal of an associate k= =N iy - (15)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #:&IR &R E WM&k
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z —F—WF+ - H=+—HIF&E

2014
—E-NF
US$’000 US$'000
TER FET
Operating cash flows before EEESREBRZ
movements in working capital EEBSRE 87,702 73,635
(Increase) decrease in inventories & Ggm)ms (16,362) 32,386
Increase in trade receivables & Ui BR R 0 (21,623) (54,520)
(Increase) decrease in prepayments  FEf K H b fE UL
and other receivables I (g ) mA (9,374) 11,277
Decrease in amount due from FE U B B 1R
immediate holding company NGNS 24 66
Increase in amount due from EY & &R
joint ventures FRIEIE AN (1,507) -
Decrease (increase) in amount iU EEL NS
due from fellow subsidiaries SRIERL A (38 00) 6,232 (48,165)
Increase in trade payables JE AT BR FRIE A0 60,082 14,241
Increase (decrease) in bills payable  FEfTZ#3E 0 GRid) 21,541 (55,471)
Decrease in accruals and FEET & A REMER
other payables AR TR (24,551) (15,027)
Decrease in derivative financial FETE AR T AR
instrument liability designated TESmITA
as hedging instruments aERL - (24)
Cash from (used in) operations &[5 (i) RHE 102,164 (41,602)
Interest paid EASHLE (13,425) (14,420)
Income tax paid B PT IS (16,478) (20,032)
Net cash from (used in) EESTE TS (FT#E)
operating activities ReRE 72,261 (76,054)
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INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #3248 REHmE
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #2 —F —/JF +=H=+—HILF/E

REEH

BEME BELERE

2014
—EF-mE

US$°000
S

Us$'000
TS

equipment (37,325) (52,678)
Deposits paid of non-current assets I 3ERENEEL S (678) (2,354)
Proceed on disposal of an associate & — B & A RIFT{S - 237
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEYEE - SRk

plant and equipment RS 626 326
Dividends received from associates — E UE# & A &) &

and joint ventures BEEERE 1,519 480
Interest received BUFIE 3,649 4,710
Dividend income from unlisted EHGEETREHFRERE

equity investment 748 354
Acquisition of a joint venture WiE—E B (13) (17,797)
Additional capital injection of e IRERE

available-for-sale investment INEE (4,994) -
Loan to a joint venture BT —BEDLEEN (6,360) -
Acquisition of an associate kg — B b 21 (38,470) -
Cash inflow arising from disposal HEWBARZ

of subsidiaries R FIE 46 - 12,637
Net cash used in investing RETEFFEESTFE

activities (81,298) (54,085)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #:&IR &R E WM&k
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z —F—WF+ - H=+—HIF&E

2014 2013
—E-mE —ZT—=F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FEIT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
New bank loans RITIHER 272,320 197,018
Repayment of bank loans ERIRTER (80,827) (159,139)
Repayment of note EEER (224,380) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT IEEAR
interests MR 2 AR (1,518) (3,008)
Dividends paid to owners of SRR AR E
the Company (7,807) (15,604)
Advance from immediate holding HEERABE HFE
company 314 268
Repayment to immediate holding BERAEERARIFIA
company (321) (266)
Advances from associates [EPANHNSIE/ Sz 726 822
Repayments to associates BRI E A RIFIR (936) (2,544)
Advances from joint ventures BASEBLFERIR 281 332
Repayments to joint ventures EEEERENIE (337) (245)
Payment of repurchase of shares S AR B S (327) -
Consideration paid for acquisition 3 —ME A A
of additional interest in ez 2 AR E R
a subsidiary 19 (4,770) (809)
Proceeds from exercise of TTEEBIRIEMS
share options - 49
Net cash (used in) from financing & EE) (FriE)
activities SR EFE (47,582) 16,874
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HeRk&ERRS
CASH EQUIVALENTS ZBD (56,619) (113,265)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—HzB &
AT 1 JANUARY FERRE 306,640 418,430
Effect of foreign exchange EREE) 2
rate changes (228) 1,475
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=HA=+—H2
AT 31 DECEMBER ReREFARE 249,793 306,640
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B&RZRRLER :
REPRESENTED BY:
Bank balances and cash IRTTHEB LIRS 249,793 306,640
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GENERAL

The Company is a listed public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding company
is PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“PIL Holdings”) and its
immediate holding company is Pacific International
Lines (Private) Limited (“PIL”). Both companies are
incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. The
addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the section of corporate information of the annual
report. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in United States dollars (“US$”), which
is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses
of manufacturing of containers and other related
products and providing logistics services.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

Except as described below, the application of the
new and revised HKFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 Investment Entities

The Group has applied the amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 Investment
Entities for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKFRS 10 define an investment
entity and require a reporting entity that meets the
definition of an investment entity not to consolidate
its subsidiaries but instead to measure its
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in its
consolidated and separate financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity
is required to:

° obtain funds from one or more investors
for the purpose of providing them with
investment management services;

o commit to its investor(s) that its business
purpose is to invest funds solely for returns
from capital appreciation, investment
income, or both; and

° measure and evaluate performance of
substantially all of its investments on a fair
value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made
to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 to introduce new
disclosure requirements for investment entities.

As the Company is not an investment entity
(assessed based on the criteria set out in HKFRS
10 as at 1 January 2014), the application of the
amendments has had no impact on the disclosures
or the amounts recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS
32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities for the first time in the current year.
The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing
application issues relating to the offset of financial
assets and financial liabilities requirements.
Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off”
and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively.
As the Group does not have any financial assets
and financial liabilities that qualify for offset, the
application of the amendments has had no impact
on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS
36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets for the first time in the current
year. The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the
requirement to disclose the recoverable amount
of a cash-generating unit (CGU) to which goodwill
or other intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives had been allocated when there has been
no impairment or reversal of impairment of the
related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments
introduce additional disclosure requirements
applicable to when the recoverable amount of
an asset or a CGU is measured at fair value less
costs of disposal. These new disclosures include
the fair value hierarchy, key assumptions and
valuation techniques used which are in line with
the disclosure required by HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurements.

The application of these amendments has had no
material impact on the disclosures in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following
new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretation that have been issued but are not yet

TR R R RIS RTRY
FH BT EEH
([ FHEMBREER ) @)

B 28 7 HE 1 R A ZRY T I ET R AR
ERTRE R MR EER

R B I AREERTERAR A T B 2870 HE i R
R FRHIR] BRI RT VR  (ERT R

effective.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Customers®
Accounting for Acquisition of
Interests in Joint Operations®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation®
Amendments to HKAS16 ~ Agriculture: Bearer Plant®
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employees Contributions*
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

Financial Statements®

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Investment entities: Applying

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 the consolidation exception®
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvement to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycleb
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvement to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle?
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvement to HKFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle®
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but

not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements
beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier
application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017, with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with earlier application permitted.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2014, with limited exceptions. Earlier application
permitted.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in
2010 to include requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013
to include the new requirements for general
hedge accounting. Another revision version of
HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include
(a) impairment requirements for financial assets
and (b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a
‘fair value through other comprehensive income’
(FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple
debt instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2 BRI REZERTR
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL ERMBEREEL
REPORTING STANDARDS (I EEMBFREER ) @)
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments EEMBHRELENE IR
(Continued) (2@ T A]|#)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as BEVBHELEREIORNEZE RN
follows: I

All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of
financial liabilities attributable to changes
in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit
or loss is presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected
credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses
and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)

° The new general hedge accounting
requirements retain the three types of hedge
accounting. However, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting.
In addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle
of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also
no longer required. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a
material impact on amounts reported in respect
of the Group’s and Company’s available-for-sale
investment, which is currently stated at cost less
impairment and will be measured at fair value at
the end of subsequent reporting periods, with
changes in the fair value being recognised in profit
or loss. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 9 until
the Group undertakes a detailed review.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which
establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations
in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation
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Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have
a material impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed
review.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of other new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretation
will have significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except
for the derivative financial instrument, which is
measured at fair value, as explained in the principal
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in
HKAS 36.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

(a)

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;
° is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the

investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns.

EEEBRE)

s - B EmEmM S - A BEFE
ERBTIREENAREETEEEN
ABREMNAHEERARIENER
BEERENDRE— B_NEFE=H#H
MR -

. F-RBBEAERUNGAEARE
BRI EER R ERARTS
MRIE CRIEHAE)

. F_RBEIIRE - RE LD
WENI BEXBBENEME
EHREZRZABREE &

. FE_RBELBEXRENTH
BREMSEUE -

(a) #HERE
GAMBRREEARARED
AT RERENBRRZ
BBH/E - EARAFAUTE
TR - BIERS IR

o URIRERTIERS

. BBSEWREFNES
IR AREGT R E
%R

. BReNEREENTZER
Bl

W A e el

98  Singamas Container Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2014



3

Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins
when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gain control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies in line with
the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income and expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a
subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (i)
the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS
39, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate
or a joint venture.

3

EEESTHRE)
(@) HEeEE®)

FEERREWB LR ZIE
EE

PEHKERBWE R BIEFIE
IR BRI ERR S -
ZRER B R M IR B B R A 2 Y
FREEZAIF L B ARBRENE
NEEREE) o (EAIFFERE
RESNAZRSBRNEWHEN
REN2AEBEZHRNERRAE
EERRER YT EBNAR AR
B o

EAKBRE-—ZRHBARZE
HIRER - WS B RN B ERT
R IR EWREZAREE
REFRERE#EZ 2 XA EER
0 B (i) B P B 2 B) B A AA] S
PR R BE (BREEE) &
BEZAEREEZM 2 Z/ET
B o A RN EAM 2 EW
ZHIEARIER 2 ZHE TUAA
fr BMUAKBCDERHELM
BrrzHBEEENMBEENIR
EREBYBREENZHRES
HAABEHOBEERANERES
—fEfEm) c RAREERHIEE B
IR AT B A AR E 2 TTIRE 2
DRBE HRAREEESS
#RI|% 39 SRAFE IR &Rt BRIE 2 1)
SR AFE - S (Em) R —
EN I WNCTE R =B e ke
BB HERZ A

W A e el

100 Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2014



3

Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and
liabilities or assets related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19
Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments
related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition
date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that
are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that
standard.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the
sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or, when applied
on the basis specified in another standard.

When a business combination is achieved
in stages, the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests
in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss where such treatment would
be appropriate if that interest were disposed
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the
Company achieves the control and has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

Investments in subsidiaries are included
in the Company’s statement of financial
position at cost, less any identified
impairment loss.

Investments in associates and
joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities
of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of
the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or
a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint
venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied
to determine whether it is necessary to
recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s investment in an associate
or a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method from the date when the investment
ceases to be an associate or a joint venture,
or when the investment is classified as held
for sale. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial
asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture at the date
the equity method was discontinued, and
the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of a part
interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate or joint
venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same
basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate or
joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity
method when an investment in an associate
becomes an investment in a joint venture or
an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such
changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership
interest in an associate or a joint venture
but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain
or loss would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an
associate or a joint venture of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
business is carried at cost as established at
the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating
unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including
leasehold land (classified as finance leases)
and buildings and site improvements held
for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes
other than construction in progress and
freehold land, are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Depreciation is recognised so as to
write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment other than construction
in progress and freehold land less their
residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The estimated useful lives
are as follows:

Estimated
useful life
Leasehold land and buildings
and site improvements outside
Hong Kong
- on medium term lease 20 to 50 years

Buildings and site improvements
in Hong Kong
—on short lease

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fittings and
office equipment

Motor vehicles

11to 10 years
51to 15 years

510 10 years
510 10 years
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Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Construction in progress is included in
property, plant and equipment in the course
of construction for production, supply, or
administrative purposes. The amortisation
of prepaid lease payments provided during
the construction period is included as part
of costs of building under construction.
Costs also include professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Construction in progress are carried
at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets with finite
useful lives other than goodwill to determine
whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost, comprises
direct materials, and where applicable, direct
labour, and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Costs of inventories are calculated using
weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated cost of
completion and costs necessary to make
the sales.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position and the Company’s
statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

() Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are
classified into one of the two
categories, including loans and
receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of
allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, other receivables,
amounts due from immediate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries, joint
ventures and subsidiaries and bank
balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

3

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Avallable-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified as financial assets as
fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments. The Group designated
the unquoted equity investments as
available-for-sale financial assets.

For available-for-sale equity
investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses
at the end of each reporting period
(see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets
Financial assets are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity
investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For financial assets, objective
evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such
as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;
or

° it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost,
the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

3 EEgIHBER®

i) =&t
(i)

IR
EMEEE)
T EERERK ()

HREeMEE  BEZE
BREEA R

. BITERBE TR
BB X

. BH - e R SR
ISR B AE
&

. ERAKGB AR
EWENMBEM -

BN ABEHX AT EZE
MEE  ARERNEES
HMESERTEEEZS
MEERBEBRMNEFE
BZBRIRRRAZRER
BERZZE -

MIERASRZEREE
mE  REBESEKRE
B 2 FREE G E AR RE
TRENEUERMEEZ
BITMGRBARFERZ
BEzBNEEIE - A
FREBETENHERES
FEﬁ%SzE@ °

W A e el

116 Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2014



3

Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial
asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to
profit or loss. Charges in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at
amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Classification as debt or equity
Financial liabilities and equity
instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own
equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including bank
borrowings, trade payables, other
payables, bills payable, amounts
due to immediate holding company,
associates and joint ventures and
notes are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)
Financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss

A financial liability is classified as held
for trading if:

- it has been incurred principally
for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it is a
part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the
Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not
designated and effective as
hedging instruments.

Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss include held-for-trading
derivative financial instrument that
is not designated and effective as
hedging instrument. At the end of
each reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss is
measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
(iii) Derivative financial

instrument and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised
at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing
of the recognition in profit or loss
depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship.

Hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial
instruments (primarily foreign currency
forward contracts) as hedges of the
foreign currency risk in respect of
the notes issued. Such hedges are
designated and accounted for as
cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedging
relationship, the Group documents
the relationship between the hedging
instrument and hedged item, along
with its risk management objectives
and its strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions.
Furthermore, at the inception of the
hedge and on an ongoing basis,
the Group documents whether the
hedging instrument that is used in a
hedging relationship is highly effective
in offsetting changes in cash flows of
the hedged item.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 EEEFER@E
POLICIES (continued)
() Financial instruments (Continued) i) &MIE#E
(iii) Derivative financial (iii) FTEEMIAREH
instrument and hedging (%)
(Continued)
Cash flow hedges R nEEF
The effective portion of changes WEEEFERRERE
in the fair value of derivatives that HhziTES K—‘EI/E\E}]

are designated and qualified as
cash flow hedges are recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in hedge reserve. The
gain or loss relation to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (hedge reserve)
are reclassified to profit or loss in
the periods when the hedged item is
recognised in profit or loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued
when the Group revokes the hedging
relationship, the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or
exercised, or when it no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting.
Any gain or loss recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised in
profit or loss when the hedged items
affect profit or loss.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 EEGRER#®
POLICIES (continued)
() Financial instruments (Continued) i) &MIE#E
(iii) Derivative financial (iii) fTEEMIARET
instrument and hedging (%)
(Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts ZEERE A
A financial guarantee contract is ERMERELHTI— 3
a contract that requires the issuer *?é“?_%ﬁ?}%—lﬁﬁiﬁjz
to make specified payments to KRIERIERZBEBLIEA
reimburse the holder for a loss it WME—FEBEBAREIH
incurs because a specified debtor HAREBEEENIE  #E1THE
fails to make payment when due BEXNZRIBAFES L
in accordance with the original or %E%Ziﬂ% HAKE
modified terms of a debt instrument. BITMIEEERBBER
A financial guarantee contract issued NARBEETZS/E
by the Group and not designated REXD  NERAREBER
as at fair value through profit or loss EEGBREITEME
is recognised initially at its fair value f%é%@zx%ﬁzwﬂ g
less transaction costs that are directly R RYIFERIE A&
attributable to the issue of the financial = A T7§|J ReEiTEsm
guarantee contract. Subsequent to EREH: (\REEES
initial recognition, the Group measures EJri.‘%E'J%’S? 5% 2 - 3t
the financial guarantee contract at the AREEBRANEE | EE
higher of: () the amount of obligation & [ Eﬁ?ﬁﬂ‘“@%ﬁ R (i) #7)
under the contract, as determined in IRHER Z 2 FEBRBEEA
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, LREREMBRZ R5
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent #iH (@A) -

Assets; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the revenue
recognition policy.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 EEGEFEBR®E)
POLICIES (continued)
() Financial instruments (Continued) i) &MIE#E
(iii) Derivative financial (iii) FTEEMIAREH
instrument and hedging (%)
(Continued)
Derecognition AL TR

The Group derecognises a financial
asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset
expire.

On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial
liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligation are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

AEBRENEMEEN
BeWAZRORERER
ERETRILERBRES

R HRSMEER -
SIEEE Y BEEED K
T2 U 18 2 HL 9 TR
Hin 2 Bk 2 BiHER
BBy 2ENER
R -

AEERENEBEBEHM
TEZEERBELR - BEHE
B IIERSRE
B RIEBRERBEZ
REEED S ENRE
ZERMEm PR o

W A e el

124 Singamas Container Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2014
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts receivable for goods
sold or services provided in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from manufacturing and
logistics operations

Revenue from manufacturing operations
is recognised either at the time when the
containers being delivered and title has
passed to customers or acceptance notes
being issued by customers; depending on
the terms of the underlying sales contracts
and all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the
buyer the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred
in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from manufacturing and
logistics operations (Continued)
Revenue from logistics services operations is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Deposits and instalments received from
customers prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included
in the consolidated statement of financial
position under current liabilities.

Dividend and interest income
Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ rights
to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial
asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and
building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as
an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the
land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

()

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land for own use
(Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid
lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements, the entire lease
is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years, and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised
to profit or loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each
group entity are presented in the currency
of the primary economic environment
in which the group entity operates (its
functional currency). For the purpose of
the consolidated financial statements,
the results and financial position of each
entity are expressed in US$, which is the
functional currency of the Company, and the
presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (“foreign currencies”)
are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange difference arising on the
settlement of monetary items, and on
retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that
forms part of the Company’s net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case, such
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and will be reclassified from equity
to profit or loss on disposal of foreign
operation.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 EEgIHBER®

POLICIES (continued)

(m) Foreign currencies (Continued) (m) 5p#&#)

For the purpose of presenting the
consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations including comparatives are
expressed in US$ using exchange rate
prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated
at monthly average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuated
significantly during that year, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of
the exchange translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e.
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss
of joint control over a joint arrangement that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition,
in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or joint arrangement
that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Foreign currencies (Continued)

(n)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the
acquisitions of a foreign operation on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised
in the exchange translation reserve.

Retirement benefit costs

In respect of the subsidiaries in the PRC,
the Group contributes to a state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. Contribution payable by
the Group to the schemes is charged to the
profit or loss when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group
contributed to defined contribution
retirement schemes which were available
to certain employees of Hong Kong. The
assets of these schemes are held separately
and managed by independent trustees. The
amount of the Group’s contributions, net
of any contributions forfeited in respect of
those employees who leave the schemes
prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
is charged to the profit or loss as incurred
when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

3

EEESTHRE)

(m)

(n)

—B-mEER -

gk (&)
R-ZEZRF-A—HREEZ
BIERZAMAEEMELEZ
BERAREBEZAERE  SF
RIFIMEEBUMEERAGBR
2 WinmEHRENEZRSH
BE - ELELZRMER
RINESTH R o

BINEFIFTEIME

AREBRERNHEZHK B AR
B THE %EEIEPIEM?@T’EZEP
RRRETE - BERERBNER
AR ESHR - REEHHPR
ET?F Bl ZENHREF AR

E\I

R-ZZEZF+-_A—HA &
SENRETEEEERZ2EY
FEHFURRGT IR - ZFH
DA Bl EEHBIXTEAD
E'JHE&%EE ° %‘EE\HE%&(E\A

A AE AR CAREEZ#
UA/W%*%E%%&HQHXT%UA%EH'
HEtgl 2 BB Rz S B #
o MR FEABERA ©

BWEBEEERRAR 133



Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group
operates and contributes to Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF”) schemes which
are available to all employees of Hong
Kong. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustees. Contribution
payable by the Group to the MPF scheme
is charged to the profit or loss when
employees have rendered services entitling
them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the
best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the
effect of the time value of money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(q)

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees
The fair value of services received
determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss, such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to share option reserve.

When the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to accumulated profits.
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4

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the
Directors are required to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated allowance for doubtful
debts

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts
based on an assessment of the recoverability of
trade receivables taking into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The allowance is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the assets and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). Allowances are applied to trade
receivables where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected and where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of doubtful
debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation on the recoverability of
trade receivables is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact carrying value
of trade receivables and doubtful debt expenses
in the years in which such estimate has been
changed. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying
amount of trade receivables was US$248,718,000
(2013: US$227,123,000).

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying
amount of goodwill is US$6,246,000 (2013:
US$6,246,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 18.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value measurements and
valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. The directors
of the Company and Chief Financial Officer of the
Group are responsible for the determination of the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the assets, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available.

In estimating the fair value of derivative financial
instruments, the Group uses discounted cash flow
technique that include inputs that are based on
observable market data to estimate the fair value
of certain types of financial instruments. Note 6¢
provides detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of various
assets.

As described in note 6¢, the Directors use their
judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for financial instrument not quoted in
an active market. Valuation techniques commonly
used by market practitioners are applied. For
derivative financial instrument, assumptions are
made based on quoted market rates adjusted
for specific features of the instrument. The fair
value of the derivative financial instruments as at
31 December 2014 was estimated at an asset
of US$239,000. The fair value of the derivative
financial instruments designated as hedging
instrument as at 31 December 2013 was estimated
at an asset of US$3,071,000.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property,
plant and equipment with respect to depreciation,
management estimates the useful lives of various
categories of property, plant and equipment
according to the Group’s experiences over the
usage of property, plant and equipment and
also by reference to the relevant industrial norm.
If the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment is less than the original estimate
useful lives due to changes in commercial and
technological environment, such difference will
impact the depreciation charge for the remaining
useful life. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment was
US$361,966,000 (2013: US$347,131,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes the bank borrowings and
notes disclosed in notes 37 and 38 respectively,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and accumulated
profits.

The Directors review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the
Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6 @I HE
a. Categories of financial a. SRIAEZESE
instruments

Group Company
FEH NN

2014 2013 2014

—E-—M&E = —E-ME
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET FEx F=T

Financial assets CREE

Loans and receivables Bk & EUERZR
(including cash (BERER 613,981 644,709 307,616 372,217
and cash equivalents) RIZIR%)

Available-for-sale AHEEs

financial assets TREE 6,608 1,614 2,567 669
Derivative financial TESMIA

instruments 239 - 239 -
Derivative financial EEASHATA

instruments BPTE SR

designated as TR

hedging instruments - 3,071 - 3,071

620,828 649,394 310,422 375,957

Financial liabilites £ @ &E&
Amortised cost BIENR 692,140 653,160 354,396 394,364
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group’s and the Company’s major
financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, derivative financial
instruments, trade receivables, other
receivables, trade payables, bills payable,
other payables, bank borrowings, notes and
current accounts with immediate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries, associates,
joint ventures and subsidiaries. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
Several subsidiaries of the Group have
foreign currency sales and purchases,
bank balances and cash and bank
borrowings, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. Approximately
70% (2013: 67%) of the Group’s
cost of sales and expenses are
denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the relevant
group entity making the sales, whilst
almost 97% (2013: 96%) of sales are
denominated in the group entity’s
functional currency.
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuved) 6  &RIT R (#)

b. Financial risk management b. MHBEKEEBRBRERERK

objectives and policies (Continued) (&

Market risk (Continued) 15 R B (&)

(i) Currency risk (Continued) )  EREEE)
The Company’s currency risk is RARIEMENE SRR
not significant in both years, as WA#EZE  BRARAZ
its monetary assets and monetary BEREEREBAEEE
liabilities are mainly denominated LAZETTEHE @ WA AR A A
in US$, which is also its functional ZIEe g% -
currency.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s R E B E - REE LA
foreign currency denominated BIAECEBEEREY
monetary assets and monetary BEZERENT :
liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:

Assets Liabilities

BE &
2014 2014

—g-mE —T-=F =—¥-@OF
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
FET e TR ST

Renminbi (‘RMB”) AR 272,894 234,405 300,147 213,896

Hong Kong dollar /7T
(‘HK$") 8,941 21,796 756 1,113
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to
exchange fluctuation of RMB.

The sensitivity analyses include
financial assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies
which are different from the functional
currency of the relevant Group entities.
The following table shows the post-
tax profit or loss impact of the foreign
currency denominated non-derivative
monetary assets and liabilities to
change in RMB for the Group. The
numbers below indicate the (decrease)
increase in post-tax profit where RMB
is 5% (2013: 5%) higher/lower against
the US$. This is mainly attributable
to the exposure outstanding at the
end of the reporting period on RMB
bank balances, bank borrowings and
payables net of receivables assuming
they are outstanding for the whole
year:
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US$’000 US$'000
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FEx TET
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by 5% (2013: 5%) (=Z

“E-MEFR - BREEEEERAA 143



Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s and the Company’s
cash flow interest rate risk primarily
relates to floating rate borrowings
and variable rate bank balances.
Interest rate risk on bank balances is
considered immaterial due to short
maturity. It is the Group’s policy to
keep its borrowings at floating rate
of interest so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk.

The Group’s and the Company’s
exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note.
The Group’s and the Company’s
cash flow interest rate risk on non-
derivative financial instruments is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) and borrowing rates offered
by People’s Bank of China arising
from the Group’s and the Company’s
variable-rate borrowings.

Moreover, in order to minimise the
Group’s interest rate risk exposure
arising from the US$310,000,000
term loan, the Company entered into
three interest rate swap contracts,
with a total notional amount of
US$186,000,000, to fix the monthly
LIBOR at a range of 0.8775% to
0.8800%. The three interest rate
swap contracts will mature on 24
September 2017.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk
(Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below
has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for
bank borrowings at the end of the
reporting period. For floating rate
bank borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis point
(2013: 50 basis point) increase or
decrease in interest rate represents
management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rate had been 50 basis
points (2013: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2014
would have decreased/increased by
US$1,853,000 (2013: US$903,000).
The Company’s post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2014
would have decreased/increased by
US$1,750,000 (2013: US$820,000).
This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s and the Company’s exposure
to interest rates on its variable rate
bank borrowings.

The Group’s and the Company’s
sensitivities to interest rates have
increased during the current year
mainly due to the increase in variable-
rate bank borrowings.
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity
price risk through its investments
in unquoted equity securities. No
sensitivity analysis is presented as
the Group’s investments in unquoted
equity securities are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses
at the end of each reporting period.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s
and the Company’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group and the Company due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financial guarantees
provided by the Company is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position
and the amount of contingent liabilities
in relation to financial guarantee issued
by the Company as disclosed in note 47.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the
end of each reporting period to ensure the
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced. With respect to
financial guarantees provided to subsidiaries
by the Company and amounts due from
subsidiaries, immediate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries, the Directors consider the
credit risk is limited because the subsidiaries
have strong financial positions.
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited
because the counterparties are banks or
financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating
agencies or state-owned banks in the PRC.

The Group has concentration of credit risk
as 23.9% (2013: 14.6%) and 56.3% (2013:
51.0%) of the total trade receivables were
due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers, respectively. The
Group has assessed the creditworthiness
of these customers, all of these customers
have strong financial backgrounds and
high credit-rating within the industry. In
this regard, the Directors considered that
the credit risk is low. The Group also has
concentration of geographical risk as 61.1%
(2013: 52.3%) of the Group’s turnover was
generated from the customers from United
States of America (“USA”) and Europe.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk,
the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants or to timely negotiate
with the lenders if any non-compliance is
expected.
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s
and the Company’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment
dates. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay.
The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate curve at the end of
the reporting period.
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Bils payable ENZE - 13,854 51,200 19,825 - - 84,879 84,879
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142,104 139,083 96,681 334,494 - 712,362 692,140
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

(Continued)
2013

Weighted
average
interest rate

On demand
0r less than
1 month

1-3
months

IR #)
b. HMBERTEHERHBR

3months
fo 1 year

(%)
RBEERFREARRE(E)

Total Carying
unaliscounted amount
cash flows

1-b years 5 yearst

A -2=ff =@RE-f -%1 SIRE

US§000  USS000  USS000  USS000  US000  US$000

Tin Tin T Tin Tin S e
Financial iabilities HEeE
Trade payables EfERN - 38805 105,744 - - - 144549 144549
Bils payable B[S - 17,468 42611 3399 - - 83,478 63,478
Other payables AbERER - 17,007 1952 13545 - - 32,504 32,50
Amount due toimmediate B EEERAFEE
holding company - 12 - - - - 12 12
Amounts dueto associates  FERTEEARIZE - 268 - - - - 268 268
Amounts due o oint ventures ERFAE 258 - % - - - - 9 9%
Bank loans BER
- interest bearing borrowings' - 855" 2.13% 9,308 11,641 1,181 173716 - 1%86 186,065
Notes h 4.75% - - 231426 - - 231,426 226,095

83,057 16148 249551 173716 - 6822 653180

The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments for non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to
those estimates of interest rates determined

at the end of the reporting period.

For the Group’s interest bearing borrowings,

the weighted average interest rate at the end of
each reporting period is used for undiscounted

cash flows analysis.

Note:

The undiscounted cash flow of derivative

financial instrument was determined assuming
all variables used in the fair value calculation at
the end of each reporting period remained the

same until maturity.

ERRERERNT S REEY
FRARKE  ETEBHEN

W R E A R AR

. RAEE G EERME  RE
&K 2 T BB T
KAEARRE B 2 RE ST °

Wit - REVTEZTB TR AMHEE T
REBIIRR T EREHEHKRZ

RIE R TEEE R
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuved) 6  &RIT R (#)

b. Financial risk management b. MHBEKEEBRBRERERK
objectives and policies (Continued) (%)
Liquidity and interest risk tables RBEERANERERR (E)
(Continued)
Company AT
2014 —E—mEF

Weighted ~ On demand Total Carrying
average  orless than 13 Imonths undiscounted amount
interest rate 1 month months tolyear  1-5years Syears+  cashflows at31/12/2014

R-E-RE

WEYs #E% t=A=1-H
ERRE  JW-R  -22@A ZEAE-F  -ERE SREE RERENE  JEEeR
%  USS000  USS000  US§000  USS000  USHOOD  US§000  US$000
T3 e e Ti1 i e T

Financial liabilties Eﬂ%ﬁf*

Other payables - - 126 - - - 126 126
Amounts due to subsidiaries T - 3,614 - - - - 3,614 3,614
Amount due to immediate

holding company [k - - - - - 5 5
Amounts due to associates  FERTEEARIZE - 51 - - - - 5 59
Bank loans RTER

- nterest bearing borowings” - 3£ & 245% - - 35,660 334,174 - 369,834 350,000
Financial quarantee contracts & AERA# 26,731 54,193 14,027 - - 91,951 -

30,401 51,919 49,687 334,174 - 466,181 354,396

2013 —E—=

Weighted ~ On demand Total Carmying
average  orlessthan -3 3months unaliscounted amount
interest rate 1 month months to1year 4 Syearst  cashflows at31

§

A -EcfR ZERE% 7 7
Us§1000 IR US§000 ' US$000
THL THL S I

Financial liabilities HHaE

Other payables A RS - - 797 - - - 737 73
Amounts dug o subsidaries  TERTHBATZA - 3278 - - - - 3278 3278
Amount due to immediate ﬁﬂf #h
holding company REFE - 12 - - - - 12 12
Amounts due o associates Vﬁﬂaﬁ ENFHE - 219 - - - - 21) %)
Bankloans il
- nterest bearing borowings” - 3£ & 182% - - - 172077 - 172277 164,000
Notes g5 475% - - 3142 - - 148 2260
Financial quarante contracts - £BERAH 278 43,983 3937 - - 70,655 -
26,317 44670 235,363 172,217 - 478,621 394,364
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8177 M3t

6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables
(Continued)

The amounts included above for financial
guarantee contracts are the maximum
amounts the Company could be required
to settle under the arrangement for the
utilised amount that is guaranteed by the
Company if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Company considers that it is
more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However,
this estimate is subject to change depending
on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which
are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments for non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to
those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.

For the Company'’s interest bearing borrowings,
the weighted average interest rate at the end of
each reporting period is used for undiscounted
cash flows analysis.

Note: The undiscounted cash flow of derivative
financial instrument was determined assuming
all variables used in the fair value calculation at
the end of each reporting period remained the
same until maturity.

6 SERIE#
b. HMBERTEHERHBR
()

RBEERFIREARRK(E)

Fats Igli%ir"ﬂiﬂﬂ% #oR
BRBEARRAIAIRERERZMNE
@FHZ%%%%EH’JEE—EHIE%*
S TTEI BRAER o BB
HIRTEH - AAA] nw%ffETFtt%iF
ABRENZFAN A B MERIE -
R EfAFTRIBE S E - BUR
RE5A B HERY R UER KA L
FHTEXEEBRIAMRERE
FBUBRTHY AT RENE

ERFEREHTESBAE
FRARBE - HTREHAN
35 25 BRI T R A B o

\

. HARFIZFAEEENE  RE
WEHARZ g F19E /)’”%/Iﬁ?
%/’Fﬂ%ﬁfﬁﬁiwu ESNT °

Wit - REVTEZTH TR AMHEE T
RERRTAEREHEHKZ
RIE R T EEE R

“E-IEFR - BWEESEARLA 1561



Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

- the fair value of derivative instrument
is made of discounted cash flow
analysis using the application yield
curve and forward rate for the
duration of the instrument for non-
optional derivatives; and

- the fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities (excluding
derivative financial instrument) are
determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The derivative financial instruments is
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of
this financial instrument is determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are
those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities;

6

I H @)

C.

EMIAZAREE
EremEERERBELAR
EBESHIIWT

- TEEMIAZAREE

MABRTE BARFHE o EHT AN
HgEZITET AR EBK
SRR EITETAEZ
BERBETIRASR
EN Kk

- EHEpemEELERARE

(FRETELRIA) 2
A EER R E R
EEBA A RR ST E
PITEE -

BEREMEERFAELKEN
ERMEEMEMABBEZARE
]

REREHER - STESRT AT
BAREBEFE - THRERE
TWAEEM T AN ARE
B(EFREEERAZHERER
HE) URBETEEENA
A EEFEHENIERERE
EARBEMNSEER(EF—=
=) e

. F—BARBEFENX
DIEHRAEELRERE
BT 15 R B CRE R

B):
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

° Level 2 fair value measurements are
those derived from inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
and

° Level 3 fair value measurements
are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

6

IR #)
c. EMIAEZAREBE®E

BREEHEERFELFEEN
EMEEMEMBRZARE
B

. F_BAREBEFENZE
TIRIE - BRE—REVIR(E
SN BERABBENEM
B (BME) sk (A
REEE) 2 Al BEREUE
54

. F=ZRAREBEFERZX
TVERFERDAYBRERE
FERIEABRMSEZE
EXAEEEE(TAER
BUR) PTG -

“ER-NEFR - BWEELSEFER2A 163



Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

wr T H &)
EMIBZAREE )

6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6

c. Fair value of financial instruments C.

(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

Fairvalue asat  Fair value as at
Financial assets 31/12/2014 31/12/2013

B2-2-mF HBE-ZT-=%

+ZA=+-HIk tZA=+—-Hi

tREE NAREE NARERE
Interest rate swaps Asset of N/A
classified as derivative US$239,000

financial instruments
in the consolidated
statement of financial
position

RESBBMRK  239000XTEE NEH
DRRITESRT
S PAIESCE

Exchange rate swaps N/A Asset of
classified as derivative US$3,071,000
financial instruments

designated as hedging

instruments in the

consolidated statement

of financial position

[ i HpNR A B SR TER

REBENBREHTA
ZITEEBIE

3,071,000 T EE

There were no transfers between Level 1
and 2 in the current and prior years.

The Directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

|

Level 2

BEEHEERFELREEN
EMEEMEMBRZARE
B

Fair value Valuation technique and key
hierarchy inputs

EfE

HETEREEBE

Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future

cash flows are estimated based

on forward interest rates (from
observable forward interest rates

at the end of the reporting period)
and the contracted interest rates,
discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of various counterparties
TREERE - KRS RERM
TR EREARIR (RS R A
RRHFIR) RATEREAE - ZR
BMERSHEERRERITR

Discounted cash flow. Future

cash flows are estimated based

on forward exchange rates (from
observable forward exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period)
and the contracted forward rates,
discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of various counterparties
FRRERE - RRRERERM
TR HAE & (MRS BAR A AT
RRHER) RAOTERER - &R
BEZSHHEERBRERITE

F-REE_RZERAFE R
GIESERE SRR CEEE

RABEETARNEE MWK
tEMEESRERBE 2 H#E
REmEREQAAEERES -
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81773t

REVENUE

Revenue represents sales of goods from
manufacturing and services income from logistics
services operations, less returns, discounts and
sales related taxes, and is analysed as follows:

SR
BEBIERNEEB ZHE R RRIEZ
FRFS U SRR E « IR EREEER
DT -

2014
—E—-{F

US$’000 US$'000

FER FEx

Manufacturing BUEZET 1,515,408 | 1,253,879

Logistics services Wi AR TS 31,075 29,109

1,546,483 | 1,282,988

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker (i.e. Chief Executive Officer) for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance are organised into two
operating divisions — manufacturing and logistics
services. These divisions are the basis on which
the Group reports its segment information under
HKFRS 8.

No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision maker have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Principal activities are as follows:

Manufacturing - manufacturing of marine
dry freight containers,
refrigerated containers,
collapsible flatrack
containers, tank containers,
US domestic containers,
offshore containers, other
specialised containers and
container parts.

Logistics services — provision of container
storage, repair and trucking
services, serving as a freight
station, container/cargo
handling and other container
related services.

TERE R

EIRD BN BPR IR AR AR E
RLERARE (ERITHEE) 282
B B D AMIEL LR - BEE
BEMPDRARTS - BRANE B IR EER
E8IEIR - AEENRFAFIRELER
WEDEER -

AEBAREDHIWREHATES
IREREPTIETE 2 L2 DED

E

EBEBIT

WERl - LESEFRELE A
AELEA - TEART
RABA W EE
WB?EE#H: !IE;H:
AR AN
R SRR -

Wkt — REHEEEREREE &
& HE BB - &
R BERE - AR
Hi SR RARRIRT
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (cContinuved) 8 — T EB&E# (#)

Information regarding these segments is presented ZEDEERZRAT ¢

below:

Segment revenue and results TEEEERESR

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue REBERMERKED B EXERE
and results by reportable and operating segment: BT

2014 —Z-MF

Logistics
Manufacturing services Sub-total Eliminations Total

RER WA B et i it
US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000
TER TER TER e e

REVENUE L
External sales HIMHE 1,515,408 31,075 1,546,483 - 1,546,483
Inter-segment sales HEEEE - 8,381 8,381 (8,381) -
Total At 1,515,408 39,456 1,554,864 (8,381) 1,546,483
Inter-segment sales are charged 7 281 S5 & (B 1%

at prevailing market prices. ~ JHRTISET °
SEGMENT RESULTS DEEE 56,650 8,374 65,024 - 65,024
Finance costs BRER (13,802)
Investment income LN 4,704
Changeg in fair value fTEeRIA

of derivative LR BEEE

financial instruments 239

Reclassification of fair value ~ #IEE A%P T A

loss of derivative RATESRTA

financial instruments ZRRBEBRE

designated as hedging REPEEED

instruments from ES b

hedge reserve (3,071)
Share of results of associates JE(5EE &N 7] 7 BB (72)
Share of results of joint ventures JE(EAE (¥ E518 (498)
Profit before taxation BRI 52,524

W A e el
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

DEE R (&)

Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEVEEBRRESE (&)
2013 —F-=F
Logistics
Manufacturing services Sub-total  Eliminations
LB AR et HHiH B
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
REVENUE 2
External sales HOMHE 1,253,879 29109 1,282,988 - 1,282,988
Inter-segment sales AEEEE - 4,148 4,148 (4,148 -
Total At 1,253,879 33,257 1,287,136 4,148 1,282,988
Inter-segment sales are charged 7 281 S5 (B 1%
at prevailing market prices. ~ JHRTISET °
SEGMENT RESULTS THEE 51,268 10,305 61,573 - 61,573
Finance costs HEER (18,201)
Investment income BEBA 5,064
Reclassification of farr value ~ ##EE A%t T A
gain of derivative HiTESRIA
financial instruments AR EERT
designated as hedging REPHEEED
instruments from EY ot
hedge reserve 8,079
Share of results of associates JE{LESE 1 7] 2SR H 920
Share of results of joint ventures JE/R A B3 2 FiE (288)
Profit before taxation BRI A4 A1 57,147

Segment results represent the profit earned
by each segment without allocation of finance
costs, investment income, change in fair value of
derivative financial instruments, reclassification
of fair value (loss) gain of derivative financial
instruments designated as hedging instruments
from hedge reserve, share of results of associates
and share of results of joint ventures. This is the
measure reported to the Group’s Chief Executive
Officer for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

DEEBEIEE D BAFEN - BARDHE
MBER  REWA TE2BTAZ
DR BEES  WEEREHPTANDT
EeBTAEZARBEER)®EMNH
WnEmEL =B  BEBEARZ
(BB ®FMEERERRZER - It
Ty E IR B K 7 Hd 73 BRR IR i [ AN 5
BB E TR AR B 2 o B o
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8 SERE R (&)
Segment assets and liabilities THEERARE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s total REERMERKED BB EERLE
assets and total liabilities by reportable and BEITHT
operating segment:
2014 —=—pE
Logistics
Manufacturing services Total
BEXR Wik R ok
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER TER TER
ASSETS BiE
Segment assets NEHEE 988,148 67,970 1,056,118
Interests in associates N NI 3 43,265
Interests in joint ventures NEBL ¥ R 23,445
Unallocated corporate assets AP AREE 307,613
Consolidated total assets GREELE 1,430,441
LIABILITIES af5
Segment liabilities AEarE 353,908 11,178 365,086
Unallocated corporate APEARIARE
liabilities 392,922
Consolidated total liabilities FaBEeRE 758,008
OTHER INFORMATION HibEH
Amounts included in ARG ENEDER
the measure of BRI DEE
segment profit or e
loss or segment assets:
Additions of capital expenditure MEEARFX 36,777 4,074 40,851
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 23,391 3,220 26,611
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - #a3
plant and equipment REE BB (49) (1) (50)
Loss on property, plant and A - HER
equipment written off & 2= (122) 2) (124)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities

(Continued)
2013

ASSETS

Segment assets
Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures

Unallocated corporate assets
Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities
Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION

Amounts included in
the measure of
segment profit or
loss or segment assets:

Additions of capital expenditure
Depreciation and amortisation

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on property, plant and
equipment written off

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

BE

DEEE

REED

RAELR RE

MEERRX
FENEH

HEMR
R

EpmE

ZER

HERBRAZK

Notes to the Financial Statements 81773t

DEE R (&)
NMEERERE®)

—FT-=F

Manufacturing

US$'000
TXT

930,211

298,485

63,833
19,468

(102)

(1,461)
9,793

Logistics
services Total
MR a5
US$000 US$000
T TET

67,848 998,059
6,094

24,345

360,429

1,388,927

11,615 310,000
424,694

734,694

6,375 70,208
2,134 21,602
©) (108)

(15) (1,476)
5114 14,907
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (cContinuved) 8 — T EB&E# (#)

Segment assets and liabilities THEERARE#E)

(Continued)

The amounts included in other information are part BREEHMERNFIET) A HE REE

of the reportable and operating segments. DEBE—FR1R °

For the purposes of monitoring segment REREE S EEN D BRBMNERS

performances and allocating resources between fic,

segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating - BRAREE AR 2 s w/:l\,éf
segments other than interests in associates, EIZHERRARDBEARIEEIN -
interests in joint ventures and unallocated FIBEEEMDE E‘E?ﬁ%ﬁj Bf o A]
corporate assets. Assets used jointly by ¥R E > 50 B AR e %%Zéf?]ﬂ%l
reportable segments are allocated on the IRl E DB 2 & E R R EEE
basis of the revenue earned by individual B &
reportable segments; and

- all liabilities are allocated to operating - BRARDEARABGE(BEARFE
segments other than unallocated corporate MIEBRELERBEEE) MEA
liabilities, which included current and EEPEELEDE - JmED
deferred tax liabilities. Liabilities for which EERE] %Z@imﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁ
reportable segments are jointly liable are BTG L BIED
allocated in proportion to segment assets.

Revenue from major products and FTEERERBZEEXR

services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue AEBFB2EMIRBZERBONN

from its major products and services (after T(BHEEDEEHEE) :

elimination of inter-segment sales):

2014 2013
—E-mFE —ZT—=F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Manufacturing: BUEFER -

Dry freight containers SRR 1,071,233 924,686
Refrigerated containers RIREEERE 201,727 151,114
Tank containers ] 79,570 61,240
US domestic containers ERAFEEEF 127,411 69,689

Other specialised containers ﬁ@%@ =g
and container parts SEEMBRG 35,467 47,150
Logistics services fF%mHEﬁ‘k 31,075 29,109
1,546,483 1,282,988
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong,
the PRC and Thailand. The Group’s manufacturing
division is located in the PRC. Logistics services
division is located in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Thailand.

The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s revenue by geographical market based on
the location of customers, irrespective of the origin
of the goods/services:

8

DEE R (&)
Hh & 4 &1

REBZEBHREL - PR R
o AERE ZRUEXRBRNTE - VIR
RIFRNER ~ PEISLZRE -

TERERAREREFHRE ZMETS
D2 ERRE  UAREEERMELEN

ARG IR AR -

2014

—E—-lF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
USA e 719,697 542 594
Europe M 225,798 127,904
Hong Kong B 196,236 317,628
Taiwan = 219,079 80,131
PRC H 98,950 70,179
South Korea L 10,004 39,291
Others HAth 76,719 105,261
1,546,483 | 1,282,988
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8 FERER (&)
Geographical information (Continued) HE &R (&)

W TR IIBE CAEFER) ST HE
ERIFEABEE (SRTARIN) 2 EE
BE

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount
of segment assets and non-current assets,
other than financial instruments, analysed by the
geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amount of

Carrying amount non-current assets other than

of segment assets financial instruments
SRIAUMY

PRBEEZREFE FRBDEEZREFE

2014 2013 2014 2013
—g-mF = Z¥-BF =
US$°000 US$'000 US$°000 US$000
S TET FER TET
PRC F 1,013,443 955,658 480,426 445,202
Hong Kong B 42,600 42,360 19,486 7,398
Others Hth 75 41 715 762
1,056,118 998,059 500,627 453,362
Information about major customers FEXREM

REMEBEFELEAEBEHEBEBEL
10%MEFETERGREERK DI o
TE—NF - LEEEEBB10%H
EEFAMR(ZE—=F: —x) » Hj
E58/5380,427,000E L (ZE—=F :
208,002,000 7T) °

Revenue from customers contributing over 10%
of the total sales of the Group are mainly derived
from the manufacturing segment in both years.
In 2014, there are two (2013: one) customers
contributing over 10% of the total sales amounting
to US$380,427,000 (2013: US$208,002,000).
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9 FINANCE COSTS

Notes to the Financial Statements 81773t

9 MBEH

2014 2013
—E-NF =
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FEx
Interest on bank loans FBEZH ERREFA
and overdrafts wholly FEHEEZRITER
repayable within five years NiEX 8,357 3,730
Notes coupon payments FRES 3,025 10,566
Bank charges RITFES 2,420 3,905
13,802 18,201

10 INVESTMENT INCOME

10 ®/EWA

2014 2013

—E-mFE —ZT—=F

US$’000 US$’000

Fxx FET

Interest earned on bank deposits RITFF B UA 3,649 4,710

Interest income from a joint venture A& BEEFEUA 307 -
Dividend income from AHNE ZREREIA

available-for-sale investment 748 354

4,704 5,064
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11 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 11 BEBAELES
2014 2013
—E—{F =
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Profit before taxation has been BRAE AR A 2 F0BR (R
arrived at after charging THIEIE
(crediting) the following:
Auditor’s remuneration ZE B & 549 569
Staff costs, including directors’ EENA  BREESHE
emoluments
— Salaries and other benefits - e RHEAMET 135,096 97,138
— Retirement benefit costs (Note 13)  — :RIKEFIME R (A1a# 13) 4,657 4,282
— Share-based payments - AR - 34
139,753 101,454
Depreciation and amortisation PrE s
Depreciation of property, M - AR R
plant and equipment 25,179 20,346
Amortisation of prepaid lease e
payments in respect of ZENMEEFNIE
leasehold land 1,432 1,256
26,611 21,602
Operating lease charges KEHEEA
— Land and buildings - T RIETF 4,432 5,505
— Plant and machinery - HeRE AR 211 169
4,643 5,674
Allowance for doubtful debts RIZARAE 28 -
Share of taxation charge of associates &5 HE < A A1F 18 240 307
Share of taxation charge of BB REMIEA
joint ventures 82 95
322 402
Cost of inventories recognised ERERHEEKAZIFE
as expense 1,397,848 1,150,162
Loss on disposal of property, MEYIEE - SR
plant and equipment < 518 49 108
Loss on property, plant FTIEYIE - HER AR
and equipment written off < 518 123 1,476
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR 2
(included in other income) (BEEEMKAR) - (14,907)
Gain on disposal of an associate kNG g
(included in other income) (BEEEMBAA) - (15)
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12 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST

PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS

The following was the emoluments paid or payable
to each of the 9 (2013: 12) Directors of the

12

Notes to the Financial Statements 81773t

EERIZEEHMA LT ZHM

T

ATRENSBNAL(ZF—

T EZZEZ=ME -

=F:

Company.
2014 —E—mF
Teo Chan Cheng Lau
Siong Kwok Teo Kuan  FuKwok,  HoKi, Ong Yang Tan
Seng Leung TiouSeng  KimKin David Ivan  KaThai Victor  Chor Kee Total
RAE  RER FHEB  BBE  HEE 0 AUR 0 IZE BEH  WEE aE
(Note ) (Note ii)
(i) (i)
USY000  US$000  USS000  USH000  US$000  USF000  USH000  US$000  US$000  US§000
Tin  Tin  TErn & TR fEm fEm fEn TEn TER
Fees s 50 2% 26 4 17 4 36 4 26 312
Other emoluments; HfpMe -
Salaries and other benefts  E4 R o/ 406 2%9 - - - - - - - 675
Contrioutions to refiement ~ R{FBRIES:
benefit scheme 20 14 - - - - - - - 34
Performance related FERTEREES
incentive payments 700 68 - - - - - - - 768
1,176 3n 2% 4 17 4 36 4 2% 1,789
2013 —E—=4F

Teo
Siong Seng

Chan

Kuan

USS000  USS000  USS000  USS'000 US$000
T TEn " EE
Fees 37 23 2 K] 4 3 kil 10 i 8 2 259
Other emoluments:
Salaries and other benefits 390 27 4 20 18 730
Contrioutions to refirement
benefit scheme 20 13 2 1 3
Performance related
incentive payments 850 8 4 - - 90
Share-based payments HRER 14 3 1 1 1 1 1 3 2 u
1311 ke 7 3% 40 R kil 10 % 11 2 1992

ZE-NFFR - BWEECERRLR
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12 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST 12 EERTBmSFHMMA LT ZE

PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS A,

(Continued)

Mr. Teo Siong Seng is also the Chief Executive RN ST AR R EFEITIRARE - A
Officer of the Company and his emoluments FRBECMEE BREMIERERITER
disclosed above include those for services EFTREMRGE M -

rendered by him as the Chief Executive Officer.

Note i: Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David has retired from the Head of Hiati - ZPEgEy s A B R = F—PYaF A A — HEFTF
Shipfinance in Asia of Credit Agricole CIB with effective R EFRIRTT NS E R EE— M~
from 1 May 2014, he is allowed to receive remuneration B TE - BF5E A Al 5t 2 (F YR B -
since then.

Note ii: Mr. Tan Chor Kee had been appointed as non-executive Wigtii - BRBRESER -F—=F+H-HEZF
Director on 2 July 2013. BIHPITESE

Note iii: Mr. Chang Yun Chung and Mr. Hsueh Chao En, former Hfatii - FIEFRA PALERBEBFFEER =T
Directors, retired from office at the 2013 annual —=FEAH - AEGT E—=FE
general meeting held on 27 May 2013 and did not offer REBEFEXG_FRIT - W TEHEET -

themselves for re-election.

Note iv: Ms. Tam Shuk Ping, Sylvia resigned as executive Bistiv BBk AR - FE—=F—F — HEHFH
Director on 2 February 2013. TTEF -

The above analysis includes 2 (2013: 2) Directors Lo EREASBEERERe T
whose emoluments were among the five highest MATHERZME(ZE—=F: M
paid individuals in the Group. Details of the HEE - FREEB =R (ZT—=%F:
aggregate emoluments paid to the remaining 3 —R)BAREBRERAEREFMNA LT
(2013: 3) individuals whose emoluments were Al MAWINALREEHES AN Z A
among the five highest paid individuals in the T HEFEFBRET -

Group and which have not been included in
Directors’ emoluments above are set out below:—

2014 2013

—E—NF =
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Salaries and other benefits e hEMmET 509 475
Retirement benefit costs RIKtEF R 21 8
Share-based payments AR 32 - 1
530 484
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13

Notes to the Financial Statements 81773t

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

US$128,931 — US$193,396
(HK$1,000,000 — HK$1,500,000)

12

128,931 % T — 193,396 X 7T
(1,000,000 7T

EERTEAES A T Z BN
:AC))

mE 2 BE )57 T YIEE

2014
—2-nF

Number of
individuals

N

Number of
individuals

AR

- 1,500,000 7T) 2 2
US$193,397 — US$257,861 193,397 %7t — 257,861 7T
(HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000) (1,500,001 77T
— 2,000,000 7T) 1 1

No waiver of emoluments, compensation loss and
inducement to join or upon joining the Group was
paid to Directors or the five highest paid individuals
during the year .

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group operated
defined contribution retirement schemes for certain
employees in Hong Kong. These schemes are
registered under the Occupational Retirement
Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the scheme
are held separately and managed by independent
trustees. Under the rules of the schemes, the
employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at rates
specified in the rules. Any amount unvested
upon an employee ceasing to be a member
shall be used to offset subsequent employer’s
contributions.

13

FR - AEEYEAESSIARZSH
A LS ASEABN S - YERINEE SR HN
BANER [ By ) 2R D S A R BB A AR E

BAERERK

R-_ZEZZFE+_-F—HA AEED
AETEARERT AT HICRIKE
2l o 55 LB Y8 BB B H R AT 21
FEft o RSB ZEET D RIRBY S
TARBBENLER - RIBFTEIZRA - &
FRERESARBRAERTE 2L EMmE
BMEF - MEETHIRAAER - 8
HORBEIETS 2 RS E P I A LA 8
HiglREZH54K -

“ER-IEFR - BWEECEARAA 167



Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

13

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS
(Continued)

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group
has joined MPF scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The MPF scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee.

Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF scheme at rates specified
in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the MPF scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

The employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-sponsored retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government in the PRC.
Subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of relevant payroll to the retirement
benefit schemes. Obligations under the scheme
are borne by the PRC Government.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the
profit or loss representing contributions payable
by the Group to the MPF Scheme operated in
Hong Kong and the retirement benefit schemes
in the PRC amounted to US$4,657,000 (2013:
US$4,282,000).

No forfeited contributions of the Group’s defined
contribution retirement schemes was used to
reduce the current year’s contributions. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited
contributions, which arose from the employees
leaving the retirement schemes and which are
available to reduce the contribution payable by the
Group in the future years.

13

BB (&)

RN-_EZTF+_A—HiE AEEE
AERBRER I NDEBIELETE -
ZETEI Ty B R H 1 AR AT ENES) -
meas M AE e EIE R B - &5
B EENEAEENEENFATHAE
URFEARER -

REREERAE AR BRENERS
ERZEMANRE 2 L R AT B - &
SERRBEST A E—BEERREZ
ATEIHR o WA BDE WA S AT HURE R
KRB 2 AR o

EREZ KB AR EER T BB
HEFT 2 P RRIKETEIKE - IB A RIZA
WREEFE T AN LRLESIHK -
E S EEAEDRTERAEE -

BiEm Ik 2 RAREFERIAER
BN FZEEBTERLZBES T
A REFBEZRIRGTEI 2 #H35K
A 4,657,000 o( = T — = F:
4,282,000%7T) °

AR E 2 FE FFUR ARG B P I HEAR
Rz R E MAERUEIR & E 2 1R
B RBRERK AREWLERESR
BEFIRIRGTE] - MBEEARAUR KRB K
TR ORISR
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14 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profit for both years.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at
the rates of taxation prevailing in the PRC in which
the Group operates.

Notes to the Financial Statements 81773t

14 FEEHIERX

B IS BV B E Rk R
Bk F1.2 16.5% 3 -

B PRISTTDAF R R TUR
M AREERPBEEEE 2 BITHRE

E
a%o

2014
—E—mF
US$’000 US$’000
FER FEx
Current tax: REEHIA -
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBENIEH
— Current year - RFE 163 102
— Prior years overprovision - B E 4) (4)
159 98
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RS
— Current year o 17,861 18,514
— Prior years overprovision - BIFE S M (184) (77)
17,677 18,437
Deferred tax (Note 45): RIETRIA (Fat 45) -
Current year charge (credit) REEZH(ER) 1,788 676)
Income tax expense for the year REEZFEHIERY 19,624 17,859

B NEFR -
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8 IER X (&)
RBIERRINERE 2 BIE -
ARR—MBAEE S EENIALE
KA 2 BB B A R E RN Y
SETEHERECERER - HE5=
FAZRBECEREHRED 2£+m
%o Bt ADAI—HMEBRAR-ET
—mE+=—A=+— a¢¢g2¢!¢
LSS -

14 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 14

In accordance with the tax legislations applicable
to foreign investment enterprises, a subsidiary of
the Company are entitled to the exemption from
the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the first three
years commencing from the first profit-making
year of operations, after offsetting all unexpired
tax losses from previous years, and thereafter
to a 50% relief from the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax for the following three years. As a result, a
subsidiary of the Company was exempted from the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the year ended 31

December 2014.

Profit before taxation BRBL AR A 52,524 57,147
Tax at the domestic tax rate  SABI AT & & 25%

of 25% (2013: 25%) (2013 : 25%) 51 & 13,131 25.00 14,287 25.00
Tax effect of share of results  JE{h & 2 7 il

of associates 2R e 18 0.03 (230) (0.40)
Tax effect of share of EIEEBEEZEE

results of joint ventures B R 125 0.24 72 0.13
Tax effect of expenses that 7 51 B JfE iR i T b

are not deductible in TEER 2 H

determining taxable profit i 2 2,699 5.14 2,234 3.91
Tax effect of income that TERT & FE AR 5 )

are not taxable in BERE 2 WA

determining taxable profit 2 FiiEar L (1,731) (3.30) (1,091) (1.91)
Tax effect on tax losses RAF EARIERER

arising in the current L sEE

year not recognised IR 5,720 10.89 5,611 9.82
Tax effect of utilisation of FRBIFEREMER

tax losses previously 2 HBEE

not recognised B R (890) (1.69) (530) (0.93)
Overprovision in prior years Bl & [Z Z (i # # (188) (0.36) 81) (0.14)
Income tax on FriS R B Emi =

concessionary rate (1,148) (2.19) (2,104) (3.68)
Withholding tax on RO BEFE

undistributed profits LRI ETIE 1,830 3.48 (712) (1.25)
Others Hitb 58 0.11 403 0.71
Tax charge and effective REFFRIAS

rate for the year RBEMBIE 19,624 37.35 17,859 31.26
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15 DIVIDENDS

=7

RE AT

Dividends recognised as
distributions during the year:

Interim in respect of current
financial year, paid — HK1.5 cents
(2013: HK3 cents) per ordinary share

S0

15 I3
2014 2013
—E-F =
US$000  US$'000
FEx TET
DIRAE

~E

AFERZTPHEE - B
FEBA1.584L
—B-=F:

BRI AB) 4,685 9,363
Final in respect of the previous TFEZRKRE -2
financial year, paid — HK1 cent &A1 B
(2013: HK2 cents) per ordinary share —T—=%F:
FE@k2B1) 3,122 6,241
7,807 15,604

The final dividend of HK1.5 cents in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: final
dividend of HK1 cent in respect of the year ended
31 December 2013) per ordinary share, total of
which equivalent to approximately HK$36,276,000
(equivalent to approximately US$4,676,000) (2013:
HK$24,204,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$3,121,000) ) has been proposed by the
Directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in forthcoming annual general
meeting.

BEEeRAREHEE_T—NE+ A
T+ —HIEFESTRR15BIW(ZE
—=F : H=E =F+-A=+—
HIEFESEBBR1EBW) 2 KRR
B & HHBEZER4 36,276,000/ 7T (17
ZHR#4,676,000% L) (ZE—=4F:
24,204,000 7% 7T ( #8 % 7 #93,121,000
FEr)) - EALSKRRAAIASRIT 2R
BEXRE L@k -

==
=
— =
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16 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is

based on the following data:

Earnings:

Earnings for the purposes of
calculating basic and

16 SkEF

EAGHEEANEE
ST Z B 7

ARRIBRREGER RGN
WA BB E

2014
it E

US$’000
FTER

o=
Bt
=2
>

2013
—E—=4F
US$’000
F=T

diluted earnings per share 28,021 34,274
Number of shares: BRTEH -
Weighted average number of FEGTEERGR AT

ordinary shares for 2 B AR Ntk

the purpose of calculating FHEE

basic earnings per share 2,420,408,959 | 2,420,294,894

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary

RS
WERZ P

shares for share options 408,892 1,179,755
Weighted average number of FBUGTE# S TREN

ordinary shares for 2 BB hnE

the purpose of calculating FHEE

diluted earnings per share 2,420,817,851 | 2,421,474,649
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17 Y% - BBERR
EQUIPMENT
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Plant fittings and
buildings and and office Motor  Construction
site improvements machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
RELH
kigz BER HE £BR
RifuR i BAERE i ERIR ag
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
T = T TET TET TET
Cost s
At 1 January 2013 R=E-=ZF-f-H 165,707 184,286 12,520 10,385 117,506 480,404
Translation differences HEES 308 215 8 14 - 635
Additions HE 391 7,822 619 1,839 49,592 63,783
Disposals e - (870) (58) (470) - (1,398)
Write off i - (2,611) (480) (614) - (3,705)
Attributable to HERBAT
disposal of subsidiaries (38,804) (37,771) (2,297) (1,789) - (80,659)
Transfer 3 31,716 32,820 88 1,131 (65,755) -
At 31 December 2013 RZE-ZF+ZA=1-H 162,928 183,891 10,400 10,502 101,343 459,064
Translation differences HEER (48) 27 () 10 - (67)
Additions HE 15490 8,862 1,605 2,432 12,412 40,851
Disposals e - (890) (112) (1,186) - (2,188)
Write off B - (998) (1,510) (127) - (2,635)
Transfer s 5,125 17,900 1,034 882 (25,541) -
At31December2014  W=E-BE+=A=+-A 174,095 208,738 11,465 12513 88,214 495,025
Accumulated depreciation  2EHE
At 1 January 2013 R=E-=4-3-H 44,392 81,369 6,981 4,503 - 137,245
Translation differences BEER 108 70 6 16 - 200
Charge for the year TEEHE 5,881 12,382 622 1,461 - 20,346
Eliminated on disposals HELH - (525) (52) (387) - (964)
Eliminated on write off T - (1,424) (462) (343) - (2229)
Attributable to HEHBAA
disposal of subsidiaries (17,029) (22,294) (2,0006) (1,342) - (42,665)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+ZA=1—H 33,358 69,578 5,089 3,908 - 111,933
Tranglation differences hEEE (14) (14 1) (1) - (30)
Charge for the year TEENE 6,946 15,838 750 1645 - 25,179
Eliminated on disposals HELH - (756) (100 (656) - (1,512)
Eliminated on write off R iEgk - (890) (1,502) (19) - (2,511)
At31December2014 ~ W=Z-mE+-A=+-A 40,290 83,756 4,236 41 - 133,059
Carrying values REER
At 31 December 2014 R-E-ME+-R=1-H 133,805 124,982 7,229 7,136 88,214 361,966
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-=%1ZA=t-H 119,570 114,313 5,311 6,594 101,343 347,131
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17 WX > WRERE
EQUIPMENT (Continued)
The carrying value of land and buildings of the AREE L REF ZREED T
Group is analysed as follows: ™
Leasehold
land and Site
buildings improvements Total
HE L
RETF THHE wme
US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
T FET FEIT
Group KEE
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-—MF+_A=+—H
Held in Hong Kong ERAMEIZE
On medium-term lease R ERFE AT
(20 to 50 years) (20&£50%) 14,362 - 14,362
Held outside Hong Kong ~ E&BAIMBERFE
On medium-term lease R ERFE AT
(20 to 50 years) (202 504F) 3,215 116,228 119,443
17,577 116,228 133,805
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-A=+—H
Held outside Hong Kong ~ E&BNUIMNEEIZFE
On medium-term lease R ERFE AT
(20 to 50 years) (202 504F) 3,328 116,242 119,570
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17 Y% - B RRE B

EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Furniture,
Leasehold fittings and
land and office Motor
buildings equipment vehicles Total
HELH HE RER
kEF RAERE AE By
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TET TET TET TET
Company NG
Cost B%
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=%—HF—H 4,287 2,491 61 6,339
Additions HE - 8 - 8
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=
+-A=+—H 4,287 2,499 61 6,847
Additions NE - 969 - 969
Disposal e - (1,404) - (1,404)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—lmF
+-A=1+—H 4,287 2,064 61 6,412
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZFEHE
At 1 January 2013 RZZ—=F—Hf—H 846 1,988 61 2,895
Charge for the year KEEHE 113 181 - 294
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=%F
+-A=t+—H 959 2,169 61 3,189
Charge for the year AEFHE 113 214 - 327
Eliminated on disposals & H4H - (1,404) - (1,404)
At 31 December 2014 RZT—NF
+-A=+-H 1,072 979 61 2,112
Carrying values REEE
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-MEF
+=ZA=+-H 3,215 1,085 - 4,300
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=%
+-A=1+—H 3,328 330 - 3,658
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17 W% - MBERRE A

EQUIPMENT (Continued)
2014
Company —E—-E
US$’000
FEx
Leasehold land and buildings AR EATE 49 (20 = 50 F)
held outside Hong Kong on BHBBAIME
medium — term lease HHEE i MAEF

(20 to 50 years) 3,215

US$'000
=T

3,328

The land and building elements of a lease of land
and building cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is
treated as property, plant and equipment.

18 GOODWILL

Group

18

T REFHEOT L REF D &
ER T EEF AR E A DR - B
MAEBEIER - BEBENR

&g o

US$'000
=T

D%

R_T—=F—HA—H"
—F=FtZA=1+—H
N_FE-NF+_A=+—H

Cost

At 1 January 2013,
31 December 2013 and
31 December 2014

7,872

BE

NZF—=%F—A—H"
—F—=%+=-A=+—H
Fr—ZE—NFE+—_A=+—H

Impairment

At 1 January 2013,
31 December 2013 and
31 December 2014

1,626

fREEE
R-ZE-NE+=-A=+—H

Carrying values
At 31 December 2014

6,246

At 31 December 2013 RN E—=F+_"F=+—H

6,246

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
has been allocated to an individual CGU, including
five (2013: five) subsidiaries in manufacturing of
container.

SURERRME - BEOEE —ERIR
BRESEN BEABCE—=%F"

hffl) BREERKM ZHBRA]
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18

19

Notes to the Financial Statements 81773t

GOODWILL (continued)

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment,
or more frequently if there are indications that
goodwill might be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of CGU is determined
from value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations
are those regarding the discount rates, growth
rates and expected changes to selling prices
and direct costs during the period. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGU. The growth rates are based on industry
growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and
direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived
from the most recent financial budgets approved
by management for the next five years and
extrapolates cash flows for the following five
years based on an estimated growth rate of 5%
(2013: 5%). The rate used to discount the forecast
cash flows is 10% (2013: 10%). The Directors
consider that reasonably possible change in key
assumptions on which the Directors have based
to determine the CGU'’s recoverable amount would
not cause the CGU'’s carrying amount to exceed its
recoverable amount.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares and
investments, at cost
Less: Impairment loss recognised

18

19

LMD MIRE - AR

L HEREREE R

BE )

AEBE KL EEHHEETHMER
5 MBEAPRE R R e R
(B8 - BIRMR e B I -

R & BRI KO RERIREE R
BERTE AEEAEERARANE
ZHRXEEEAOBRE - BREUR
EHHEERMEZERNENZE -
BB ATH RAFTRER R - AR
BERTSEHEEREEEMERIIRS
B AR E R 2 FHE o B RKA
RIBRANIRRIBBMETE - HEEBRM
EREMNEE AT E L &G
BIRREF M TARE REETE VERE -

AEENE SRR ARBERIRE
BEMBANARAEFNTEEER
B Wi5% (ZT—=%F : 5%) MEET
BERRKIBUARKRAFHIRERE - A
LIETERIR @ mETE 2 REMNRR X
B10%(ZF—=F : 10%) - EFRAE
RAUAEEReREEM A KESEENE
ERIEEEENIEEH T T =3
BREeREENMEREBRTEYE

TR °

RE AR 2
Company

PN

2014

—z—mE

US$’000

TErx

2013

US$'000
T

345,112

330,340

345,112 330,340
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19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 RMHBRARZEE#E)

(Continued)
Particulars of principal subsidiaries as at RZFE—MOMEFR_T—=F+2ZH
31 December 2014 and 2013 are set out below: =+—B ARFRIZEFEMBAFIZEF
BT -
Issued and fully
Place of paid share/
incorporation/  Group’s equity interest contributed Principal
registration capital activities
EETR
R,/ Rk
S e KBk BaRE
2014 2013
—E2-PmF T
DY Terminal Ltd. Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Provision of
EAEEARAR BE HK$1,000,000 container
TEk storage and
1,000,000/ 7T repair services
RESRERT
REERS
Eng Kong Container & Warehousing Ltd. Hong Kong 73.3% 73.3% Ordinary Investment
KEEREEERAT Bk HK$300,000 holding
gl BEER
300,000 T
Eng Kong Container Services Ltd. Hong Kong 73.3% 73.3% Ordinary Provision of
KEEBRBARRR BB HK$3,000,000 container
Lai storage, drayage
3,000,000/t and repair services
REERM
@ - 8
REERH
Guangdong Shun An Da Pacific Container Co., Ltd. *  British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Marketing dry
Islands 1,000% 7T freight and
KBRS specialised containers
in the PRC
Bl
RERRREER
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Hui Zhou Pacific Container Co., Ltd. *
EMATERERAR

Ningbo Pacific Container Co., Ltd. * "
BHAFEEARAR

Qidong Pacific Logistics Equipment Co., Ltd.* "
BRAFOREBERRA

Qidong Pacific Port Co., Ltd. *
BRATEBBRAR "

Qidong Singamas Energy Equipment Co., Ltd.* "
BERBRERRBEERAR

Place of
incorporation/
registration

ekt

PRC
G

PRC
G

PRC
G

PRC
G

PRC
G

Notes to the Financial Statements 81773t

19 MMHBARZHEEm &)

Group’s equity interest

FREFERE

2014
—E2-QmF

91.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

91.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

“E-EFR -

Issued and fully
paid share/
contributed

capital
BETR
BRRS/
EARK

US$40,000,000
40,000,000% 7T

US$20,000,000
20,000,000%7T

US$55,000,000
(Note 1)
55,000,000 % 7T
(1)

RMB154,000,000
(Note 2)

AE# 154,000,000 7

(Hrit2)

US$92,500,000
92,500,000 7T

Principal
activities

Manufacturing
of dry freight
containers
HETRER

Manufacturing
of dry freight
and specialised
containers
ER SRR
REFER

Manufacturing
of refrigerated
containers

RELRERN

Provision of
container
terminal services
SRS

BB

Manufacturing
of dry freight
and specialised
containers
ER SRR
REFER
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19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 RMHBRARZEE#E)

(Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid share/
incorporation/  Group’s equity interest contributed Principal
registration capital LT

BETR

K,/ BERR,/

S KEEFTiG B E BARA

2014 2013
—E2-mF T
Qingdao Pacific Container Co., Ltd." * PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$26,605,700 Manufacturing
EEATERERAA " H 26,605,700 % 7T of dry freight
and specialised
containers
HETRERRS
REER
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific Container Co., Ltd. * PRC 77.2% 74.0% US$25,300,000 Manufacturing
(“Shanghai Baoshan’) H (Note 3) 25,300,000% 7T of dry freight and
HEBILATERERAR (Hi##3) specialised containers
(IH8EL]) HETRRRS
RfER
Shanghai Pacific International Container Co., Ltd. ** PRC 64.9% 60.0% US$26,000,000 Manufacturing
(“Shanghai Pacific’) # (Note 3) 26,000,000%7T of tank containers
PEATEREEERRR (Hi#3) LSRR
(I BT

Shanghai Reeferco Container Co., Ltd. * ¥ PRC 90.9% 90.9% US$22,000,000 Manufacturing
HEBHLREERR AR H 22,000,000 %7T of refrigerated
containers
WL RERA
Singamas Container Industry Co., Ltd. *# PRC 75.0% 75.0% US$5,100,000 Manufacturing
BREBRIXERAR " i 5,100,000 7T of collapsible
flatrack and
specialised
containers
PETRAE
KM RAER

W A e el
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19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Singamas Container Holdings (Shanghai) Limited *
BREEER (L) ARRA"

Singamas Depots Holdings Ltd. *
BREStEERAR -

Singamas Management Services Limited *

Singamas Logistics (Qingdao) Co., Ltd. *
BRI (BR)ERAR

Singamas Logistics (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. **
B (R2)BRAR

Place of
incorporation/
registration

R/

ekt

PRC
G

Hong Kong
Bk

British Virgin
Islands

ARRAES

PRC

FE

PRC
G

Notes to the Financial Statements 81773t

19

Group’s equity interest

FREFERE

2014
—E2-QmF

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

60.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

60.0%

100.0%

Issued and fully
paid share/
contributed

capital
BETR
BRRS/
EARK

US$2,000,000
2,000,000 7T

Ordinary
HK$10,000
i
10,0007%7C

US$1,000
1,000% 7T

US$5,780,000
5,780,000 % 7T

US$6,500,000
6,500,000 T

NB AR ZERE &)

Principal
activities

Provision of

technical and
development services
of container
manufacturing
e
BUIE

Investment holding

REER

Provision of
management

services
RUEERRE

Provision of
container storage
and repair services
RESRERT
REBRS

Provision of
container storage
and repair services
RESRERT
REERE
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19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 RMHBRARZEE#E)

(Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid share/
incorporation/  Group’s equity interest contributed Principal
registration capital LT

BETR

B,/ BERR,/

S KEEFTiG B E BARA

2014 2013
ZB-mE T

Singamas North America, Inc. * @ USA 100.0% 100.0% US$500,000 Marketing
e 500,000% T containers in
the USA
EXRRSHERA
Singamas Terminals (China) Ltd. British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7T holding
RERTHS RERR
Singamas Terminals Holdings Ltd. * British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7T holding
RERUES REAER
Singamas Terminals (HK) Ltd. British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7T holding
ABRAHE REER
Singamas Terminals (Hong Kong) Ltd. Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Provision of
BMERRE (B8) BRAR B HK$5,000,000 mid-stream
LR senvices
500000087  BREPRIEXRS
Singamas Warehouse (Shanghai) Company Ltd. British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7T holding
B e REER
Superb Gain Holdings Limited* British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Property
Islands 1,000%7T holding
RBRAEE NERE

W A e el
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19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 RMBRARZEEZ#E)

(Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid share/
incorporation/  Group’s equity interest contributed Principal
registration capital activities

BETR

S K& BTGB E BARA

2014
“B-MF

Tianjin Pacific Container Co., Ltd. * *# PRC 97.0% 97.0% US$25,700,000 Manufacturing
RENFERERAR H 25,700,000 % 7T of dry freight
and specialised
containers
ER SR
NFTERE
Tianjin Singamas Container Co., Ltd. ** PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$2,000,000 Provision of
REBMEBRERAR " H 2,000,000%7C  container storage,
repair and trucking
services, and
serving as a
freight station
RESRERT
B R
REERE
Well Key Limited * Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Provision of
BRERAR" 55 HK$ 1 human resource

L®R  management service

1B READER

ERIRG

Wellmass Group Ltd. British Virgin 60.0% 60.0% US$10,000 Investment
Islands 10,000%7T holding

RRRIHE REER

Xiamen Pacific Container Manufacturing Co., Ltd. ** PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$23,000,000 Manufacturing
EMATEREEERAR " H 23,000,000 7T of dry freight
containers

HEHEER

Yixing Singamas Metal Products Co., Ltd. * # PRC 95.0% 95.0% US$200,000 Manufacturing
EEBFSESImERAT H 200,000 70 of container parts
SEE SRR
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19

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
* Subsidiaries held directly by the Company
# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in

accordance with relevant laws and regulations

Wholly owned foreign enterprise established in the PRC
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations

@ Represented common shares held by the Company

The principal place of operation of each subsidiary
is the same as the place of incorporation/
registration stated above, except for those
companies incorporated in British Virgin Islands
and Bahamas which are incorporated for
investment holding purpose.

The above list gives the principal subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the Directors,
principally affected the results and assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year.

Notes:

1 The Group had made an additional capital investment of
US$10,000,000 during year 2014. The paid-up capital
increased from US$45,000,000 to US$55,000,000
accordingly.

2 The Group had made an additional capital investment of
RMB64,000,000 during year 2014. The paid-up capital
increased from RMB90,000,000 to RMB154,000,000
accordingly.

3 By end of December 2014, the Group made
an additional acquisition of 4.9% equity interest
of Shanghai Pacific at a cash consideration of
RMB29,277,000 (equivalent to US$4,770,000).
Such acquisition also increased the Group’s effective
shareholding of Shanghai Baoshan, from 74.0% to
77.2%, since Shanghai Pacific holds 65% equity interest
of Shanghai Baoshan.

19

2 KEFHR =

NB AR ZERE &)

* AR AEEIFEZER A

i’ RIBFFBZOI RAEERFEL T2
Bib=E

. RIZE BZ D RAEE R EK T2 2IME
HHLFE

@ HERALEF A BB

BREBELESEMERBEKIIIAER

REER AR BHBARKERD
2 E BB FXCPRE 2 AL R
FOAER] -

ERFIAREERA/YAEE ZEF

NEEBERTENTIENBLAR - &
E2RARBEEMMMNB AR ZF15#3
BERBEER -

REAEEL  WREEANBARS
REEZEAES -

1 FEFR = F—PYF 121 7 10,000,000
ETRIILE - AEHALF A 45,000,000
ETTHE HI1ZE 55,000,000 F T °

—FEENTARK
64,000,0007z/Jx KEE o HEHKA
# A #90,000,0007T 1 /il & A F #
154,000,000 7T °

3 RZFE—WFE+ZAE  FEBUAR
129,277,000t (1% 74,770,000 % 7T )
ZHEREWE LG FEE4.9%8%
B - AR EBXFIiFE LFEL
65% BRI - I NES N EEFFFEH
FEEIRE R R 7 74.0% 15 I E
77.2% °

W A e el
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20

21

Notes to the Financial Statements B/ 77 M3t

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO
SUBSIDIARIES

Company

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured
and repayable on demand. Included in the
amounts due from subsidiaries is an amount of
US$20,000,000 (2013: US$20,000,000) which
bears variable interest at a spread of no more
than 0.25% (2013: 0.25%) per annum over the
cost of bank borrowings of the Company. The
remaining balances are interest free. The Directors
expected the amounts due from/to subsidiaries to
be recovered/repaid within twelve months after the
end of the reporting period.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN
ASSOCIATES

20

21

FEYL, FE A1 Mt B 1 B FX IR

VNN

FEWH B AR REYERBERLE
BEERBH  TEKKMERRAR
18 20,000,000 T( =T — = F :
20,000,000 7T) BB EEH - FHE
KARR R Z IRITE R AT Z R E
B0.25%(ZF—=%:0.25%) =Bt
B o ABRFKIBETEAE c RARIEESTE
HARE W FE ST B A R FUBE AS FE TR
Kig+ =@ A mukE, Bt e

FEATH B A RIIRYS R &R - R EHE
R MORBEEERAH -

RBERRZESE 1RE

Group Company
AEE AAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mOF —T—=F ZE-mF —T-—=F
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$000
FEn FE1 FEx FET
Unlisted shares FEET &
and investments:
At cost DN 41,139 2,669 517 517
Share of post-acquisiion ~ FEGUREETE
reserves, net of & mE
dividend received WA ) 2,126 3,425 - -
43,265 6,094 517 517
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21 INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN 21 REENRZEZD BE@w
ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2014 RZFE—MER_T—=F+T2H
and 2013 are set out below: =+—H AEEZEFEBERAZEF
(ELUENE
Place of
Form of incorporation/
business registration Group Proportion of Principal
structure  and operation equity interest voting power held activities
i REE &
K REEHZ Frfb R AR TEER
2014 2014 2013
“E-mF = ZB-QmF =T
Modex Holding Limited Incorporated British Virgin 28.5%" - 20.0%" - Manufacturing and
] Islands (Note 1) leasing of offshore
RBRAES (1) containers
BERHE
BIERAE
Ningbo Victory Container Co., Ltd. *  Incorporated PRC 40.0%" 40.0%" 40.0%" 40.0%" Provision of
ERRBREEERLAT HE ] container storage
and repalr
services
SRR
REERE
Singamas Thai Logistics Co., Ltd. * Incorporated Thailand 25.0%" 25.0%" 25.0% 25.0% Provision of
] % container storage
and repalr
services
SRR
REERE
Xiamen Xiangyu Singamas Container  Incorporated PRC 28.0%" 28.0%" 28.6%" 28.6%" Provision of
Co., Ltd. ¢ ] i container storage,
EFREBERERERAR repair and trucking
services, and
serving as a
freight station
RS RMRE
B HER
HEURE
* Associates held directly by the Company * AR ERZEFEEZBENA]
# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in # RIEFRZOIREERFEL T2 s
accordance with relevant laws and regulations B
» In proportion to issued and fully paid registered capital . EEETTREEFMBRAZ O

e A L el
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21

Notes to the Financial Statements B/ 77 M3t

INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Note:

On 19 February 2014, Teamwill International Limited
(“Teamwill”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
has entered into the master agreement and the related
agreements, pursuant to which Teamwill obtained
26% of the enlarged issued share capital of Modex
Holding Limited (“Modex”), a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liability at a cash
consideration of US$32,145,000. A newly formed
Modex Group including Modex and its subsidiaries,
becomes one of the world’s largest providers of DNV
2.7-1 offshore containers and modules to the oil and
gas industry.

Completion of the transactions contemplated under the
share transfer agreements took place following signing
and Euro Offshore Leasing AS (“Euro Offshore”),
principally engaged in selling and leasing cargo and
modules for the offshore industry, and Modex Asia
Limited (“Modex Asia”), a company that specialises
in manufacturing, trading and leasing of offshore
containers, have become the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of Modex. Modex has become the investment holding
company for the Modex Group. As of date of signing
these agreements, Teamwill holds 26% of the enlarged
issued share capital of Modex.

For a period of 18 months from the date of those
agreements, Teamwill shall further contribute up to
US$11,500,000 in cash for additional shares of Modex
upon the request by Modex. Modex exercised its
equity call in July and September 2014 and Teamwill
made further capital injection of US$2,875,000 and
US$3,450,000 respectively.

21

REENT 2R BE

RZF—WF=A/A+NH ALRa]—2
E 18 2 7] Teamwill International Limited
([ Teamwill]) ZZ % l7:% R 166 7% - A
B 4732,145,000 % 77,2 3 £ (L B EK 2
Modex Holding Limited ([Modex]) — —
BREEE L ST M T ERETAR
7] — AL 26 % BTG 24
FX 5 Modex % [F] - £ 1% Modex & & 1 &
REIpE B R F BRI RS RITEIEH
DNV2.7-1 8 T 5 378 & # A0 19 R A (7
JEBZ — °

1B TR 7% HGETT.2 X5 ER
# & b5 52 5% - Euro Offshore Leasing AS
([Euro Offshore)) (F Z{ FiHERHE
BT 77 3 19 B 78 K 48 14 ) LA & Modex
Asia Limited ([ Modex Asia) (—FH7 ZFT&!
M HERMEGTERFHAA) DK
AModex }& T #) = & [ & 23 7] « Modex
B % 7 Modex 5 [F] i) & & 17 R 22 7] © 1
REEZEGZEEH  Teamwill B 5
Modex #EHEA 1% B 1T A 26% ©

HZ L a5 H BT 18 181 A A - Teamwill
75 JE Modex #7 73 3K+ 1X 11,500,000 3 7T
B LR - UH 2 & E Modex.Z
BN 7 o Modex 73 B R — F — PYF +
HENATTIERBEINR (R FET - &F
1t - Teamwill £ — #£ % & 2,875,000 % 7T
3,450,000 7T °
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21 INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN 21 REENBIZEDRBE @)
ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Summarised financial information of a material EAREE N IEEREE
associate:
Summarised financial information in respect of the EHASEE R E AR 2 HEERSE
Group’s material associate is set out below. The ZHINWNT - Tz HBELRERIR
summarised financial information below represents BEEAVBRELENRENTBHRE
amounts shown in the associate’s financial BE N AR FIRZEEE ©

statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity B RNRNAEELi G TR ARE
method in these consolidated financial statements. AN o
Modex Modex
2014
—E-mE
US$’000
FEx
Current assets REEE 33,639
Non-current assets EMBNEE 149,136
Current liabilities ViEIR=RE (10,319)
Non-current liabilities EMBAE (77,191)
Revenue EERE 47,389
Loss for the year FREE (3,521)
Other comprehensive income FAEMEEYE

for the year -

Total comprehensive income FAEHEWELTE
for the year (3,521)
Dividends received from FRBEEE R RHEZ R

the associate during the year -

e A L el
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21

Notes to the Financial Statements B/ 77 M3t

INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN 21 REENBIZEDR BE @)
ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial FHt B E R B BAR S B SRR P
information to the carrying amount of the interest R E R AERREE ¥R

in the associate recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

2014

—E—-F

US$’000

FEx

Net assets of the associate B Nmz EEFE 95,265
Proportion of the Group’s ANEE A Modex 2 FT B HERERS

ownership interest in Modex 2 27,196

Goodwill EES 10,480
Carrying amount of the Group’s REE N Modex 2 #E xR EIE

interest in Modex 37,676

Aggregate information of associates that are not
individually material:

FEERIEE B E R RIERAER

2014
—E—-mF
US$’000 US$’000
FErn FErT
The Group’s share of AEBEGE ZAFR G
profit for the year 722 920
The Group’s share of AEEEREZFA
other comprehensive income H A2 EWa - 97
The Group’s share of REEREZFA
total comprehensive income EHREERE 722 1,017
Aggregate carrying amount RNEEE(L 2B E AR
of the Group’s interests in HEREE
these associates 5,589 6,094

“E-EFR -
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22 INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN 22 REELEZED HE
JOINT VENTURES
Group
rEE
2014
—E-IF
US$’000 US$’000
FTER FET
Unlisted shares and investments: FEEM 2D -
At cost DN 23,101 23,088
Share of post-acquisition reserves, FEIL BRI
net of dividend received R E MR F 344 1,257
23,445 24,345
Particulars of principal joint ventures as at RZE—ONERZFT—=F+=A
31 December 2014 and 2013 are set out below: =+—8" $%Z£Eéi§ﬁ¥§¥’|§
LU
Place of
Formof incorporation/
business registration Group Proportion of Principal
structure  and operation equity interest voting power held activities
R/ 7 A58 &
REEHE Frib Vi 114 TEEH
2014 2014 2013
—B-mE ZE-mE  _F-=F
Dalian Singamas International Incorporated PRC 36.8% 36.8% 33.3% 33.3% Provision of
Container Co., Ltd. * EE HE container storage
REBERERSREERA and repair
services
RUERNRE
REERT
Fuzhou Singamas Container Co., Ltd. *  Incorporated PRC 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% Provision of
BNBHERERLF ] A container storage
and repar
services
RUEKNRE
REER

e A L el
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22

INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN

JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements B/ 77 M3t

22 NEBLEzEEZ HES

Place of
Form of incorporation/
business registration Group Proportion of Principal
structure  and operation equity interest voting power held activities
B/ A5E &
RIF REEHY Frit Vi 1141 TEEH
2014 2014
“B-MF “E-IE
Shanghai Huasing International Incorporated PRC 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% Provision of
Container Freight Transportation EE m container depot
Co., Ltd. * (‘Huasing’) and related
LAERRREEREEERAR logistics services
([££)) REEERES
ESRPE
MR
Qidong Singamas Offshore Incorporated PRC 64.3% - 50.0% - Manufacturing of
Equipment Co. Ltd. * A H (Note 1) offshore containers
ERBPEIREERAR " (1) WEGTERR
# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in # RIZGRZOIREERFEL T2 e
accordance with relevant laws and regulations Eibx
The voting power of the Group in respective joint REBERBEZEAELECRERTIA
ventures is determined by the proportion of the ERAEEDIRZEEELENES
Group’s representatives in the board of directors of SFFA Z IR -
respective joint ventures.
Note: Bt -
1 In January 2014, a joint venture namely Qidong 1 REZFE—F—F  FEFEE ERF —

Singamas Offshore Equipment Co. Ltd. has been
setup with joint venture partner, Modex, to engage in
manufacturing of offshore containers at Qidong, the
PRC. The Group directly holds 50% equity interest
of Qidong Singamas Offshore Equipment Co. Ltd..
Since the Group also holds 28.5% equity interest of
Modex, the Group’s effective equity interest on Qidong
Singamas Offshore Equipment Co. Ltd. was 64.3% as

at 31 December 2014.

Modex 7P BIR R K7 — & B % [BIR
BRETREFRAA]] - WHEFREE
THEEFERE - PEBEEIFERRER
BT REBRLA50.0% R 1EEzZ B
A5 [E T1 55 Modex28.5% B9 i 7 -
Bt - REER = F—PIFE =4 —
AEER BRI RIEFRAAZ
K1 /5 64.3% ©

Summarised financial information of a material joint
venture:

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material joint venture is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

BERAXAEEEASELE ZMBER
EHIINT - Tz MBEERBERIR
BERBMBHREENRENTBHRERZ
BRELEMBHRRTPIRIEE °

“E-IEFR - BWEESEAERAA 191



Notes to the Financial Statements 51773

22

INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN 22 RE

JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity B8
method in these consolidated financial statements. A

Huasing

—E-MEF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FETT

Current assets mENEE 8,791 10,009
Non-current assets ERBEE 24,867 26,100
Current liabilities MEEE (10,751) (11,892)
Non-current liabilities EmBEE (146) (147)
The above amounts of assets HMEERBESRE

and liabilities include the following: EBENATHIER -
Cash and cash equivalents BekERER® 3,368 5,158
Current financial liabilities RBMBRE

(excluding trade and other payables (B IEERBRF »

and provisions) E At ST BR R SR BB ) (5,393) (6,561)
Non-current financial liabilities MBI EE

(excluding trade and other payables (B fEERTBRFX »

and provisions) H b BR R S et ) - -
Revenue EERE 30,974 29,919
Loss for the year FNEE (1,817) (1,779)
Other comprehensive (expense) FRNHEMEE

income for the year (ZH) Wz (142) 1,065
Total comprehensive expense FAREEZ LB

for the year (1,959) (724)
Dividends received from the joint FANEEGE RN FIUE

venture during the year Z IR - -

e A L el
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22

INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN
JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements B/ 77 M3t

22

NREBLEZHESRE HE#®)

2014 2013
—FRmF | T =F
US$’000 US$’'000
FEx FET
The above loss for the year FatHFREE
include the following: EBENTHIER -
Depreciation and amortisation e R SE 1,336 1,175
Interest income FLEUA 36 19
Interest expense FBRXZ (379) (309)
Income tax expense FTS iz 190 172
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB ER BB AR S I TS IR AT
information to the carrying amount of the interest RZEERZREE R -

in Huasing recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

—E=—NF
US$’000
FEx
Net assets of the joint venture BERAIZEEFRE 22,761 24,070
Proportion of the Group’s REEREE Y
ownership interest in Huasing FrB ez 2 Lo il 9,104 9,628
Goodwill Bl 2,188 2,188
Effect of fair value adjustments at BN EBERAE
acquisition 02 5,576 5,576
Other adjustments HE e (283) (23)
Carrying amount of the Group’s REERES
interest in Huasing T REE 16,585 17,369

“E-EFR -
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22 22 NEBLEzEZ HES

INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN
JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not
individually material:

FENEEY BB ENEA]

2013
—E-NOF —_T—=F
US$’000 US$’'000
FErx FET
The Group’s share of profit REE R 2AFE
for the year il 229 424
The Group’s share of REBEEZFA
other comprehensive income Hh 2wk 2 206
The Group’s share of REBEEZFA
total comprehensive income FHEHWEERE 231 339
23 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 23 AHEHEZRE

INVESTMENTS

Group
A%

Company
NG

2014
—2-nF
Us$’000

2013
—T—=F
US$'000

2014
—2-DF
Us$’000

2013

US$'000

FER

LRSS
- [BRGES » AKAR

Unlisted security

- Equity security, at cost 6,608

TET FER TEL

1,614 2,567 611

The above unlisted investment represent
investment in a unlisted equity security issued by
private entity established in the PRC. It is measured
at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the Directors are of
the opinion that its fair value cannot be measured
reliably.

b 3E £ RS R AR B R AR L 2 Al
ANEBEREITIIFLMBRARFRE -
HRAEAREBEGTHEEN  EF
REBANBETEASETE - HZFR
BRNEWMEMRIBAAIIRREE -
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23 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 23 AHHEZRE@®
INVESTMENTS (Continued)
The Group’s unquoted equity investment AREEFEZIF LHESKRERMEE
represented 14.0% (2013: 14.0%) equity interest FIREYRERRNBR AT 14.0%(=
of Xiamen Superchain Logistics Development Co., T—=F 14.0%) kiR &R
Ltd., a logistic company in the PRC. Additional B E 2 YR AR - R-F—
capital investment of RMB30,562,000 (equivalent FZAZ+N\B  AEERAKNRE DR
to US$4,994,000) and RMB11,969,000 (equivalent 1R P A R i EE IR HH A R 30,562,000
to US$1,956,000) was made by the Group and JC(FE & 704,994,000F T ) & A R
the Company respectively on 28 March 2014 11,969,000 7t ( 48 % 71,956,000 %€ 7T )
according to their equity interest ratio. MREINE R E o

24 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 24 FEFHEFRIR

Group
#EE

2014 2013

—EB-mE —T=F
US$000  US$'000
FEx =~ FEx

The Group’s prepaid lease REBE 2 FENHEEREA
payments comprise: B -

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: &8 LAY &
ZHE T -
Medium-term lease AR ERFRAY 57,213 58,747

Analysed for reporting purpose as: WMEMEL 22T -

Amount shown under RIEREEEZ R
non-current assets x| 55,904 57,436
Amount shown under current assets WA BEESHR o S5 1,309 1,311

57,213 58,747
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25 DEPOSITS FOR NON-CURRENT 25 EREBEERE

ASSETS
Group Company
XEE NG

2014 2013 2014 A

—E-pF
US$'000
FER

—E—=F
US$000
TE1

—g-mf
US$°000
FE5

US$000
TET

Deposits paid for property, ~ 2R#IE - #EE
plant and equipment RiEtEE:
(Note ) (Hieti) 679 2,955 - 2,840
Deposits paid for prepaid ERBAHEE
lease payments (Note i) RS (Hiti) 9,122 9,155 - -
9,801 12,110 - 2,840

Notes:

e

At the end of the reporting period, deposit of
RMB4,155,000 (equivalent to US$679,000) (2013:
RMB700,000 (equivalent to US$115,000) and
HK$22,021,000 (equivalent to US$2,840,000)) had
been paid for the purchases of property, plant and
equipment. The remaining balance was disclosed
as capital commitment as set out in Note 48. The
acquisition is expected to complete in 2015.

At the end of the reporting period, partial payments
for the acquisition of land use rights in Qidong, the
PRC, amounting to RMB55,820,000 (equivalent to
US$9,122,000) (2013: RMB55,820,000 (equivalent
to US$9,155,000)) had been made by the Group, for
the development of new factories. The land use right
certificates have not yet been obtained by the Group as
at 31 December 2014 and expected to obtain in 2015.

RIFER K - BT A K #4,155000T
(HHER679,000%T) (ZFE—=14F : A
R 700,000 7T (18574 115,000 7T ) &
22,021,000/ 7T (1551 2,840,000% 7T ))
EBIBEYE « HESRBZEFEZ L - BT
HEERYTF 48 E XA AIE(EHTE - ILFE
BIEA AR - E—HFETH -

R#FEHK FHAESHARE
55,820,0007T (15 19,122,000% 7T ) (=
FE—ZF : AR 55820000 (HHER

2 IR ES 7 E - FAERERT T
B e R-B—FEF—H=—+—H F%
EIARRGZ L FEAE - ARG
R E—AFAREF -
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26 INVENTORIES 26 =F&

Group

KEE
2014 2013
—E-OF —ZT—=fF
US$’000 US$000
FEx FETT
Raw materials FEA 116,438 124,363
Work in progress R m 54,148 34,969
Finished goods 2URK o 62,327 57,219
232,913 216,551

The entire carrying amounts of inventories as at
31 December 2014 and 2013 are expected to be
recovered within the next twelve months.

27 TRADE RECEIVABLES 27

RZF-—HFR-ZF-—=F+=A
=+t AMREE 2 REFER A
E+ZEARHEIL -

FEU AR X

Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-F =
US$’000 US$000
FEx F=T
Trade receivables JE W BR FX 248,718 227,123
Less: allowance for doubtful debts T RIERREE - -
Total trade receivables 48 FE W BR 3R 248,718 227,123

A defined credit policy is maintained within
the Group. The credit terms are agreed with
each of its trade customers depending on the
creditworthiness of the customers ranging from
30 days to 120 days (2013: 30 days to 120 days).

ARECHE-—EREZEERR -

&

EHHI0XE120 KM E(ZE—=4F;
M30KXZE120KTE) BFEEEZZ

BME  ARERERF D HIGIEER

BEWAEIEICS
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27 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27 REWERF(®)
The aged analysis of trade receivables net of A #&%ﬁﬁﬂizﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁ%fﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
allowance for doubtful debts, which is prepared (NEBRRH 2% - I B2 AR FE
based on invoice date of each transaction, which WATER EIHMEZ’])ZEEQ%}TEZZD—F 1

approximated the respective revenue recognition
dates, at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

2014 2013
— g4 =
US$’000 US$'000
TErx FEx
0 to 30 days TE=+XK 146,108 146,528
31 to 60 days =F+—ZEtXK 76,128 47,490
61 to 90 days ANT—EATRK 12,270 27,277
91 to 120 days nt+—=z2—8\=+K 4,280 3,293
Over 120 days —B=t+XMNUE 9,932 2,535
248,718 227,123

The Group assessed the credit quality of trade
receivables based on historical default rates
and the creditworthiness of the customers. An
aggregate amount of US$201,405,000 was
subsequently settled.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
US$46,717,000 (2013: US$16,804,000) which
are past due at the reporting date for which the
Group has not provided for allowance. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.
The Group has assessed the creditworthiness and
historical default rates of these customers, trade
receivables that are past due but not impaired
have very low historical default rates and have high
credit-rating within the industry. In this regard, the
Directors considered that the default risk is low.
Accordingly, no allowance has been provided.

K%@EF&?T@RT&%)EZFQ
FEEUERZEEEZ - Eh & H
201,405,000 E T E R HATR I [E] ©

AEERREB ZRKEFSELEER
EEES £46,717,000FE T (ZE—=
% :16,804,0003 JT ) 2 @ Hi fE UK BR
Ko MAEE N E A Z KR RIERE

AR - AEBYZEREINENFE
Ao AEBEHZERPZ2EE
JEE SE#E /R 2R - 8 HRE R VR (E K B IR
RZBELHREGERRITREES S
EEFL - Al - EERAHENRER
1K I EIERIBAREM -
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27

27 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The aged analysis, based on invoice date of each
transaction, of trade receivables which are past
due but not impaired is as follows:

FEULBR X ()

BHIERERENEURER(UNERR
HZERAGE) 2RO

2014

—ZE—MF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FETT
31 to 60 days =t+t—Z=~t+XK 29,271 3,057
61 to 90 days NtT—ENATK 5,160 8,629
91 to 120 days ht+—z2—8F=+X 4,108 3,073
Over 120 days —BATRHUE 8,178 2,045
46,717 16,804

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: RIBIREF 2 BEIOT ¢

2014 2013

—E-NOFE —T—=F

US$’000 US$’'000

FEx FET

Balance at the beginning of the year ~ F 4] - 660
Provision for doubtful debts EERRIZRER

recognised on receivables 28 -

Amounts written off as uncollectible  FF 5T gEd [0 2 &8 (28) (660)

Balance at the end of the year FREERR - -

28

28

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2014, prepayments and other
receivables included advanced of US$67,708,000
(2013: US$63,785,000) to certain suppliers
as deposits for raw materials purchases. The
remaining balance was mainly included refundable
value added tax and other advance payments. The
entire amount is expected to be recovered/realised
within the next twelve months.

TE{T & H U SR IR

R-ZE—WNFE+-_A=+—8 " Bk
H b W sk IB B IETE [ 67,708,000 £ 7T
(ZZT—=% :63,785,000%7T) FZ XK
HEEEABERVIZE  #$EEE
BIERIEER R R EMIBI R o &K
BB A+ =@ A RikE, B -
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29

AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO
IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY

Before 1 April 2014, the ultimate and immediate
holding company of the Company was PIL,
a company incorporated in the Republic of
Singapore. With effect from 1 April 2014, PIL
became a wholly owned subsidiary of PIL Holdings,
a company newly incorporated in the Republic
of Singapore. Since then, the ultimate holding
company is PIL Holdings and the immediate
holding company is PIL.

The general credit term for trade balances with
immediate holding company is 30 days (2013: 30
days). No allowance on doubtful debts has been
provided during the year.

The aged analysis of amount due from immediate
holding company, which is prepared based
on invoice date of each transaction, which
approximated the respective revenue recognition
dates, at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

29

FEYL, FEITE R A B RIE

RZZE—WFEEOA—HA  ARARE&
RRBEBEERARAKFEMWE  Z AR
RTINS BRI 2 BRAF] o B
—Z—EFEPNA—HFE - KFMEK
APIL Holdingsz 2 &M B AR - %A
&) A — ERENE MBI KL 2D
A Bt ARAZREIERARIRE
B A A9 5l A PIL Holdings & A F
faig o

BEEERATNESEEEEHR R
OKRK(ZE—=F:30K) - KFEW
R VERERER -

RBER 2 BERERRABFAAE
TR HZERAHE - WEBRKARE
2 A EIRR) 2 BRI DT

Group

rEE
2014 2013

—E—-F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
0 to 30 days TE=+XK - 24
31 to 60 days =t+t—Z=xt+XK - -
61 to 90 days ANT—EATRK - -
- 24

The amount due to immediate holding company
of the Group and the Company was unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

REBRARE 2 BN ERERARR
R RERR - REERSORBETEE
HREH -
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30 AMOUNT DUE FROM FELLOW

SUBSIDIARIES

The general credit term for trade balances with
fellow subsidiaries is 30 days (2013: 30 days). No
allowance on doubtful debts has been provided
during the year.

The aged analysis of amount due from fellow
subsidiaries, which is prepared based on invoice
date of each transaction, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

0 to 30 days
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
91 to 120 days
Over 120 days

FE=1X

e - VAN PN
ANT—ZEA+K
Nt—ZE-FZ+X
—A-TRKLE

30

FEUR 5] 2 Bt 8 > B) =R IR

RANEARNESEREEH KL
BOKR(—E—=% :30K) - REEY
RABVERERAE -

RBERR R R ERRFIE(AE
RRPZHEZBFE - WERRBWARE
REHEG) 2 REDOT -

Group
#EE

2014

—=-mE
US$’000
FER

42,040 48,409
154
140

87 -
31 -

42,452 48,684

For the year ended 31 December 2014, amount
due from fellow subsidiaries with aggregate carrying
amount of US$412,000 (2013: US$275,000) was
past due at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.
The Group assessed the credit quality of fellow
subsidiaries based on historical default rates and
the creditworthiness. In this regard, the Directors
considered that the default risk is low. Accordingly,
no impairment has been provided.

R-E—mWE+=—_A=+—8" El]k
ARWBARRECSREEEAGH
412,000% 7T (ZF— =4 : 275,000 3%
JC) B EEWARR - MASE Y &R
ZIEWERSIERBERE - NEEHZE
BREE VBRI AR - AEBIREES
HREREEFHRZMBARZEE
B o-Hit EERBEEVRRIK -
A AR E R -
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30 AMOUNT DUE FROM FELLOW 30 EWEZMEBARFIEE)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The aged analysis, based on invoice date of each BHEAE R VERE A FE U B R B A R 3K
transaction, of amount due from fellow subsidiaries HNEBRRG2EEBFE) 2RRD
which are past due but not impaired is as follows: T -
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E—F z
US$’000
FEx
31 to 60 days =t+t—EXTX 154 174
61 to 90 days NT—ZENTRX 140 101
91 to 120 days Nt+—ZE—BZTX 87 -
Over 120 days —HZTRHUE 31 -
412 275
31 AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT 31 BWREELEEMEA
VENTURES
Included in the amounts due from joint ventures, EFREREELEREFR ARK
an amount of RMB39,000,000 (equivalent to 39,000,000 7T ( 155 7 6,360,000 % 7T )
US$6,360,000) was unsecured, interest bearing at AEIENERN RSN AE BMER - &
8% per annum and repayable in three years. The FHA=F HHpFBEHREER 2
remaining balance was unsecured, interest free BRERSBRETERAE -

and repayable on demand.

32 BANK BALANCES AND CASH 32 SRITHERRERHAE
Bank balances of the Group and the Company ﬁﬁh/\\uﬁﬁﬁ(\\ﬁé‘%l&ﬁ@ﬁ?ﬁi%%”ﬁ?
carry interest at market rates which range from 0.01%&E55% (== :E 0.01% &
0.01% to 5.5% (2013: 0.01% to 5.3%) and 0.01% 5.3%) k0. 01%14 4% —=%F:
to 4.4% (2013: 0.01% to 5.3%) per annum, o.o1%i5.3%>2miﬁ¢ﬂ$uﬁ% °
respectively.
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TRADE PAYABLES 33 JEFTERF
The aged analysis, based on the invoice date of RMERR - BRNER(AERRFEZ
each transaction, of trade payables at the end of BEAFE) 2RESTOT -

the reporting period is as follows:

Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E—{F z
US$°000 US$’000
FEx FET
0 to 30 days TE=1+X 94,168 77,623
31 to 60 days =f+—&=x+tXK 48,027 28,121
61 to 90 days AT—EATR 28,035 19,941
91 to 120 days nt+—=z2—8\=+K 23,208 12,821
Over 120 days —BZTRNALE 11,057 6,043
204,495 144,549
The average credit period on purchases of goods KEEMs PTHEEHRR2R(ZE
is 62 (2013: 57) days. The Group has financial risk —=F:57K) - KEEHERRER
management policies in place to ensure that all PR EUR R IRFT A M A5 HHAR
payables are settled within the credit timeframe. A
BILLS PAYABLE 34 BENTER
The aged analysis, based on issuance date of each RMERR - BNEE(UNEREELZ
bills, of bills payable at the end of the reporting BITHFTE) 2RO T -

period is as follows:

Group

rEH
2014 2013

—E—F =

US$’000 US$'000
FEx FEx
0 to 30 days TE=1+X 38,001 21,982
31 to 60 days =t+t—EXtTK 18,212 22,235
61 to 90 days NtT—ENATX 23,888 17,325
91 to 120 days N+—Z2—8=+X 4,778 1,936
84,879 63,478
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35 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 35 [EtZHEHtETER

Accruals and other payables consisted of RIZE—NFER_T-—=—FFREHD
advances from customers, provision of staff cost FERTE A REM BN RN BIEBERIEN
and selling expenses and other accrued expenses o EEXNAREEERER - RHAM
for the both year ended 2014 and 2013. JEFTER -
36 AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES 36 EMEEQAAREELENE
AND JOINT VENTURES
The amounts due to associates and joint ventures AEBEANRZEMNBEARREE
of the Group and the Company are unsecured, TEFIBHAEER  2EEBRKEE
interest free and repayable on demand. The B ERBH - ERBHMZFFIARE
Directors expected the amounts will be repaid ARG+ @A NE -
within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period.
37 BANK BORROWINGS 37 IRITHEM
Group Company
bS5 | PN
2014 2014 2013
—2-mE =% —g-mE  —z-=%
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TER TET TER T=n
Bank borrowings RITENBRE
comprise the following:
Bank loans HITEH
Unsecured &R
- within 1 year - BR—ERER 62,564 22,065 35,000 -
—more than 1 year, - BREZER
but not exceeding B
2 years 70,000 35,000 70,000 35,000
—more than 2 years, -BRE=
but not exceeding EHFEREE
5 years 245,000 129,000 245,000 129,000
377,564 186,065 350,000 164,000
Less: Amount due within B BER—FREER
one year shown TRREARE
under current 2R EHE
liabilities (62,564) (22,065) (35,000) -
Amount due after one year B —FE(EE
shown under non-current WRIERE
liabilities BEEH LR 315,000 164,000 315,000 164,000
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204 Singamas Container Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Financial Statements B/ 77 M3t

37 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

On 24 September 2013, the Company entered
into a facility agreement with a syndicate of banks
in respect of a US$310 million term loan and
revolving credit facilities for a term of four years.
Repayments will commence on 24 September
2015 and continue until 24 September 2017.

All bank loans are unsecured and mainly carry
interest at either LIBOR or borrowing rate offered
by the People’s Bank of China plus certain basis
points and are repayable over a period range from
one to four years. Interest is repriced every one
to six months. The proceeds were largely used to
finance the working capital of the Group during the
year.

The ranges of effective annual interest rates for the
year 2014 on the Group’s and the Company’s bank
borrowings were 1.48% to 6.55% (2013: 0.76%
to 6.55%) and 1.48% to 2.78% (2013: 2.07% to
2.22%) respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
bank borrowings that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of
the relevant group entity are set out below:

RMB AR

37

RITER 2

R-ZTE—=FHLA-+ME - XA=FH
—3$RE T2 7 310,000,000 7T 2 7F HA
M REEEHZE - RENTE - WHER
“E-RFNAZTUNERARER  H
E_ZE+FAAZTHBERREE -

PRARITIE RV E R T E AR
HIRITRAXFEXPEARRBITAM
ZERFE N BEMAE M EE
o BEFREER—ENF - FESE
—Z2NEABEE - EFGRIEETZME
AEBAFERPECHT -

RZZT—MOF - NEERARFRTHE
RZEBIFERNEBED R A1.48%FE
6.55% (ZF— =4 : 0.76% £ 6.55%)
F1.48% E2.78%(—_FE—=% : 2.07%
F2.22%) °

S
4|
G

BERR  AEEZBRERUIEY
EREEZRITEROT

Group
#EE

2014 2013
—EF=F
US$'000

TR

-
US$’000
FER

3,623 1,165
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38

39

40

NOTES

On 14 April 2011, the Company issued a
three-year RMB1,380,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$210,600,000) notes (the
“Notes”). The Notes was denominated and settled
in RMB, and borne coupon at 4.75% per annum
payable semi-annually in arrears. The Notes were
unsecured and carried effective interest rate of
5.16% per annum. The Note was matured and
settled on 14 April 2014.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

In order to minimise the Group’s interest rate risk
exposure arising from the US$310,000,000 term
loan, the Company entered into three interest rate
swap contracts, with a total notional amount of
US$186,000,000, to fix the monthly LIBOR at a
range of 0.8775% to 0.8800%. The three interest
rate swap contracts will mature on 24 September
2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
gain on changes in fair value of the interest rate
swaps amounting to US$239,000 has been
recognised in profit or loss.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AS
HEDGING INSTRUMENTS

In order to minimise the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure to the exchange rate risk of
the Notes, which was denominated in RMB, the
Company entered into two exchange rate swaps
to fix the payment of the principal and interest of
the Notes at a fixed forward exchange rate.

38

39

40

EiR
RZZE——FMA+IMA - NAFET
T —HE{EAARE 1,380,000,000 7T (1H
Z 1 49210,600,0003 7T ) ) = F HIZE
B(ZEE] - ZEZEBUARETER
HE . FERRBATE%  BEELN
BB - REBENEEKEEN  EERF
FEAH516%  LEBER T —HFM
ATHBEEEEES T -

TEEMIA

AT R R E 2N 5 B 310,000,000 E T E
HEEMEE ZFERER - NAFEIAL
T =1 % %&£ % 4 186,000,000 7T
ZHEBEHEL - LETESAFBENT
0.8775% Z0.8800 % Z [ » & =17 ¥l
KA O EPEAE-TE—+tFNA
—+/mA -

BHE-_Z—WE+-_A=+—81 " 7
RIGHIAHNFMEEAN AR BERNZE A
239,000 7T * WRIBZRAPHER o

EERAEMIRNLTE
EmMI A

T RIEA AR E BRI RIEM 5l 20K
SEMARNREEWELRR - ARF]
RV TRPERERHAH  NEERE
SR EBEN A KA B HIER o
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40 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 40 EEREHMIETE

INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AS
HEDGING INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The exchange rate swaps and the corresponding
Notes had the equivalent settlement periods and
the Directors considered that the exchange rate
swaps were highly effective hedging instruments.
Major terms of the two exchange rate swaps
entered in 2011 were the same and were set out

TR @

HZEZRREREHRRBR EE B —
B EFRARREXRRHAORRE
BRHEIH TR - EMHR T ——%F
FRA]AVEE R 48 IS 40 A A8 R /0 fRran

2

below:

Total notional

amount of the swaps

BEHNEEREH

(Note)
(Ff3E)

RMB32,864,000

Maturity
PG

13 October 2011

Forward rate

RMB6.15 to US$1

Total hedged item
B

For coupon payments

AR 32,864,000 7T ZT—F+A+=8 AR¥e615THI1ET ZEFE

RMB33,224,000 13 April 2012 RMB6.15 to US$1 For coupon payments

AR 33,224,000 7T —T——FMA+=B AREei1s5THI1ET ZEEFES

RMB32,686,000 12 October 2012 RMB6.15 to US$1 For coupon payments

AR 32,686,000 7T —Z—=—F+A+=B AR¥ei1smHI1ET ZEFE

RMB32,686,000 12 April 2013 RMB6.15 to US$1 For coupon payments

AR ¥ 32,686,000 7T —Z-=FWMA+=B AR¥e615TH1ET ZEEFR

RMB32,864,000 11 October 2013 RMB6.15 to US$1 For coupon payments

AR ¥32,864,0007T —T—=F+A+—B AR¥ei1s5TtR1ET ZEEFE

RMB1,412,506,000 11 April 2014 RMB6.15 to US$1 For Notes principal of RMB1,380,000,000

AR#1,412,506,00000 —Z—NFMA+—H

Note: As at 31 December 2013, total notional amount of the

swaps was RMB1,412,506,000 in aggregate for the
two exchange rate swaps.

On 11 April 2014, the exchange rate swaps were
matured and settled. The loss on changes in fair
value of the exchange rate swaps under cash flow
hedge amounting to US$3,071,000 (2013: gain
of US$12,009,000) has been recognised in other
comprehensive income of which the fair value
loss of the hedging instruments amounting to
US$3,071,000 (2013: gain of US$8,079,000) were
reclassified from hedge reserve to profit or loss
in the same period when the hedged items affect
profit or loss and upon the settlement of principal
and coupon payment.

ARKEBA5TTHAET

and coupon payments of RMB32,506,000
REA S AR 1,380,000,000 7T M
FEMS AR 32,506,000 7T

Wit R-F—Z=ZF1+_H=+—H W
[EXIEHENMBEZTEBARE

1,412,506,000 7T °

MZZ—MFMNA+—BZEXBHE
HWEHNBHRIZN - EAREREEF
MEXREHEOMEEN AR EEEIE
43,071,000 T (ZFE— =% %7
12,009,000%%7T) ' ERNEMEE &=
RHER - HAR3,071,000F T (ZE—=
F 3% 7%)8,079,0003 7T ) ¥R T A 2
ARABEBEERETEEFEEER
R AIRBEAE KA RF B R FHE

BEHoRERS
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41 SHARE CAPITAL 41 7
Number of shares Share Capital
RGEE
2014 2014 2014
—E-NF “E-mE —E-mE —=
US$'000  HK$000 = US$000  HK$000
Txn THx TEn AL
Ordinary shares of LaREREE
HK$0.10 each 0.10%7
Authorised: ETE
At beginning of the year FORER
and at end of the year 3,000,000,000 | 3,000,000,000 Note a Note a 38,649 300,000
fiita Hiita
Issued and fully paid: BETRER :
At beginning of the year 4] 2,420,419,918 | 2,420,150,992 31,185 242,042 31,181 242,015
Exercise of share options TR
(Note b) (Hito) - 268,926 - - 4 27
Transfer from share premium 15312
upon abolition of par value NI
under the new Hong Kong REVERAR
Companies Ordinance T
HEEE - - | 236964 183647 - -
Share repurchase (Note ¢) R (e (2,000,000) - - - - -
At end of the year FR 2,418,419918 | 2,420,419,918 268,149 2,078,513 31,185 242,042

Note:

Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), with effect from 3 March 2014, the concept
of authorised share capital no longer exists and the
Company’s shares no longer have a par value. There
is no impact on the number of shares in issue or the
relative entitlement of any of the shareholders as a
result of this transition.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Company issued and allotted 268,926 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each upon exercise of share options. The
exercise prices of those share options exercised in
2013 ranged from HK$1.38 to HK$1.48 per share. The
new ordinary shares rank pari passu with all existing
shares in all respects.

No share option has been exercised in 2014.

a RIFEE R AP (BB 2N FE 6228 )

EERABI R E = E—F=A=HFE
ETFE WAL AR KA I B E E
18 - WAEFTE B 51 E BT A A E B 3 AF
AR AR AL F 7 -

b R-F—=F+-A=+—FH  RHiT(tH#E

R ERARTRAE T 801078
JL.Z 268,926 R B - R=F— =477
R EREZTTIEET T4 1.38/8 7T
F1.488T ° B EBKIL 7 AL 7]
BERDEET B ZHASEF -

R-F—FERETTRFRIE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B/ 77 M3t

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

c The Company purchased 2,000,000 of its own ordinary
shares of the Company on 15 December 2014 at the
highest and lowest prices of HK$1.29 and HK$1.23
per share respectively (“share repurchase”). The
aggregate purchase price paid for the share repurchase
was approximately HK$2,524,860 (equivalent to
US$327,000). The share repurchase represented
approximately 0.0826 % of the existing total number
of issued shares of the Company on the date of
repurchase. The Company cancelled these 2,000,000
ordinary shares on 30 December 2014.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”), was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 1 June 2007 for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to Directors and eligible
employees of the Group, and may be terminated
by resolution in general meeting. Under the
Scheme, the Directors may grant options to
qualifying grantees, including employees or
directors of the Company and/or the Group.

At 31 December 2014, the number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Scheme was
17,602,000 (2013: 17,882,000), representing
approximately 0.73% (2013: 0.73%) of the shares
of the Company in issue at that date. The total
number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue on the adoption date, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. The number
of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue on the offer date without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive Directors in excess of 0.1% of the
Company'’s share capital or with a value in excess
of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by
the Company’s shareholders.

41

42

i NE Y
Kzt - (&)

c ARBIR=ZF—F+=A+HASF
5 EFR1.298 7T R &R 1B R
1.23% 7T B [8] X 23 512,000,000 88 .2 &
B BITROBEISEBEES LA
2,5624,860,% 7t (185 1 327,000 ) *
SR EB I R B E] A A 2 7] 6 B 7T
17 H £ 470.0826% ° 5% 2,000,000 %2 &
BRR=ZF—F+ A=+ Hits -

AR
RENR_ZTLFRA-HRBORE
£ ARPZBEAERTE ([%HE)) =
ZRNARBEFIAKE S ERE
8 ZAr BT ERER RS HCEBHR
BRI - RIBZATE > ARAESEA
REBRETAERARA  BREAR
Ak FAEEZEENES -

R-_ZE—E+—-_A=+—H " B
25t 215 17,602,00010 (Z B — =4 :
17,882,00017 ) &K H M B M A&7 2 B8
PEHE  (EARRRINZBEEITZROE
0.73% (ZZF—=%F : 0.73%) ° LKA
RATIREELRA A - RIBZFTE AR
HEERRAEFT S M AR D 4B 8 - TEEBAEKN
NEIRETERBHEEEITRM 10% - 11
REEARRNAIIREBESLHE - FRAEMAE B
ANTPTER M ER 2 BRREMmEIT R
BEITZRMDEE  NEBBAAFRN
BRHBREHEETRMN 1% - BTFTEE
MR SEB IERITEE 2 BERES BB
RNAEPEA0.1% KB EHE 5,000,000
BT TN BAREARN BIRR RS RIHE A -
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42

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days
from the date of offer. An aggregate of HK$1 is
payable by each qualifying grantee on acceptance
of the offer. Options may be exercised within the
option period (must not exceed 10 years from
the date of grant of the relevant option) which
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion at the time of grant. The exercise price
is determined by the Directors, and will not be
less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s
share.

Share options of 7,170,000 underlying shares were
granted on 1 July 2010 at the exercise price of
HK$1.38.

Share options of 8,860,000 underlying shares were
granted on 6 August 2008 at the initial exercise
price of HK$1.93 and adjusted to HK$1.48.

Share options of 20,300,000 underlying shares
were granted on 28 June 2007 at the initial
exercise price of HK$5.14 and adjusted to
HK$3.93.

42

LB 3Z (&)

Bz B ER TSERE T B st
28 BN - BEBEIERTZEERE
BRABL MR - BRIERER
AR P A] BE R 1T (3% L1 AEL A A B e
EHRETEHBB10F) BBEhESS
REEEB2ERTE - (TFEEHRESEE
T BMER ()% B BAR B R Uk
mE: (BERHBHPHITRESERR
DFHWHE i) AR RRMHEE=
EZERE o

R-ZE—ZTF+ A —HKH 7,170,000
PDITEEE1.38 BT 2 tARAREAR A -

R-ZZEZ)N\F )\ A7~ HIX T 8,860,000
DB ITEEA1.938 T 2 BB ER
¥ BT ERERFARE1.488TT °

RZEZL+FXNAZFTNBERH
20,300,000 MR1TIEE AS5.14 8T
FEREEEAE - HITHFERERFAEE3.93
BT °
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42 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 42

Details are as follows:

Number of options

BREHE

Option granted on 28 June 2007:

RZZZTEFANA+T/\BEROAERE

6,766,666

6,766,667

6,766,667

Option granted on 6 August 2008:
RZZZNFN\RNBREHEEE

2,953,333

2,953,333

2,953,334

Option granted on 1 July 2010:
MZE-TFEL A —BRBOERE

2,390,000

2,390,000

2,390,000

Notes to the Financial Statements B/ 77 M3t

B3z (#)

BT

Vesting period
BEE 5

28 June 2007 to 27 June 2008
—TTHEXAZTNARE
—EENFARAZFLH

28 June 2007 to 27 June 2009
“EELFRAZTNARE
ZETNFRAZTKER

28 June 2007 to 27 June 2010
“EELFRAZTNARE
—E-TFANAZT+H

6 August 2008 to 5 August 2009
—TENFNARAE
—TENFN\AERR

6 August 2008 to 5 August 2010
—TENFNARAE
—T—-ZTF)\ARA

6 August 2008 to 5 August 2011
—TENFNARAE
—ZT—%)\AER

1 July 2010 to 30 June 2011
= -TEtrfA-A%
—ZT——FA=1H

1 July 2010 to 30 June 2012
—T-ZTFLA—HE
—E——FRA=1H

1 July 2010 to 30 June 2013
—EF-FFLA-HE
—T—=%A=tH

Exercisable period

TR

28 June 2008 to 27 June 2017
—EE\FAA-TN\AE
—+tFXA=-+tH

28 June 2009 to 27 June 2017
—ZETNFAAZTNABE
—+tFXA=-+tH

28 June 2010 to 27 June 2017
—E-EFARAZTNEE
—+tFXA=-+tH

6 August 2009 to 5 August 2018
—TENFNARAE
—N\FNARH

6 August 2010 to 5 August 2018
—T-TF/\ARAE
—N\FNARH

6 August 2011 to 5 August 2018
—E——F)N\ARHEZE
—N\FNARH

1 July 2011 to 30 June 2020
s e =
—E-TFRA=TH

1 July 2012 to 30 June 2020
S o = Y
—ECETFRNAZTH

1 July 2013 to 30 June 2020
—FT—=FtA—H=ZE
—E-TFRNA=TH
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42 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 42 WABZK3Z (&)

2014 —E-mF
The following table discloses the Company’s share TREZEREES (BIEES) MBFARRE
options held by employees (including Directors): IRHE 2 5515 -
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited Outstanding at
1 January Reclassification during during during 31 December
2014 adjustment the year the year the year 2014
R=2-m% R=2-IF
-R-H RER t=A=t-H
HAITE #Rl HAITE
'000 '000 '000
(Note)
Directors EE 13,567 - - - - 13,567
Employees EE 4315 - - - (280) 4,035
17,882 - - - (280) 17,602

e A L el
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42 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 42 AR (%)
The following table discloses the movements of TRUBERRFHREARRRERE 2
the Company’s share options by the vesting period FRED :

during the year:

Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Outstanding
1 January during during during 31 December
2014 the year the year the year 2014
R=2-IF R=B-IF

—B—H
HATTE
'000

FRi
000

ERiTfE
000

RER
RN

'000
(Note)

()

t=A=1-A
AT
000

Granted on 28 June 2007: REEELERAZH\REL
- with vesting period of e e s
28 June 2007 to ~AZTNAE
27 June 2008 “FE\FRAZTLH 4616 - - 67) 4,529
- with vesting period of e e s
28 June 2007 to ~AZTNAE
27 June 2009 “ERNEAACTER 4,616 - - (87) 4,529
- with vesting period of e e s
28 June 2007 o ARZTN\BZE
27 June 2010 “E-TEAACTHR 4,616 - - (87) 4,529
Granted on 6 August 2008; RZZZNFARRARL -
- with vesting period of -BEBR=ETN\F
6 August 2008 to NRRBZE
5 August 2009 ZZINE/\ARA 121 - - (1) 120
- with vesting period of -BEBR=ET N5
6 August 2008 to NRRRZE
5 August 2010 —Z-TE/\ARA 173 - - (1) 172
- with vesting period of -HEHa-gE\F
6 August 2008 to NRRRZE
5 August 2011 “E——%/\REA 690 - - (17) 673
Granted on 1 July 2010; RZE-TELA-ARL
- with vesting period of -fEim_T-%F
1July 20100 tA—-RZ
30 June 2011 I Y 3713 - - - 373
- with vesting period of -fEfm_T-%F
1.July 20100 tA—-RZ
30 June 2012 “E-—F;A=TH 1,297 - - - 1,297
- with vesting period of -HEih-5-%F
1.July 20100 th-RZ
30 June 2013 “E-ZF;A=TH 1,380 - - - 1,380
17,882 - - (280) 17,602
Exercisable at the end RELFF17R
of the year 17,882 17,602
Weighted average exercise price MEFHTEE
(HK$) (&) 3.39 - - 3.76 3.35
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42 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 42 WABZK3Z (&)

2013 —T—=F
The following table discloses the Company’s share TREZEREES (BIEES) MBFARRE
options held by employees (including Directors): It 2 F1E -

Qutstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited  Qutstanding at
1 January Reclassification during during during 31 December
adjustment the year the year the year

Directors £ 18,878 - - (89) (6,226) 18,667
Employees [E& 6,112 - - (184) (1613 4,315
24990 (269 6839 17,882

e A L el
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Notes to the Financial Statements B/ 77 M3t

42 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 42 AR (%)
The following table discloses the movements of TRUBERRFHREARRRERE 2
the Company’s share options by the vesting period FRED :

during the year:

Qutstanding Granted
1 January during
the year

Exercised
during
the year

Forfeited QOutstanding

during 31 December
the year

FRiTHE
000

Granted on 28 June 2007: REEELERAZH\REL
- with vesting period of e e s
28 June 2007 to ~AZTN\RE
27 June 2008 “EE\EAAZTLH 6,532 - - (1,916) 4,616
- with vesting period of e e s
28 June 2007 to ~AZTN\RE
27 June 2009 “ERNERAZTLA 6,532 - - (1,916) 4,616
- with vesting period of e e s
28 June 2007 to ARZTNRE
27 June 2010 “E-FERAZTLR 6,533 - - (1,917) 4,616
Granted on 6 August 2008: RZZZNFARRARL -
- with vesting period of -BEBR=ETN\F
6 August 2008 to NRRBZE
5 August 2009 “ERNE\REA 174 - (35) (18) 121
- with vesting period of -BEBR-ET N5
6 August 2008 to NRRRZE
5 August 2010 “E-Z£/\REA 226 - (39) (18) 178
- with vesting period of -HEHa=gENE
6 August 2008 to NRRRZE
5 August 2011 “E——&/\REA 1,006 - (39) (280) 690
Granted on 1 July 2010; RZE-TELA-ARL
- with vesting period of -fEin_z-%F
1.July 20100 tA—RZ
30 June 2011 “2—%5A=1H 374 - (1) - 373
- with vesting period of -HEih=5-%F
1.July 20100 tA—-RZ
30 June 2012 “E-"F;A=1H 1,620 - (123) (200) 1,297
- with vesting period of -HEiR=5-%F
1.July 20100 tA-RZ
30 June 2013 “F-ZEAAZ1A 1,994 - o) 574) 1,380
24990 - 1269 6839 17,882
Exercisable at the end RELF TR
of the year 22,996 17,882
Welghted average exercise price  TIEF5{7F(B
IHKS) (87 339 - 142 353 336
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42

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Note:

The forfeiture represented the share options granted to the
eligible Directors and employees of the Group, which were
forfeited upon their resignations in both years.

In respect of the share options exercised in 2013,
the weighted average share price at the dates of
exercise was HK$1.82,

For the share options granted on 1 July 2010, the
fair value of the options determined at the date
of grant using the Binomial option pricing model
ranged from HK$0.61 to HK$0.81.

The following assumptions were used to calculate
the fair values of share options granted on 1 July
2010:

Closing share price at the date of grant HK$1.54
Exercise price HK$1.38
Option life 10 years
Expected volatility 65%
Semi-annual dividend yield 1.7%
Risk-free interest rate 2.29%

For the share options granted on 6 August 2008,
the fair value of the options determined at the date
of grant using the Binomial option pricing model
ranged from HK$0.53 to HK$0.72.

The following assumptions were used to calculate
the fair values of share options granted on 6
August 2008:

Closing share price at the date of grant HK$1.83
Exercise price HK$1.93
Option life 10 years
Expected volatility 45%
Semi-annual dividend yield 2.8%
Risk-free interest rate 3.55%

For the share options granted on 28 June 2007,
the fair value of the options determined at the date
of grant using the Binomial option pricing model
ranged from HK$1.62 to HK$2.52.

42

AR K3 (#2)
Hist:

WRMIER TR EF L EIEEFRIER AIBRIE
FEZFEN LB F A BT RO

RZE—=F BAEETEZER
W ETEERZNEFEMISES
1.82%87C °

RZZE-ZFLA—H BEREZAA
BEIMEMA ZHEARREERARR D

HEEER0.618TE0.81/8TT °

R-ZE—ZTF+A—BRENEREZ
NABEIRBATRERBEET ¢

R H BB E 1.548 7T
1TE(E 1.3878 7T
iR 2 B U 104
TEHR I& 65%
FFEERE 1.7%
ﬁﬂ&_+ 2.29%
RZZEZENENARHE  BREZAR
BEDEAZBEABEEEEARES

HEREFEAQ0L3BILEQT2HETT ©

—EZNFNAARBRENBEREZ
QﬁFEE?FETJ@LATTEP“%W#E

REH BB RmE 1.83/87C
11f(E 1.93/87C
A AR AE 2 B A 104
TEHR 8 45%
FFEREE 2.8%
EHMD+ 3.55%
R_EZLFRNA=-1+/\B - BREZ

AREENMEAZBABEEEEXNR
BHAEETA1.62BTTE2528BTT ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements B/ 77 M3t

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The following assumptions were used to calculate
the fair values of share options granted on 28 June
2007:

42

B
RZFTEFAAZTNBREMER

%Z@ﬁFTEB*ETFLATTE““%HFﬁ
}E .

Closing share price at the date of grant HK$5.25 R B Be & 5.25%8 7T
Exercise price HK$5.14 116 (E 5.147%87C
Option life 10 years REIRHE 2 B RUR 104F
Expected volatility 48% TEHER & IR 48%
Semi-annual dividend yield 1% FEERE 1%
Risk-free interest rate 4.78% EE kS X 4.78%

Immediate after the rights issue became
unconditional in 2009, adjustments were made to
the exercise price and the number of outstanding
share options to subscribe for shares granted

EEN_ZTNFHEBEGREERL -
RIBEBEE SR B AERBBER R
TR ERENTEERBECIFLH

ES QS
=

pursuant to the share option scheme.

The following table sets out the adjustments on the
share option scheme in 2009:

e
=

NREGEREREIR =

113

OH]

ETNFLZ

Before adjustments After adjustments
HBEA HEE
Exercise Exercise
price of  Number of price of  Number of
each option share options each option share options
SERE SERE
Date of grant IfEE  BREHE TEE EREHE
(HK9) (HKS)
(&) (#7)
28 June 2007 RZEZ+FA-+/\R 514 18,400,000 3.93 24,039,600
6 August 2008 RZTZTN\E/\A"A 1.93 8,740,000 1.48 11,418,810
Total number of options ey 27,140,000 35,458,410
The Binomial option pricing model has been used BEs A ABEEEAZEABEE
to estimate the fair values of the options. The EBEAETE - NETEAABEREAN
variables and assumptions used in computing the BPYLBRDBREBEES I REEER -
fair values of the share options are based on the ey R T ERER - RIfERE 2 EE

Directors’ best estimate. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

DIN=APSIE AT e

Share option expense of US$34,000 was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2013.
No share option expense was recognised in 2014.

BIRES HA34,000%kT ERNE
—=F+-_A=1T—HIFE®EZ - =
TN FEWEBRES L -
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43 RESERVES 43 f#E
Share Share option Hedge Accumulated
premium reserve reserve profits Total
Company BHEE  BRERE H s 2527 kel
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEx = TEx TEx =
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=%—H—H 236,897 4,724 (3,930) 46,255 283,946
Profit for the year REZHF - - - 16,854 16,854
Fair value adjustments on WIEERBEEMEH T
forward contracts ZEBENNDR
designated as cash flow hedges  E{BFIE - - 12,009 - 12,009

Reclassification of fair value gain -~ 2 BE&EF
from hedge reserve to profit RERREED

or loss Z2EH - - (8,079) - (8,079)
236,897 4,724 - 63,109 304,730
Exercise of share options TR 67 (2) - - 45
Recognition of equity-settled RLARRE
share-based payments RS - 34 - - 34
Transfer from share option REREREER
reserves to accumulated profits & 251
for forfeited options 2SR - (1,316) - 1,316 -
Dividend paid o the owners SIRARERRES
of the Company - - - (15,604) (15,604)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=f
+-A=+—H 236,964 3,420 - 48,821 289,205
Loss for the year AEEER - - - (4,677) (4,677)
Fair value adjustments on WIEERBEMEL T
forward contracts ZEHEN
designated as cash flow hedges  #IA /% BIEEZE - - (3,071) - (3,071)

Reclassification of fair value loss A7 EfERER
from hedge reserve to profit HHEEED

or loss 2Ex - - 3,071 - 3,071
236,964 3,420 - 44,144 284,528
Transfer upon abolition of BB 2 BB AR
par value under the EHIRBUERA
new Hong Kong Companies EERERDEE
Ordinance Ez 824 (236,964) - - - (236,964)
Share repurchase 17 s - - - (327) (327)
Transfer from share option R EER
reserves to accumulated profits 2 25H% 7
for forfeited options Z R B R E - (63) - 53 -
Dividend paid to the owners FHARRRARERE
of the Company - - - (7,807) (7,807)
At 31 December 2014 R=ZB-NF
+=ZA=+-H - 3,367 - 36,063 39,430
Distributable reserves of the Company at RIEBEEBRAHEHIZE 297 1F5TE - AR
31 December 2014, calculated under section 297 AIRZZE—WNFE+=-_A=+—H —Hﬁ“
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted & 2 16 536,063,000 L (— T —=
to US$36,063,000 (2013: US$48,821,000). T 148,821,000 7T) °
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44 DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY 44
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS

The table below shows details of non-wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material
non-controlling interests:

BAEEXRFERREERZ]
2EMBARRFFRE

TRETAEEEEAT R E
%7 IR ANB R RS

Proportion of
ownership interests
and voting Profit (loss)
Place of rights held by allocated to Accumulated
Name incorporation/ non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
of subsidiary registration interests interests interests
. R B R A (&8) X
R/ RENRAR SEZEER TR
MEARER M FRELLPI RRER EL 5+
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014
—F-mE ZT--F ZR-QNEF —F-F "B-QE %
US$000.  US$000  US$000  USS'000
TER TR TER TEL
Hui Zhou Pacific Container Co., Ltd. PRC 9.0% 9.0% 1,191 1,219 7,129 6,709
BMATEEERAA h
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific Container PRC 22.8% 26.0% 1,360 1,595 19,246 20,547
Co., Lid. i (Note)
FEBIATERBRAT] (Wiit)
Shanghai Pacific International Container ~ PRC 35.1% 40.0% 903 (19) 13,179 14,099
Co., Ltd. i (Note)
FERTERSRERAT] (Wit)
Shanghai Reeferco Container Co., Ltd. PRC 9.1% 9.1% 231 758 6,180 5,949
LaERRRERARAT e
Note: Mt -

By end of December 2014, the Group made an additional
acquisition of 4.9% equity interest of Shanghai Pacific at a cash
consideration of RMB29,277,000 (equivalent to US$4,770,000),
and at the same time, decreased its ownership interest and
voting rights held by non-controlling interests by 4.9%. Such
acquisition also decreased the effective ownership interest
and voting rights of Shanghai Baoshan held by non-controlling
interests by 3.2%, since Shanghai Pacific holds 65% equity
interest of Shanghai Baoshan.

Summarised financial information in respect of
each of the Group’s non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that has material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations

R-ZF—mFE+ZFE FEBUARK
29,277,000 (1% 14,770,000 % % ) 2 B £ £
(BUHE LA FEESN4.9% IRAERERS - B IR -
Il b T B IR IR R o For 7 HI AR BE R R M
4.9% ° AR LG FIFE LGEIL65% HIRE
B LWIBW L T LB IR R B
F BRI IER K HES.2% °

AT ER AR EERAEAHEBRAR
BRI ENB LR ZHEERE
2 - TIMBEERBRER A EEANIE
SHATZ B8 o
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44 DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY 44 BHEEERFERBRFEEZZIE
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE 2 EMB RS &)
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (Continued)

Shanghai Pacific
Hui Zhou Pacific Shanghai Baoshan Pacific International Shanghai Reeferco
Container Co., Ltd. Container Co., Ltd. Container Co., Ltd. Container Co., Ltd.
ENATERE LREILAYER LRAVERER LEBRSRER
BRAR BRAT BRAR BRAR
2014 2014 2013 2014 2014 2013
ZE-mE | CF-E Z3-ME 0 CF-CE 0 CE-QE ZB-mE | CE-
US$000 US§1000 US$000 US§1000 US$000 US§1000 Us$'000 US§'000
Tin T3 Tin %1 Tin %1 E T7
Current asssts TEEE 123,563 13089 108,693 108,546 58,711 37,752 91,037 Q.11
Non-current assets P 32,498 31,470 13,028 14018 28,935 28,062 10,173 10834
Current fiabilties TEERE (76,850) 87,819 (28,574) (29.648) (41,906) (22,460) (33,253 (38,188)
Fouity attioutatle to FRRRREEER
owners of the Company 72,082 67,837 73,901 67,369 32,621 29,449 61,777 59470
Non-controling nterests AR EER 7129 6,709 19,246 20,547 13,179 14,099 6,180 5949
Revenue £%E 255,761 219,910 146,511 176,767 84,093 61,315 67,540 127,609
Bxpenses g (42523 |  (206366) | (141,279 [  (170,630) (81,836) (61,353) (65,001) [ (119270)
Proft loss) for the year TERET (BR) 13,238 13544 523 6,137 2,5 (%) 253 8339
Proft oss) atibutable to HATIRRER
ouners of the Company £ (B8) 12,047 1232 3872 4542 1,354 2 2,308 7581
Proft (oss) attibutable to FERRRER
the non-controling interests LR (B8 1,191 1219 1,360 15% 903 (15 21 758
Proft loss) for the year TEEET (BE) 13,238 13544 523 6,137 2,57 %) 253 8339
Other comprehensive Income ALARRIER
attrbutable to owners AprElE
of the Gompany - - - - - - - -
Other comprehensive income FHARRRER
attrbutable to T
the non-controling interests - - - - - - - -
Other comprehensive income ERif2ENE
forthe year - - - - - - - -
Totel comprehensive income FARRRER
(expense) atiroutable to e
owners of the Company (E8)a8 12,047 12325 3872 454 1,354 23 2,308 7581
Total comprehensive income FHERRRER
(expens) attroutable to Eih2E
the non-controling interests Wi (B8 a8 1,191 1219 1,360 15% 903 (15) 2 758
Total comprefiensive income EMEE
(exoense) for the year I (B8 % 13,238 13,544 5,282 6,137 225 () 25% 8,33
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220 Singamas Container Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Financial Statements B/ 77 M3t

44 DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

44 GEEXRIEERBREEZRZIE
2 EMBARFE®)

INTERESTS (Continued)
Shanghai Pacific
Hui Zhou Pacific Shanghai Baoshan Pacific International Shanghai Reeferco
Container Co., Ltd. Container Co., Ltd. Container Co., Ltd. Container Co., Ltd.
ENATERE LREILAYER LRAVERER LEBRSRER
BRAR ERAR BRAR BRAF
2014 2014 2014 2013 014 2013
ZR-mE % “2-pg ZE-mE 5 C3-RE 0 CE-cF
US$000 US§1000 US$000 US$000 US§1000 Us§'000 US§1000
Tin T3 Tin Tin %1 Tin e
Dividends paid o BAEBRER
non-controling iterests ERRE m 815 - - - 1,200 - -
Net cash from (used i) EXEIHE (i)
operating activities ReEE 24 12,511 8,087 (19,196) (7,622) 6,925 5,850 (12922)
Net cash from (used n RERHNE(FE)
nvesting actities ReFE (2,329 (1,706) 840 2 (5,347) (4,560) 1,555 560
Net cash rom (used n| BEEHHE (FiF)
financing activities BeEE (18,353) 11,667 2 (385) 13,749 (8.574) 15 (620)
Net cash infow (outfow) FRERA(Rdt) (20,392) 20472 10,008 (19,304 780 (6209 7420 (12.982)
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45 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Group
The following are the major deferred tax FEERAFERBIFEHRNEBEHER
assets (liabilities) recognised by the Group and RELEHIBEEE (BE)EE RAEZHN
movements thereon during the current and prior N

years:

45 EEHEAN
A

Accelerated

tax Undistributed Other
depreciation profits assets Total
EFE AOE
RBE gl Hit&E HmEE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
T=7T FErT FET
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—H—H 333 (8,303 (334) (8,304)
(Charge) credit to profit or Bt A (i) &
loss (Note 14) (K13t 14) (36) 712 - 676
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%F
+-A=+—H 297 (7,591) (334) (7,628)
(Charge) credit to profit or &t A () #H &
loss (Note 14) (B 14) 51 (1,830) 9 (1,788)
At 31 December 2014 R=-ZE—M&
+=A=+—H 348 (9,421) (343) (9,416)

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC,
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred tax charge of US$1,830,000
(2013: credit of US$712,000) on the undistributed
earnings of PRC subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures has been credited/charged to the profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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BEFRCEMGH L PEEBA
A BEARMEELER T N\F
—A—HRERERAEFERNKRER
1,830,000 L 2 ELERIBEZ H(ZF
—=F : 712,000 ETER) BEF AT
—ME+ - A=+—HILFEBHEES
FREBAR  BEATREEDRER
KBS EER AW E S o
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Notes to the Financial Statements B/ 77 M3t

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
(Continued)

Group (Continued)

At 31 December 2014, the Group has unused tax
losses of US$97,469,000 (2013: US$82,197,000)
available for offset against future taxable profits.
No tax losses has been recognised as deferred tax
assets due to the uncertainty of its recoverability.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
US$345,000, US$1,444,000, US$4,703,000 and
US$7,536,000 that will expire in 2016, 2017, 2018
and 2019 (2013: US$4,046,000, US$345,000,
US$2,984,000 and US$4,703,000 that will expire
in 2014, 2016, 2017 and 2018), respectively. Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

The Group does not have any deductible
temporary differences for both years.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 16 October 2012, each of the Company and
Singamas Terminals (China) Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a share transfer agreement with Foshan Shunde
Chuangijian Investment Co., Ltd., a company
established in the PRC with common substantial
shareholder with Guangdong Fuwa Machinery, a
company established in the PRC which is currently
holding 41% equity interest in Foshan Shunde
Leliu Wharf & Container Co., Ltd. (“Leliu Wharf”) ,
to dispose of their respective 40% and 19% equity
interest of Leliu Wharf at a cash consideration
of RMB98,310,000 and RMB46,690,000
(equivalent to US$15,660,000 and US$7,437,000)
respectively. The transaction was completed in
February 2018.

45

46

EEHRIEARE#)

AERE(E)
MN_ZE—ME+-_A=+—H  KEE
®) G oK 5 A3 %% 18 /& 18 97,469,000 3 JT
(ZZ— =4 :82,197,000% 7t ) aJ
FRYEFIRL B 18 2 FER & T o BRR R BEHE
EEREE - EERERAELERIE
BEMBIEEE - ERERRZHES
8 N 345,000 T * 1,444,000 7T °
4,703,000 7T % 7,536,000 F T ( = &
— = % 1 4,046,0003 JT * 345,000 %
ﬁ 2,984,000 T &4 703,0003 JT
DRRT—NF - —T—RF =2
—tﬁ&_z—/\ﬁ IJHJ%) SRR -E
/ﬁ —tF —NFR=
—NEE ‘JHﬂ Eﬁ%)@ﬁ%ﬁ'ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
}5@ °

AEEEMFTEREE
B8 o

R B 2

HH £ 2 A
RZE—ZF+A+H  A2ak
H 2 & I B 2~ 7 -Singamas Terminals
(China) Limited % B #2611 1 B2 [& &)
BIGERRAE (R B II HE
R EMA - — R BN
I IEEE &R B EEIEEAR QA
(T8RA D % BAERm 2 RE - A
Bl—EZRFR)  Fi] —EBREEZER
& DRI AR 98,310,000 TR AR
% 46,690,000 7T, (#8 % 72 15,660,000 3
LM 7,437,000 L) MR ERELHE
H 75 Rl H & m 78 P4k 40% K 19% 2 &
A - WRGER_TE—=F_A%
52 o
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46

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

On the same date, the Company entered into a
share transfer agreement with Guangdong Fuwa
Machinery to dispose of its 100% equity interest
of Foshan Shunde Singamas Tank Container Co.,
Ltd. (“Singamas Tank”) for a cash consideration of
RMB171,525,000 (equivalent to US$27,322,000).
The transaction was completed in February 2013.

On 31 May 2013, the Company entered
into a share transfer agreement with Foshan
Shunde Kanghong Investment Co., Ltd., a
company established in the PRC, to dispose
of the Company’s 100% equity interest in
Guangdong Shun An Da Pacific Container Co.,
Ltd. ("Guangdong Shun An Da”) for a cash
consideration of RMB160,000,000 (equivalent to
US$25,895,000). The transaction was completed
in August 2013.

The net assets of Leliu Wharf, Singamas Tank and
Guangdong Shun An Da at the date of disposal
were as follows:

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:

46

Leliu Wharf

US$'000
TET

HEMB AR (&)
REB - ADQAHEERSE WS
HT_IE\HX$E$?E§T§JH ’J//\)\E%

171,525,000 7T ( 48 & 72 27,322,000 3

)RR EREREHERHILTIEERER

BREAEBERAA(BHEXE

TEJ) 100% 2 WA #E = - WRFERZ
—=F - HA%EK °

R-ZE—=FRA=+—0H KAFHE
BILmIEEREREERBR AR (—MH
RAPBIR AT —EREEE
g+ LA A R ¥ 160,000,000 7T (#8 %
725,895,000 7T ) HE AR R RN ER
B E X FERBERAR(TERIER
E ) H100% A o WX HERZ
T—=FNAZTK °

Bk BREXEEMERIERER
HERMEEFENT

REERGENEENRBIN

Singamas
Tank
s

BAEE

US$000
FET

Guangdong
Shun An Da

BRIERE
US$'000

TXT

Total

&t
US$'000
FE7

Property, plant and equipment #7% - #23 & 3845 12,265 6,636 19,089 37,990
Prepaid lease payments i%ﬁa’“ﬁi%*k 10,246 4,520 12,858 27,624
Inventories 78 114 4,233 - 4,347
Trade receivables FEW AR R 1,035 8,129 18 9,182
Prepayments and AR REMEKFIE

other receivables 4,793 2,190 3 6,986
Tax recoverable REMEPA A - - 244 244
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 10,640 2,210 408 13,258
Trade payables FERTRR X - (37) (261) (298)
Accruals and other payables  FETE A3 & E ftb FEATER 3K (917) (6,894) (9,921) (17,732)
Tax payable FERTRIR (128) (1) - (129)
Net assets disposed of HEZEEFE 38,048 20,986 22,438 81,472

e A L el
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46 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 46 WHEMBAR (&)
(Continued)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEHRB AT 2 U :

Singamas Guangdong
Leliu Wharf Tank  Shun AnDa | [F]]
2]

wnE BAEE RRERE Ch
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TR THET TET TEIT

Consideration (Note) REH/:E) 23,097 27,322 25,895 76,314
Net assets disposed of HEZEEFE (38,048) (20,986) (22,438) (81,472)
Non-controlling interests IR R 15,603 - - 15,603
Cumulative exchange MEAREEFE

difference in respect of FEAMZTE

the net assets of N E

the subsidiaries NAEHB AT

reclassified il 4

from equity to profit BREFHE

or loss upon loss of ESiF

control of the subsidiary 4,462 - - 4,462
Gain on disposal HE R

(included in other income) (BT AEAMKA) 5,114 6,336 3,457 14,907

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMBATZFRERA

Cash consideration FABUHRERE

received during the year - - 25,895 25,895
Bank balances and HEZRITERKEAS

cash disposed of (10,640) (2,210) (408) (13,258)

(10,640) (2,210) 05,487 12,637
Note: The cash consideration in respect of disposal of Leliu Biet - HEEERENEXEE S HeCEE
Wharf and Singamas Tank was received in 2012 REZFE—ZFifE] - TR=ZF——F+=
and had been accounted for as deposits received in A=+ —HBIUFEFAAFEWRIZLH -

advance for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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47 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 47 WHREE
Company
b SN
2014 2013
—E-E | —_=E—=4F
US$’000 US$’000

FEx FET
Guarantees given to bank, MEIRTTIEHEFRER -
in respect of banking facilities to:
The subsidiaries: AR -
- amount guaranteed - EIRERE 544,229 657,619
— amount utilised -BFAeRE 91,951 70,655
48 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 48 BARKIE
2014 2013
—E—-{F =
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Group REH
Capital expenditure in respect of BETAMERRERE 15
the acquisition of property, WMERBEBEIEBA
plant and equipment contracted but  #% - #22 X & E
not provided for in the consolidated ~ Z &
financial statements 8,829 26,759
Capital expenditure in respect of ABBERR AR
the capital injection in an associate 5,175 -
Capital expenditure in respect of ABEREREZEATH
the capital injection in a joint venture - 1,640
Company AT
Capital expenditure in respect of EETHIMEAR BT 5
the acquisition of property, WMEBHBEIEBA
plant and equipment contracted M - BB RERE
but not provided for in ZEARZ M
the financial statements - 11,358

e A L el
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49 OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS

Lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
and the Company had outstanding commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases, which fall due as

49

REHERE

fERABEA
- AR B R AR FRE AR

NEE

D=

HREHENARAAEZRVES
ZHAMRITE

follows:
Group Company
Xx5E DT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-ME = —E-NE =
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn T TEn =T
Land and buildings T RIEF
- within 1 year -RE—F 2,064 2,866 - 252
~inthe 2nd to -REZFEFNF
5th year inclusive (HEME
BEER) 3,019 2,402 - -
5,083 5,268 - 252

Operating lease payments represent rentals
payable by the Group for certain of its container
depot sites. Leases are negotiated for an average
period of 1 to 10 years and rentals are fixed for an
average of 1 to 3 years.

LEMENEAREN TREME S
He - OB FORER/IE10F - M

M FIREER/R1 E3F
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49 OPERATING LEASE 49 REHERER
COMMITMENTS (Continued)
Lessor ER/HAEA
At the end of the reporting period, no leasehold RWERR AEBRAQRWLE
land and buildings of the Group and the Company THREFDHUALERERAL(ZF
were rented out under operating leases (2013: with —=F: #{EA1,241,000F L) c A
an aggregate of US$1,241,000). Property rental RNEE  HEREMEMSHS KA
income earned during the year was US$57,000 A57,0003% 7T (ZF—=4 : 72,0003
(2013: US$72,000). These properties do not have TT) o AP EAE AR IR — F I ML) FE A
committed tenants for the next year. A e
At the end of the reporting period, the Group and REEAR - ANEERARF EAEA
the Company had contracted with tenants for the ERBEAARE CEHERTENBR
following future minimum payments under non- BN T

cancellable operating leases:

Group and Company
rEBRAQT

2014 2013

—E-mFE —T—=F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET

— within 1 year -RE—F - 43

e A L el
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Group

Other than those disclosed in notes 29, 30, 31 and
36 to the consolidated financial statements, details
of transactions between the Group and other
related parties are disclosed below.

During the year, the Group entered into the
following trading transactions with related parties
that are not members of the Group:

50 FRAERNAXS
63 9]
Mz A EHMARMFE29 30 - 31 236
W  AEBEEMBE 2 X5
IBWELT -

RER - AREEAREQRGEAE
BRE)ERATEERS -

2014
—E-{F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Sales to immediate MEZEZERAREEE R
holding company (Note a) (Kiita) 85 162
Sales to fellow mMERMBAREEEMm
subsidiaries (Note b) (K17Eb) 62,148 68,399
Rental income from EEEELNENGIE €IV
a fellow subsidiary (Note b) (K75t b) 57 72
Rental expense to m—RRMNBARSZ NS
a fellow subsidiary (Note b) (H1itb) 314 -
Interest income from BETLEERFSIA
a joint venture 307 -

Note a: Before 1 April 2014, the ultimate and immediate
holding company of the Company was PIL, a
company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore.
With effect from 1 April 2014, PIL became a wholly
owned subsidiary of PIL Holdings, a company newly
incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. Since then,
the ultimate holding company is PIL Holdings and the
immediate holding company is PIL.

Note b: The fellow subsidiaries are Pacific International Lines
(China) Ltd., PIL Logistics (China) Co., Ltd., Pacific
International Lines (H.K.) Limited and Strategic Times
Limited, in which PIL, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, also the immediate holding company of the
Company, has controlling interest.

HWiita : R=F—MFEA—HAF » AR EJHRA
REBEZERA ] BFHE  Z 2681
g ERER 72 HERAE]  R=ZF
—PyFEP A — AR KR A PIL
Holdings.Z £ & M1B 7] + 7% 2~ 7]/ —[E
VS B =y Avad/N =T I = AN
RE]ZRIRFER A 5] R EHFERR 2 7] 57 51
A PIL Holdings J 2 “FA4 75

HiiEb : B Z B L Al BAFME(FE) B R A
Al XKFEEFE)ERAA - XF
W (&%) B R 2 5] K Strategic Times
Limied » X FRiF — A2\ G]2 F ZRER
BEEERNG S3EZFRNalZERE

ZS o
inn
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50 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 50 BFHAERQARXSH (&)

(Continued)

The balances with the related parties are disclosed
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and notes 29, 30, 31 and 36. All such balances
are subject to normal credit terms of 30 days (2013:
30 days).

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members
of key management during the year was as follows:

ERAERNR 2 EBRERGETBIRRK
KHMizE29 30 » 31 M 36IEE » HEM
B —REEKSGIEA=ZTR(Z

T=F:=1tXK)-
FTEEEABZHM

AEFEENEMEZEEAB ZHM
e

2014 2013

—E-FE —E—=
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Short-term employee benefits %= ERtE A 2,532 2,415
Post-employment benefits XEB&EF 71 51
Share-based payment PARR RS - 30
2,603 2,496

The remuneration of Directors and key executives
is reviewed by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

Company

The balances with subsidiaries, immediate holding
company and associates are disclosed in the
statement of financial position and notes 20, 29
and 36.

EERHEMTIEZETRABZHME BE
MEZEEeREBAAXRBAELTSEE R
F‘Rﬁ o

P /N

HIE AR - BERERARREE AT
ZAE R BRI B FF AR R S B 7 20
29 )36 °

e A L el
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Five Year Financial Summary
hFHEHE

Group
F5E
For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-B=1t-HLEE
2014 2012
“2-IF It S
% %
Sales Mix HEMRS
(as a percentage of sales)  (MABEEEHRLI)
Manufacturing: BEEK
Dry freight containers gRER 70 72 69 65 78
Refrigerated containers REERM 13 12 13 13 8
Tank containers i 5 5 6 4
US domestic containers FEAEEER 8 5 5
Other specialised containers ~ E- A5 ERE
and container parts SRR 2 4 5 5 2
98 98 98 98 97
Logistics services ik by 2 2 2 2 3
Total g 100 100 100 100 100
TEUs TEUs TEUs TEUs TEUs
TREEH THRIGER TRIZER TRIZER TREER
Production volume tER
20-foot containers NRERME 197,569 184,698 238,126 288,524 212,144
40-foot containers LOREER 35,150 33,942 47,700 60,480 31,214
40-foot high cube containers ~ 40R & & E5:46 395,398 275,158 276,488 204,214 351,044
45-foot high cube containers 45 & & 55 1,185 2,871 7,500 8,220 4,644
Others Hitr 57,172 28,780 30,288 66,576 37,260
686,474 525,449 600,102 648,014 636,306

B NEFR -
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Five Year Financial Summary A FHEHE

Group
F5E
For the year ended 31 December
BET-A=1+-HLEE
2014 2012
—E-mE -2z
US$'000 US$'000
Fxn Txn
Revenue 1 1,546,483 1,282,988 1,536,608 1,817,718 1,373,173
Profit from operations eyl 65,024 61,573 116,734 224,188 121,787
Finance costs HBER (13,802) (18,201) (19,676) (19,121) (11,509)
Investment income RERA 4,704 5,064 4,421 3,722 1,350
Change in fair value of derivative $T4&BIE
financial instruments LAREER 239 - - 931 (1,882)
Reclassification of fairvalue ~ HIEE AP IA
(loss) gain of derivative MiTEERTA
financial instruments LDNEE
designated as hedging (B8)&H
instruments from hedge mEREED
reserve B3 i (3,071) 8,079 2,427 (7,734) -
Share of results of associates  [E(REE S A A 2 7 (72) 920 575 12 569
Share of results of joint ventures EEA BN
(B#8) &7 (498) (288) (1602) 2,638 6,940
Profit before taxation BB ADEN 52,524 57,147 102,879 204,736 117,261
Income tax expense FrEfES (19,624) (17,859) (33,948) (50,909) (14,467)
Profit for the year REZFF 32,900 39,288 68,931 153,827 102,794
Attributable to: fEls
Owners of the Company YN[ 28,021 34,274 60,346 138,641 92,541
Non-controlling interests FrRRRER 4,879 5,014 8,585 15,186 10,253
32,900 30,288 68,931 153,827 102,794
Earnings per share BRER ,
Basic HAR USt. 16 cents 4 [ UST42centsEIl  US249cents 1L USS74cents EMl  US3.84 cents X
Diluted BE USt.16cents E4I [ UST42centsEIL  US249cents £l USs.73cents EIL US3.84 cents
Assets and Liabilities BERAHE
Total assets BEE 1,430,441 1,388,927 1,465,205 1,386,780 1,251,290
Total liabilties BaE (758,008) (734,694) (816,175) (774,578) (742,7293)
672,433 654,233 649,030 612,202 508,567
Equity attributable to ARTRREGER
owners of the Company 617,630 598,263 579,162 545,545 460,113
Non-controlling interests ErRRREER 54,803 55,970 69,868 66,657 48454
Total equity EREE 672,433 654,233 649,030 612,202 508,567

W A e el
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W E®EEXRABRLLA
SINGAMAS CONTAINER HOLDINGS LIMITED

19th Floor, Rykadan Capital Tower,

135 Hoi Bun Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BENERBEB 1B REEEAKRE 198
Tel E5%: (852) 2598 7831

Fax {85 (852) 2598 7847

E-mail E#: info@singamas.com

Website #811t : http://www.singamas.com
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